TCD Board of Supervisors
Monthly Meeting & Work Session Agenda

October 30th, 2018 (2:00pm - 5:00pm) Conserva "tiné n
Work Session begins at 1:00pm = Dstrict =
2918 Ferguson St SW, Suite A, Tumwater, WA 98512, 360.754.3588 ‘-"r--,,.,_ Uf-» """’: . &‘,_,-.‘i‘
No. ltem Time Allotted Tab# Plan
Work Session: 1:00pm — 2:00pm

1. Review September Board Meeling Materials, All 60 minutes

A. Board Training: OPMA (November fraining: Financial Report)
Work Session Time Allotment: 60 minutes (1 hr)

Monthly Meeting: 2:00pm — 5:00pm
1.  Welcome, Intreductions, Audio Recording Announcement 5 minutes
and Pledge of Allegiance

2. Public Comment 20 minutes
3. Agenda Review 10 minutes
4. Board Meeting Minutes Review, All - Action Item 20 minutes 1 GAP: 8

{Information only: September 25th, 2018 action items report)
A. August 20th, 2018 Meeling minuies

B. September 25th, 2018 Meeting & Work Session minutes
C. Review of new minutes template and policy, Ben Cushman
D. Discussion of past board Meeting minutes

5. Financial Reponrt, Sarah Moorehead 15 minutes 2 AlS: 80
A. Monthly Financial Report
B. October Check Register - Action Item
C. Year End Budget Strategy - Action ltem
D. Equipment & Sail Testing Rental Program
E. VSP MOU Update - Acfion item
F. 2018 Audit Engagement Letter - Action Item
G. Third Party Auditor Discussion

6. Discussion of Public Employee Sarah Moorehead, Eric Johhson 30 minules
7 Review of Conservation Accountability and Performance
" Program (CAPP), Eric Johnson 10 minutes 3
A. Adoption of CAPP Action Plan, All - Action Item
B. Discussion of WSCC Funding Appeal
8. 2019 District Funding 45 minutes 4

A. Update on Rates & Charges, Sarah Moorehead

B. Discussion of Grant: Dept. of Health {Revised)
Bringing Together Farms and Fish for Water Quality and Habitat
Protection




10.

12.

13.

€. Discussion of Grant: Dept. of Ecology

Communify Centered Resforation of the Middle Deschutes
Watershed

D. 2019 Budget Development Discussion, Al

Letter to WFSE Union re: Negotiations Request, Eric Johnson 10 minutes
Review of TCD Governance Action Plan, Al 20 minutes
A. Resolution #2018-04: TCD Governance Study

B. Resolution #2018-05: Hiring of a Human Resources Consultant

Adjourn, All

Interim Executive Director Report (Informational Only)

Meeting Time Allotment: 185 minutes (2.96 hrs)

Total Time Allotment: 254 minuies (4.08 hrs)
Key: GAP (Governance Action Plan), A/S (Annual & Strategic Plans)







D OO 1 ONY L I

Board of Supervisors

C_?__l‘l 5e I'V'atlgmn Regular Board Meeting Minutes
= District = Monday, August 20, 2018 (2:00pm)
n Lo 6 DRAFT V210.5.18
[ a-t

‘!hllrstni\c ’

Present at Meeting:

Eric Johnson, TCD Board Chair Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director
Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor  Heather Roskelley, TCD Staff

Paul Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor Doug Rushton, TCD Board Supervisor

Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair Melinda Holman, FPublic

Alison Halpern, WSCC Lisa Rinner, Public =

Patricia Harrigan, Public Madeline Bishop, Pl

Ben Cushman, Deschutes Law Group J. Martin McCa

Esther Kronenberg, Public
Ben Peterson, WFSE

AR Kusekin, Bi

Action items:
1.

2,

PN R

Staff to expand Doodie poll for rescheduli
September 10-21

Sarah to send a letter signed by TCD Board C
the attorney for the TCD Board and.authorize rele;
Sarah to provide HR documents
Staff to pface HR Discussion on a

ushman for review
meeting
ile.to TCD Attorney and Chair

and implement an RF
Sarah to draft a lettet

o Joe Hanna
o Tony Wilson
o Esther Kronenberg
o Lise Rinner

o Annabel Kusekin

Agenda Review, All

» Take #7 off agenda — TCD Resolution #2018-04 to WSCC (resolved)

» Jump to #14B at 4pm when John Stuhlmiller arrives

» Have discussion of past minutes - #13D

=  Doug moved to have #15 and #16 moved up to #4. Paul seconded. Doug, Paul - yes,
Eric, Richard, Linda - no. Motion died.

= Doug moved to have #15 and #16 moved up fo #5. Paul seconded. Doug, Paul - yes, Eric,

Richard, Linda - no. Linda abstained. Mofion died.
1



54 = Paul moved to have #5, #6, #7, and #8 moved to end of agenda after #17. Doug

55 seconded. Paul, Doug - yes. Eric, Richard, Linda — no. Motion died. :
56 |
57 Rescheduling of August 28" Board meeting — Doodle poll was sent out. Doodle poll to be
58 expanded to September 10-21.

59

60 Al — Staff to expand Doodle poll for rescheduling of August 28" Board meeting to include

61 September 10-21

62

63 4. Legal Services, All

64 A. Supervisors were asked to select questions for attorney candidates from a compiled list of

65 questions submitted by Supervisors prior fo the meeting. ..

66 B. The following six questions were selected and answered by the only attorney answering the

67 RFP in the affirmative — Ben Cushman, Deschutes L oup PLLC. (Note: the State Attorney

68 General's office was contacted but showed no intere
69 1. How long have you been practicing law’
70 + Practicing since 1996
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

viding legal services to TCD.)

members {(quorum of 9 recom
advice to boards of-construction
ts When there is a st

81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93 -
94 as represented farmers negotiating easements, and he has
95 ith forestry land easements and aquaculture. His family has a
96 ranch, hayfields, and fimberland in Eastern Washington and on the Olympic
97 Peninsula.
98 6. What makes your firm the best to satisfy the requirements of the position?
99 * Well versed in [and use and environmental law
100 * Wants TCD to succeed as a member of the community; the District provides an
101 important service
102 ¢ Mr. Cushman is offering his services at a discount and structured his proposal as
103 one of public interest — his rate is usually at $250/hr; his proposed rate is
104 $200/hr. If less than10 hours are used within a month, the hours will roll over to
105 the next month. He would attend every meeting including work sessions.
106

ke place in Executive Session or in a public
lined process for email; email can be used as

2




107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
IS
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158

C. Contract development
Paul motioned to authorize the Chairman to enter into a Master Services Agreement
consistent with Resolution 2018-05 with Mr. Ben Cushman of Deschutes Law Group,
Doug seconded. Unanimous Approval.

Break at 3:46pm. Resumed at 4:00pm

5. Review of TCD Governance Action Plan, All

8.

e Two signatures were missing — Paul and Richard; Action Plan now has all signatures

e Staff meetings — Sarah will send out emails about staff meetings once a Code of
Conduct is created

¢ Suggested that the union rep, Mark Hamilton, work
interactions with staff

¢ Suggested that CAPP and union negotiation; orporated into Action Plan

e TCD Chair would like TCD Attorney Ben Cushman to tact Enduris to obtain report
from Enduris investigation

jlth Board on appropriate

Doug motioned that Sarah send a Chai
Cushman is the attorney for the TCD Bo
seconded. Unanimous approval.

HR Discussion, Aff

orney Ben Cushman for review
‘next Board meeting

uditor. Paul, Doug — yes; Eric, Richard, Linda —
¢; Richard, Linda - yes. Paul, Doug — no. Richard remains

Chair. Paul, Doug — yes; Eric, Richard, Linda — no.
hard, Linda — yes; Paul, Doug — no. Eric remains as Chair
[ ]
Chair (Linda-
Partner Reports "
NRCS — No Report
WSCC, Alison Halpern

Annual Reports due by Friday, August 24th (will be in next Board packet)

WACD/NACD, Doug Rushton

The Southwest Area Association of Conservation Districts meeting will be on October 11", 9am
— 3:30pm, in Cathlamet, WA

Supervisor Reports

Richard discussed staff step increases and credit card balances.

Weekly Staff Updates

Sarah proposed transitioning to a monthly activities report that aligns with the District’s annual
and strategic plans.

*taTwEe

D



159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210

e Several Board members find the weekly updates to be helpful and would like to continue
receiving them.

Al — Sarah to send work organization chart and salary schedule to attorney and Chair

9. Mid-Year Budget Revision — UPDATED, All

A. TCD Election Expense Authorization

¢ Richard will contact Secretary of State Kim Wyman for suggestions regarding invoice
¢ Sarah will look into payment plan
* Payment will come from unrestricted funding and WSCC

Al — Sarah will look into a payment plan for TCD election expenses
Al — Richard wili contact Kim Wyman for suggestions regarding TCD election invoice

10. Financial Report

A. Monthly Financial Report
B. July Check Register
= Eric moved to approve checks 19642-196
Unanimous approval.
C. DOH Grant

13. Board Meeting Min

Paul made a motion to approve D
questions that he would like addr
Richard — no. Linda a j
Sarah stated that this gral
on this grant. The DOH gra
they could pull it.

ervice

Paul motioned:fo

iew; Alf

A. Discussion on Audio

ﬁdihg as Official Meeting Record — not discussed

B. June 26, 2018 RegularBoard Meeting & Work Session minutes

Not discussed (amendments made during work session)

C. July 24, 2018 Special Meeting minutes

Not discussed (amendments made during work session)

14. Voluntary Stewardship Program, Sarah Moorehead

A. Discussion with Washington Farm Bureau

John Stuhimiller presented on VSP and shared support for progress on implementation.

B. VSP Technical Support MOU Addendum

Sarah presented on VS implementation at TCD and proposed centracting, according to
TCD policy, a portion of the technical work until TCD increases staff capacity. Sarah

4



211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224

225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238

239
240
241
242
243
244
2435

15. WRIA 13 Lead Entity Contract {RC}), All

16. WSFE Negotiations Letter, All

noted that the VSP Work Group has approved subcontracting this work and a request for
a letter of consent from Thurston County was submitted.
« Need 11 plans total: 9 plans by July 2019 (2 have been completed)

Doug motioned to authorize the Chair and Sarah to determine qualifications, duties, and
compensation of a subcontractor or contractors and implement a Request for Proposals
process to engage with a VSF subcontractor or contractors to provide at least 11 ISPs
and related outreach and technical assistance by July 2019 for up to $30,000. Linda
seconded. Unanimous approval.

Al — Chair and AED to determine qualifications, duties, and compensation of
subcontractor(s) and implement an RFP process to engage:with subcontractor(s)

¢ Another agency will be taking over the contract:

« Eric motioned to acknowledge the léi




[
SO oIS L BN —

[USILUCI SO N T SO T O I (R T S N I N S e i e i
DN S0 ] SN LA R LR — OO 00 0 OO0 R S D

Conserv_ation
= District =
-{pzbtp cw r_0¢

£h urstof‘ca'

Present at Meeting:

Eric Johnseon, TCD Board Chair

Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor
Paul Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor
Doug Rushton, TCD Board Supervisor
Alison Halpern, WSCC

Ben Cushman, Deschutes Law Group

Action ltems:
None

Meeting not audio recorded

Board of Supervisors
Work Session Minutes
Tuesday, September 25, 2018
1pm — Zpm

Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair

Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director
Tony Wilson, Public

Jerry Dierker, Public

1. Review September 25" Board Meeting Packet, All

= Supervisors & Staff reviewed agenda items to allow questions/discussions prior to Monthly Board

meeting
» No formal Board action was taken

Respectfully Submitted,

Eric Johnson, Board Chair




el B0 Hlo SR, N NSV I

an ALY

&7 SINN

Cons_ervgtion
= District =

-3 ( &
Ib’v N ©

"(hurstoi\"&

Present at Meeting:

Eric Johnson, TCD Board Chair
Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor
Paui Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor
Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair
Alison Halpern, WSCC

Tony Wilson, Public

Jerry Dierker, Public

Esther Kronenberg, Public

Ben Peterscon, WFSE

Patricia Harrigan, Public

Tara Donchoe, NRCS

Board of Supervisors
Regular Board Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 25, 2018 (2:00pm)
Draft V2

Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director
Heather Roskelley, TCD Staff

Doug Rushton, TCD Board Supervisor

Ben Cushman, Deschutes Law Group

Chris Stearns, Associate Board Supervisor

TJ Johnson, Public

Action ltems:

1. Staff to send Doodle poll to Supervisors to sc

past minutes
2. Alison will provide examples of
be providing policy

3. Sarah will draft a letter to Mark Clark

CAPP

1. Welcome, Introduq_

nd Pledqe of Allegiance

= Eric Johnson cal
Welcome, Introd

o Glen Morgan
o Annabel Kusekin
o Esther Kronenbe
o Joe Hanna

3. Agenda Review, All

:04pm. There-was a quorum.

» Partner Reports by NRCS, NACD after Agenda Review

= WSCC — Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP) update

Resolution #2018-06 (#5) — to remain on agenda with comments made by Attorney Ben
Cushman

At end of Partner Reports: Special Meeting to be scheduled between this meeting and next
public meeting to discuss legal and liability issues, Human Rights Commission complaints, and
labor matters

4. Partner Reports




54 A. NRCS, Jeff Swotek

55 e Tara Donohoe introduced
56 e 2019 Farm Bills — they do not have timelines
57 o Draft biological assessments will be submitted in late 2019
58 B. NACD/WACD, Doug Rushton
59 ¢ Handouts — how to navigate NACD website
60 » NACD Report: nominated the Okanagan CD for work on fire events
61 ¢ Farm Bill - Congress to vote on latest version by September 30, 2018
62 s WACD - WSCC Executive Director Mark Clark will be retiring mid-January 2019; annual
63 WACD meeting November 26-28 in Kennewick, WA.
64 C. Schedule a Special Meeting — Friday, September 28, 2pm-4pm
65 ¢ Special Meeting in Executive Session; Ben Cushm ill report out at next public
66 meeting. -
67 e Purpose is to present potential issues of legz to District Counsel on pending
68 lawsuits, employment issues, HRC compiag ossibly labor issues.
69
70 5. Board Meeting Minutes, All
71 A. August 20, 2018 Board Meeting and Wor
72 o iss
73 .
74 .
75 .
76 .
77 .
78 .
79  Line 183 —
80 e All actionj
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88 B.
89 |
90 re: public comments
91 hatcom model for consent agendas, but Ben doesn’t think it's
92 nd examples of other CD consent agendas and minutes with
93 ill develop policy
94
95 Al - Staff to send Doodle poll to Supervisors to schedule Special Meeting in October to go
96 over past minutes
97 Al - Alison will provide examples of consent agendas and minutes with public comment; Ben
98 will be providing policy
99
100 6. Resolution #2018-06, Indemnification of TCD Supervisors, Ben Cushman
101 e Depends on whether this is a necessarily incurred expense in discharge of duty; not
102 retrospective and won't reimburse cash costs
103 » Consensus decision to table this resolution
104

105 7. Financial Report, Sarah Moorehead




106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157

A,
B.

C.

F,

Monthly Financial Report

August Check Register

Linda moved to approve checks 19667-19709 totaling $93,019.83 with voided checks
19678, 19688, and 19689. Paul seconded. Unanimous approval.

» Checks 19671, 19672, 19674, 19691, 19710, 19790 — questions for Susan

» A/P Aging Detail Handout requested by Richard was provided by Sarah

September Check Register

Doug moved to approve checks 19711-19761 totaling $136,585.85 with voided checks
19739, 19744, and dd04251861. Paul seconded. Unanimous approval.

WSCC FY 19 Livestock TA Addendum

Doug motioned to approve. Linda seconded. U us approval.

Linda moved to approve Stateme
allow $5,000 for handhnq
approval.

TC Auditor's O
+ Sarah said

ditor the amount that was budgeted and then
he balance. Linda seconded. Unanimous approval.

According fo man, there was no contracting authority at the time the apparent
contract was entered into; therefore, payment would be illegal by a public agency

» There was a determination to begin a process to create a contract, but there was no
express authorization in a public meeting

8. Review of Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP}, All

e WSCC voted to withhold money from TCD except for trainings for Supervisors and staff
effective September 20, 2018

o WSCC would like a TCD Supervisor to be at meeting in Kennewick on November 29;
can do GoToMeeting

« Alison suggested that a letter be drafted as soon as possible to Mark Clark noting how
they had addressed the CAPP non-compliance issues and started to discuss training

3



158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167

168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175

opportunities during that afternoon’s work session, rather than waiting until the
November 29 meeting.

Paul motioned for Sarah to draft a letter to Mark Clark/WSCC stating that they are
working on CAPP and to have Eric sign letter. Doug seconded. Unanimous approval.

Al — Sarah will draft a letter to Mark Clark/WSCC for Eric to sign stating that they are
working on CAPP

9. Adjourn, All
Paul moved to adjourn. Linda seconded at 5:02pm. Unanimous approval.

Respectfully Submitted,

Eric Johnson, Board Chair







 Date Check# though Check # Totaling Voided Check #'s

9/20/2018 19762 19783 59,966.49
The following checks were written on Timberland Bank:
9/6/2018 EFT EFT 2,448.89 |Insurance Premium
a/6/2018 dd04251877 dd04251877 2,981.08 |Payroll
9712018 EFT EFT 15.00 |DRS - DCP
9712018 EFT EFT 767.14 |IRS Payroll Tax
g/7/2018 EFT EFT 1,514.36 |IRS Payroll Tax
9/7/2018 EFT EFT 3,003.82 [IRS Payroll Tax
91712018 dd04251871 dd(04251876 10,443.87 |Payroll
9/12/2018 EFT EFT 5,629.76 {DRS - PERS
92112018 19762 19783 19,721.,09 {Accounts payable
92112018 dd04251884 dd04251884 703.13 1Payroll
9/24/2018 EFT EFT 15.00 |IDRS - DCP
9/24/2018 5504251878 dd04251883 9,558.51 jPayroll
9/2712018 EFT EFT 3,074.84 |IRS Payroll Tax

Total 59,966.49

Richard Mankamyer, Board Auditor

Page 1 of 35

Date




9:09 AM Thurston Conservation District
10125018 Payroll Transactions by Payee
September 2018
Date B Mame Num Type Memo Account Amount

Dept of Retirement Systems

09/05/2018 Dept of Reflrement Sy...  EFT Liability Check Pay Date: 09/... 3081001 - 308.10.01... ~16.00

09/18/2018 Dept of Retirement Sy... EFT Liability Check August PERS... 3081001 - 308.10.01... -5,629.76

082012018 Dept of Reflreinent Sy... EFT Liability Check 2 of 2 Septem.., 3081001 - 308.10.01... ‘1@
Total Dept of Retirement Systems -5,6569.76
EFT Payment

09/06/2018 EFT Payment EET Liability Check Amy Franks V... 3081001 - 308.10.01... ~1,514.36

09/06/2018 EFT Paymeni EFT Liability Check Bishop's Back... 3081001 - 308.10.01... -767.14

09/06/2018  EFT Payment EFT Liability Check  Sep 10 Payrol 3081001 « 308.10.01... -3,093.82

09/26/2018 EFT Payment EFT Liabflity Check Septamber 25... 3081001 - 308.10.01... -3,074.84
Total EFT fayment -8,450.16
QuickBooks Payroll Service .

09/06/2018 QuickBooks Payroli S... Llability Check Stephanie’'s B... 3081001 - 308.10.01... -2,0881.08

09/07/2018 QuickBooks Payrolt S... Liability Check September 10,.. 3081001 - 308.10.01.., -10,443.87

09/21/2018 QuickBooks Payrolf S... Liability Check Mara's Backpay 3081001 - 308.10.01.., -703.13

09/24/2018  QuickBooks Payroll S... Liabliity Check  Adjusted forv.. 3081001 - 308.10.01... -9,558,51
Total QuickBooks Payroll Service «23,686.59
Bishop, Stephanie E

09/07/2018 Bishop, Stephanie E dd042.,,  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081601 - 308.10.01... 0.00

Q9/10/2018 Bishop, Stephanle E dd042,..  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0,00

09/26/2018 Bishop, Stephanle E ddp42...  Paycheck Diract Daposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00
Total Bishop, Stephanle E 0.00
Hatch-Winecka, Amy B :

09/10/2018 Hatch-Winecka, Amy 8 dd042.. Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... .00

09/25/2018 Hateh-Winecka, Amy B dd042.. Paycheck Direct Deposit = 3081001 - 308.10.01... .00
Total Hatch-Winecka, Amy B 0.00
Healy, Mara E

09/10/2018 Healy, Mara £ dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

09/24/2018 Healy, Mara E dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... Q.00

(9/26/2018 Healy, Mara E ddt42...  Paycheck VOID: Direct ... 3081001 - 308,10.01... .00
Total Healy, Mara E 0.00
Moorehead, Sarah

09/10/2018 Moorehead, Sarah dd@42... Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

00/26/2018 Moorehead, Sarah dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00
Total Moorshead, Sarah .00
Warren, Nicole A

09/10/2018 Warren, Nlcole A dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... .00

09/25/2018 Warren, Nicole A ddod2...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... G.00
Total Warren, Nicole A 0.00

" White, Nora E N

09/10/2018 White, Nora & dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... (.00

09/25/2018 White, Nora E ddo42,,  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3(}81001 + 308.10.01... 0.00
Total White, Nora E 0.00

TOTAL -31,796,51
Page 1

Page 2 of 35




Washington State Department of Retirement Systems

Electronic Payments

Completed Payment Advice

Employer: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Report Periad: 09/2018
Retirement Due Date: 10/15/2018
Payment Status: Submitted ( 08-05-18 12:10:31 PM by 8. Shelton }
System Report Groupftnvoice # Amount
Deferred

Compensation
Program Payment

DCP 919 . 15.00
Total Amount for DCP: 16.00
Plan 1 Payments
PERS 2358 0,00
Total Amount for Plan 1: 0.00
Plan 2 Payments
PERS 2358 0.00
Total Amount for Plan 2: 0.00
Plan 3 Paymants
DB Employer DC WSIB DC Self
PERS 2358 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Amount for Plan 3; (.00
Total Payment Amecunt: 15.00
Scheduled Date of Payment: /712018

Page 1 of 1

Page 3 of 35



TAXPAYER NAME: THURSTON CONSERVATON DISTRICT T xxexx 16812

Deposit Confirmation
Yaur paymaent as beos soceplad,

Paymani Successful

An EFT Acknowledgernenl Number has boen provided for Wis payment, Pleage Keep this number for your records,

REMINDER: REMEMBER TO FiLE AlLL RETURNS WHEN DUET
EFT ACKNOWLERGEMENT NUMBER: ATUBHE0IDEA 1188

PLERSE NOTE

Any amounis reprasanied in the subrategories of Sacial Sacurity, Medieare, and Incsme Tax Wilhholding aro for infosmalione]

purpesss only,

Fayment Infornaiion Enterad Data
Taxpayer BEIN XXX T2
Tax Form 241 Employars Federal Tax
Tax Type Fodaoral Tax Deposil
Tax Period Q3/2018
Payment Amount $767.14
Settlement Date QBfaji2018
Subcategories:
1 Soclal Security $462.68
2 Medicare 5108.26
3 Tax Withholding $196.00
Account Number X% NG5G
Aceount Type CHECKING
Routing Number 325170754
Bank Name TFIMBERLAMD BANK

Page 4 of 35




Payment Detalls &

your leace number.

1§ Daforsyudios

axFRT iR

Youwr payment detalls are listad below, The highlighted & digils of the EFT Acknowledgement Number reprasent

Py
%T’axpayerEiN xxxex 1612 & -
ﬂ::”k?;l‘:‘lgﬁ;ememﬂumben 270885034444144 &
ECancellation EFT @ :
{(Acknowiedgement Mumber)
{Tax Form 941 Employers Federal Tax g |
Tk Type Federal Tax Deposit &
‘Tax Periot Q22018 @
éTotal Payment Amount $4,514.36 @ :
%Paymant Input Mathod Web L]
%Setﬂementﬂale 2018-09-07 &
EAGHTrace Number )
éPuyman{Stams Sehecutard )
%glgg:g:viigement Numher) 270065035444144 @ i
;Transaut!on Type ACH Debil Paymenl-DDA )
{Rocelved Date 2018-09-06 Qi
%Racewad Titme (ET) 48.13.53 &
i‘gﬂﬁcellation Date & :
= PREVITIUSE
bome  Enrdment  Mufyofle  Poymeois  Help&fnfognation  ComtentUs  Loggul
UshAgey  MRSgey  Treasurnpoy

Etecliontc Feders] Tax Paymeni Syslem® and EFTPS® ara regislerad servicamarks of Hie U.S, Department of the Treasury’s Buran of the Fiscal Service.

Page 5 of 35




TAXPAYER NAME: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT T oo 1612
Degosit Confirmation
Yaur payment has heon aceopted,

Payment Succesafuf

An EFT Acknouledgomant Nisnber has baen provided for $ils payment. Pleas keap s pumbar for your records.

REMINDER: REMEMBER TO FILE ALL RETURNS WHEN 208
[ EFT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT NUMBER: AOHE435556430

PLEASE MOTE

Aury aanteks represented s the subcatagories of Soclal Securly, Modicare, and Income Tax Winhowring are lor Inkarmationa)
pumosas anly.

Payment Information Enterad Data
Taxpayer EIN ®Xanx1612
Tax Form 941 Employers Fedorat Tax
Tax Type Faderal Tax Dopos)i
Tax Period QIR0 18
Payment Amoont $3,083.82
Saettiemant Date QRIGTI2018
Subcategorias:
1 Social Security $1.680.02
2 Medicare $384 80
3 Tax Withhalding $1011.00
Account Number XXnxxG554
Account Type CHECKING
Routing Numbar 325170754
Bank Name TIMBERLAND BANIC

Page 6 of 35




Washington State Department of Retirement Systems
Electronic Payments

Completed Payment Advice

Employer: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Report Period: 08/2018
Retirement Due Date: 09/156/2018
Payment Status: Submilited ( 09-10-18 12:15:10 PM by S. Shelion )
System Report Group/invoice # Amaount
Deferred

Compensation
Program Payment

bCcP 919 0,00
Total Amount for DCP: 0.00
Plan 1 Payments
PERS 2368 (.00
Total Amount for Plan 1: 0.00
Plan 2 Payments
PERS 2358 3156.47
Total Amount for Plan 2; 315647
Plan 3 Payments
DB Employer pC WSIB DC Soif
PERS 2368 1648.60 0.00 824.69 2473.29
0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Amount for Plan 3: 2473.29
Total Payment Amount: 5629.76
Scheduled Date of Payment: 9/12/2018

Page 10f 1

-Page 7 of 35



Tﬁurston Conservation District

1:58 PM
Check Detail 09/21/2018
September 21, 2018
Num Date Narmle Account Pald Amount
19762 0921/2018 A & L Western Agricultural Laboratories -610.00
212019 08/06/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO30 Implementation 5314117 - Soll Testing -510.00
-610.00 /
197863 09/24/2018 Accotintemps -4,338.46
51397802 07/24/2018 UNRESTRICTED'WSCG:W086 Implementation 5314102 + Audit & Accounting -589.00
51663474 08/30/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCG:WO8G Implementation 5314102 - Audit & Accounting -931.00
51709561 00/06/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCCWO086 Implementation 5314102 + Audit & Accounting -827.96
51736885 09/11/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCG:WO086G Implementation 5314102 - Audit & Accounting -950.00
51787771 09/18/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC;WO086 lmplementation 314102 - Audit & Accounting —940.50/
-4,.338.46
18764 09/21/2018 Comcast ~370.64
Sep4-Dct 3 08/24/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:W086 Implementation 5314204 - Inlernet Services -134.90
UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:W086 Implementation 5314201 + Telephone & Internet Expense -235.74
-370.64
19765 0012112018 Culllgan Water Co. -31.41
08/31/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WOS6 limplementation 53131050 - Water - Bottled -31.41
-31.41
19766 09/21/2018 Deschutes Law Broup -2,000.00
480 08/31/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCCW086 Implementalion 5314101 - Legal Sarvices -2,000.00
-2,600.00,
19767 09/21/2018 GRuB ~50.00
09/21/2018 Shellflsh Fund:M041.3 Shellfish Clear Choices 5314302 - Reglstration Fees 50,00
-50,00 I/
19768 09/21/2018 Jan-Pro Cleaning Systems -225.00
18-4743 09/01/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO086 inplamentation 5314104 - Janitorlal Services 22600 -
-225.00 }/
19769 09/24/2018 LaMofte Company A61.26
563023 08/14/12018 GREEN:TCC:G016.28 Dawkins 5313103 - Project Supplies -161.26
-161.26
18770 (9/21/2018 Lewis County Conservation District -38.10

09/13/2018 WSGC:WO050 - Chehalls Flood Oulreach

5314100 - Professional Services

Page 8 of 35

-38.10

-38.10 /

Page 1 of 3




Tﬁu’rsto;n Conservation District

1:58 PM
Check Detail 09/21/2048
September 21, 2018
Num Date Name Account Pald Amaount
18711 0972142018 OfficeTeam ~1,800.00
51666878 08/30/2018 UNRESTRICTED:'WSCC:W086 Implementatien 5314100 + Professional Services -800.00
51678646 G9/03/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO086 Implementation 5314100 - Professional Services -600.00
00/ 1/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSGCC:WO86 Implementation 53144060 - Professional Services -400.00
-1 ,800.00/
19772 09/21/2018 Qlympia School District ~170.00
20180509 09/05/2018 GREEN:TCC:G019.28 Dawkins 53494113 - Teacher Stipends/Subs -170.00
-170.00
19773 09/24/2018 Pacific Disposal «50.70
10398303 09/01/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO86 Implementation 5314702 - Garbage Service -22,26
10398304 09/01/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCG:WOBE Implementation  $314702 - Garhage Service -28.44
50,70 /
19774 09/21/2018 Puget Sound Energy -262,92
08/30/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO0B6 lmplemantation 5314701 + Electricity -191.21
UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO86 Implementation 5314703 - Ulility - Gas -71.71
-262.92
19775 09/21/2018 Rlcoh USA, inc. A184.67
08/31/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCC:WO8E Implerentation 5314503 - Equipment Leases -184.67
-184.67 /
19776 08/21/2018 Ricoh, USA Inc - Usage -236,86
5054272598 08/21/2018 UNRESTRIGTEDWSCC:WDBE Implementation 5313102 + Computer Supplies -236.86
-236.,86
19777 00/21/2048 United Concordia Insurance Go -309.28
09/91/2018 UNRESTRICTED:A010-Overhead 5312012 - Dental Banefits -309.28 ,—
-304.26
19778 09/21/2018 VSP - Vision Care 42,22 ‘
08/17/2018 UNRESTRICTED:A010-Overhead 5312011 - Medical Benefits -42,22 /
42,22
19779 09/21/2018 Wa St Conservation Commisslon -577.00
08/14/2018 UNRESTRIGCTED:A010-Overhead 5314504 + Vehlcla Leases -577.00
577,00 (/
Page 2 of 3

Page 9 of 35




Thurston Conservation District 1:58 PM

Check Detail 0912112618
September 21, 2018

Num Dale Name Account Pald Amount
19780 08/21/2018 WA St University Energy Program -1,467.00
19-0067 08/31/20148 5314103 - Computer Services -1,467.00 /
-1,467.00
19781 09/2112018 WACD ' ,877.00
19-028-Deposit  08/31/2018 UNRESTRICTEDR;W(38 - Plant Sale 5313103 - Project Supplies -1,877.00
-1,877.00
19782 09/21/2018 Wells Fargo ~1,000.00
08/31/2018 Wells Fargo -1,000,60
-1,000.00 j
19783 08/21/2018 Whitlock Limited Partnership 1 -3,850.00
09/14/2018 UNRESTRICTED:WSCG:WO8E Implementation 5314501 - Office Rent -3,950.00 /
-3,9560.00
Grand Total $19,721.09

"}, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of petjury that the materials have been furnished, the
services rendered or the labor performed as described herein and that the claim is a just, due and unpaid
obligation against Thurston Conservation District, and that | am authotized to authenticate and certify the
said claim."

Fokod Pordng 099578

Richard Mankamyer, DistricifAuditor Date

Board Member Date

Page 3of3
Page 10 of 35




Washington State Department of Retirement Systems
Electronic Payments

Completed Payment Advice

Emplovern THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Report Period: 09/2018
Relirerment Due Date: 10/15/2018
Payment Status: Submiltad ( 08-20-18 3:23:42 PM by S, Shelton }
System Report Group/invoice # Amount
Defarred

Compansation
Program Payment

DGP 919 15.00
Total Amount for DGP: 15,00
Plan 1 Payments
PERS 2358 0.00
Total Amount for Plan iz 0.00
Plan 2 Payments
PERS 2358 .00
Total Amount for Plan 2; _ 0.00
Plan 3 Payments
P8 Employer DC WsIB DG Self
PERS 2358 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0,00
Total Amount for Plan 3: 0.00
Total Payment Amount: 15.00
Scheduled Date of Payment: 9i24/2018

Page 1o 1

Page 11 of 35



s
—

e

TAXPAYER NAME: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT TIM: xxuxx16H12

Deposit Conflrmation

Your payntent has been acenplad,

Payinent Sucoassfil

An EFT Acknowledgemont Number hag besn provided {or Bhis payment. Please keep Ihis sumber for your tatoris,

REMINDER: REMEMBER TO FILE ALL RETURNS WHEN BUE!

EFT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT NUMBER: 2708703647808 :

PLEASE MOTE

Any amounls reprasented in the subcalegories of Sociad Senusily, Medicara, and Innoms Te Wilkholding are for infamwticnal
|iorposes ohly,

Payinent Information

Entered Rata

¢ Taxpayer EIN nxxax1612
Tax Form 941 Employers Federal Tax

Fadural Tax Deposil

Qe
© Payment Amount $3.074.84
Settlament Date 002712018
Subcategoriast
; 1 Social Security $4,676.72

2 Medicara F302.12

3 Tax Withholding $1,00600

¢t Account Number Eebb el

Account Type CHECIING

Rouking Number 35ETE

BamkName o DMSERUNDBANK ‘
Home Eorglinent {1y Profile ayianis Hela & Information) Coptact Us Lagout

LDSA oy IRS.40v Treastty.ooy
Elaclropic Fedeeal Tax Paymentl Syslem@ and EFTPS4 are seyislared sarvicemarks of the U.S, Dapartment of lhe Treasury's Burezu of the Fiscal Sarvica,

Page 12 of 35




%LT'EE  |%ETHY 8g'/¥0°0T |T1'TS6'6 7T°7s6'6  |00000°0€ GI-ARIN-TE |LT-BN-TE /7°6T0D| sioreu]jod puE SRLIBI]  w»

%988 |WELTL Q£ 86€'T £9°TO8'8 0L VY60 [OUEVETT gT-320-TE {8T-UBIT 5016109 YVON]

%roEY YN T TT8vYC |0O0°C SO'ESTET [ETYLTVY wwads (1N (gT-Ue(-T J0L 01 Mw

— - 3

%te 16 |%ELTL ST T9CY Co'CoE'eT gg'8E6' vy |00°00T'6Y gr-090-T¢ |8T-UElT SS-6109 jessuen| =
198png |Bawill jO %) 9IUE[Rd SIBYINOA 2T0T 8Ny junouny poLI3g WRID jequny | 1S0WNN
30 9% Suujewsay | SUIpUEISIng naygl JuesD 10l JueID | JUNO20Y

%UTY'PET (%4809  [BO¥C ¥9 €806 76°70€°97 |00°£LZE'9T gT-unf-0¢  [LTARMT 11-£T-81 STOM }o01s8An qu

g

%ET'BL | %WLB0O OF069'E 0O FSTEL oy bS6’9T  6T-unf-0f LTANCT J0-€T-81 oLOM 2Jeys1s0) 43dd] 2

S

%r9 Ty %809 TryeL'Ty |S1E68T 657zSST loovzeg  |61-U n-0f  |ZT-AN-T 15-£1-81 CLOM _ A\ ANGELM) m.

%SthsE | %00°0% "68176 vzl L0°0TZ" "00Y° un(- JEN-T TH-ET-81 omo? HoeaAAN0 g

6 %00 c6'6eTvs |¥yTvIls OTZ'8E 0000F'TET |6T-UNC-0E 8T ; Ule|d POOIA SIEYRYD W

w

%E6 TYT  |%80°0 88'9/6'T 0S'TTL'6E ZT°€70°88 |00°000°06  |6T-UNi-0% ST-N-T I-ET-8T 980OM uoejuswaduy m.

%6.°07 (%000 O LTP'S9  |STOEYTT L6'TLOS 00050 -08Q-1 T-12N-T SOFT-9T 0cod wafold w

6 (00°0F 1E0L [0°Sy  |00°00S0TT |0T2RG-1E |4 sue 043583 Q
128png |ewiijo 9| SduUBEd S1SLINOA g10z Sny | unocwy pousd el Jaguuny | JaquinnN
30 % Sujuleway | Sulpuelsing nyL UBID (2101 juBlD | IUN0JY

2107 sequaides

jdoy seaueled jueld
19L3S1g UORBAIRSUOD uoisinylL

Page 13 of 35




Page 14 of 35

%I00T  |%90'Lh  |SO'86T7IL 09°€6ST C6I9T'9  |00'09¥LL (6T-unf-0f  |8T-UEM oorWN dSAl
E
%ze'Z7  |%ILSE  |TVPPEET 000 $6IFS9  |pEo8ssT  |0T-09C-TE [LT-UNM-1C SL-6v-81 SO0 WEID HHEAH 105 m
%96' L6 |%ELTL  |EVYOC TTE69°S L5566 000007 |8T93Q-1E |BT-USr-T BEOW TaIL seandased m
6 5 0 /Ao uopsmyy] 2
wv
%L8TE €189 ‘ - e’ 1uads U 8T-n O JUEBID) [|9SSNY
% YN 891 000 £8°TE8 00°C0S'¢ S |aun [3T-Inr-T 5€0 / snoned punos 138nd
1e8png |swil Jo 5| BUEjRY SISYINOA e1nz 2ny Ahowy porad JUBiD Jsgluny | equunn
109 Sujuiewwsy | Suipue1sing nay), uean |e1n], JUelD | N0
oy e L . o - s R o sauady
%LLPY %00°0L L1796 wﬁ, 000 cg'RT'TE |008YT'8y (81-99Q-1E [81-9°d-1 %BC-IS 1030 03 SIIEID - GdS
%7S9T (%0004 |TLw9T'ST |000 67170t [00°98Z'8T  |8T-22Q-T€ 81-G%3-T CTTRON V1 aulaioys
0/ F0T %0004 |6L799% 000 6.°99%'0T |00'ODODT  |8T-08Q-1E [81-93d1 o 1vowl  sisumopuet BuiSedug ]
o
%000 %0004 |00000°0T {000 000 00°000°0T  |81-93Q-I€ |[8T-US4-T T TroIN BIBYS 350D w.
g
%TSTS  |%000L |€6'615°SE  |00°0 79°/67'6E |65/4T8%L |8T-99Q-TE |81-9°4T LTHON SoUR)SISSY [BDIUYIBL] 2.
%S Ty  |%00°0L SE€LT9YT {0070 ST LTvLT |09vrOTy  |8T09C-TE 8T-0o4-T £IVON] $9oloy) 43D Yshljsus
uvyo'Le  l%000L |€€°055/Z 000 /5'979°9T |0€6LTFy  |8T-99C-18 |81-Gd-T TEFOWN| a0us oyl pue SJU3pNls
108png loung jo 9% | SduBjed SI9YINOA 2TOZ BNy Wnowy poad URID JaquinN | tequinn
Jo9y Susleway | SuUlpueIsIng nay g JuBID [B101 jueln | JUN0I3Y
210z leguieides

uday seouejeg JueiD
JOLSIJ UOHBAISSUOD LOISINYL



9:19 AM Thurston Conservaiion District

10125118 Balance Sheet

Acerual Basts As of September 30, 2018

ASSETS
Gurrent Assets
Checking/Savings
© 3088010 Checking Accounts

3088020 Savings Accounts
3088030 Petty Cash
Total Checking/Savings
Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
3090500 Prepald Accounts

3092000 - 209,20.00 Cash on Hand
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assels
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
current Liabilities

Long Term Liabliitles
Tetal Liabilitles
Equity
TGTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Page 15 of 35

Sep 36, 18

44,551.90
32,031.32
328.00
76,914.22
220,847.84

- 94,217.25
1,140.80
22,358.08
320,117.44
320,417.11

T

e

141,672.59
108,603,687
921,276.26

90,840.85

320,117.11

——

Page 1



9:21 AM Thurston Conservation District

10(2618 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basls As of September 30, 2018

Sep 30,18 Sep 30,17 % Change % Change

ASSETS
Current Assets |
Checking/Savings : |
3088010 Checking Accounts 44,551.90 28,949.36 15,602.54 53.9% ’
3088020 Savings Accounts 32,031.32 283,343.71 «251,312.39 -88.7%
3088030 Petty Cash 328.00 239.76 8B.24 36.8%
Total Checking/Savings 76,011.22 312,532.83 -235,621.61 ~75.4%
Accounts Recelvable 220,847 .84 141,649.38 79,198.45 55.9%
Other Current Assel§ 22,358.0?_ 12,833,756 9,524.30 74.2%
Total Current Assets 320,1 17.11 467,015.97 -146,898.86 -31 .5%
TOTAL ASSETS 320,117,114 467,015.97 -146,898.86 -31.5%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabllitlas .
Current Liahilitles 111,672.59 75,962.78 35,709,861 47.0%
Long Tenn Liahillties 109,603.67 153,107.08 -43,503.41 -28.4%
Total Liabillties 221,276,286 229,063.86 -7,793.60 -3.4%
Equity 98,9?0.85 237.946,11.  -139,105.26 -58.5%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 320,117.11 467,015,87  -146,898.86 -31.5%

Page i

Page 16 of 35




9:25 AM ‘Thurston Consetvation District

10125018 Profit 8 Loss

Accrual Basis January through September 201 8

Page 17 of 35

Jan - Sep 18
Ordinary Inceme/Expense
income
3300000 - Intergovermental Rev
3340000 -« State Grants 375,255.08
3370000 - Local Revenusa 1B‘i,890£9
Total 3300000 - intergovermental Rev 557,145.46
13400000 - Charges Goods&Sves 27,440.79
3600600 - Miscellaneous Revenue ' 64,130.21
3685000 - Assessment _ ‘_i_6,4?1.46
Total income L 665,153_7_.92
Gross Profit 865,187.92
Expense ‘
§531010 - Salarles & Benefits ! 419,043.45
5531030 + Supplies 31,888.03
5531040 - Services & Charges
5314108 - Professional Contract 81,327.63
5314100 - Professional Services o
5314101 - Legal Services 4,207.50
5314162 - Audit & Accounting 23,623.56
5314103 + Gomputer Services 12,898.88
5314104 - Janitorlal Services 2,652.37
5314111 - Lab Fees 3,396.00
5314412 - Bus Transportation 6,095.91
5314113 - Teacher Stipends/Subs 5,716.95
5314105 - Miscellaneous Services 2,956.19
§314100 - Profossional Services - Other 35,839.58
Total 5314100 - Professional Services 97,386.94
5314200 - Communications 4,636.17
5314300 - Travel 8,045.31
5314400 - Advertising 1,784.52
5314500 - Rentals & Leases 50,705.09
5314600 + Insurance Premiums 3,321.75
5314700 - Utility Services 4,203.65
5314900 - Miscellaneous 377274
Total 5531040 + Services & Charges 255,193.80
5531050 + Intergovernmental Svec
£355001 - Election Expense 5,550.00
Tota! 5531050 - Intergovernmental Svc 5,550,00
5531060 + Maintenance 1,198.31
5945360 - Caplital Outlays 1,671.38
5080000 - Other Financlng Uses 55,322.00
66100 - Cleaned up ltem Adj. Expense 17200
66900 - Reconciliation Piscrepancles 644.93

Page 1



9:25 AM " Thurston Conservation District

10/25/18 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through September 2018
Jan - Sep 18
Tolal Expernse - 770,684.90
Net Ordinary Income -105,496.98
Other Income/Expense
Other Expense L 3 164.00
Met Other Income -184.00
Net Income

Page 18 of 35

-105,680.08

—r——— e

Page 2




9:27 AM ' Thurston Conservation District

Page 19 of 35

e —

10725118 Profit & L.oss
Accrual Basis September 2018
Sep 18
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
3300000 - Intergovermental Rev
3340000 - State Grants 72,991.59
4370000 + Local Revenile o 29,237.70
Total 2300000 - Intergovermental Rev 102,229.29
3400000 - Gharges Goods&Sves 941.25
2600000 + Misceflaneous Revenue 14,604.41
3685000 - Assessment 41721
Total Income . 118,192.16
Gross Profit 118,192,16
Expense :
5531010 - Salaries & Beneflts 40,570.93
5531030 + Supplies 1,155.91
5431040 « Services & Charges
5314108 - Professlonal Contract 24,481,655
5314100 - Professional Services
5314102 - Audlt & Accounting 2,876.50
5414103 - Computer Services ~1,038.00
5314104 - Janitorlal Services 225.00
5314111 - L.ab Fees 718.00
5314113 « Teacher Stipends/Subs 170.00
5314105 - Miscetlaneous Services 10,00
5314100 - Professional Services - Other ) 1,638.10
Total 5314100 « Professlonal Services 6,675.80
5314200 - Communications 424 88
5314300 - Travel 164.08
5314500 - Rentals & Leases 8,831.12
5314700 - Utility Services 35713
5314900 - Miscellaneous o 20,91
Total 5531040 - Services & Charges 40,964.27
5531050 - intergovernmental Sve
5355001 + Election Expense o 5.550.00
Total 5531050 « Intergovernmental Sve 5,550.00
5531060 - Malntenanco 136.24
5045360 - Caplital Outlays 0.00
66900 - Reconclifation Discrepancies o 0.10
Total Expense R 88,377.46
Net Ordinary lneome "29,814.71
Not Income 29,814.71

- T L e S

Page 1



Thurston Conservation District

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison |
January through September 2018

9:29 AM

102518
Accrual Basis

Jan - Sop 18 Jan - Sep 17 $ Change % Change
Ordinary Income/Expense
lncome
3300000 - Intergovermental Rev
3340000 - State Grants _ 375,265.06 284,256.52 90,998.54 32.0%
3370000 - Local Revente 181,820.40 201,181.02 -19,290.62 -9.8%
Total 3300000 - ntergavermental Rev 567,145.46 485,437.54 71,707.92 14.8%
3400000 - Charges Goods&Sves 27,440.79 22,966,87 4,473.92 19.5%
3600000 - Miscellaneous Revenue 64,130.21 69,752.15 -5,621.94 -8.1%
3685000 - Assessment 16,471.46 N 317,721.50 -301,250.04 -34.8%
Total Income 66518792 895,87B.06 -230,690.14 -25.8%
Grass Profit 665,187.92 896,878.06 -230,690.14 -25.8%
Expense
5531610 - Salarles & Benelils 419,043.45 632,282,418 -213,249.03 -33.7%
§531030 - Supptles 31,889.03 46,993.25 «15,104.22 32.1%
5531040 - Services & Gharges
5314108 - Professional Contract 81,327.63 0,00 81,327.63 100.0%
5314100 - Professlonal Services
5314101 - Legal Services 4,207.50 Q.00 4,207.50 100.0%
5314102 - Audlt & Accounting 23,623.56 7,244,07 16,379.49 226.1%
5314163 - Computer Services 12,898.88 7,289.00 5,609.68 77.0%
5314104 + Janitorial Services 2,652.37 3,195.57 <643,20 -17,0%
5314111 - Lab Fees 3,396.00 2,425,860 1,270.40 59.8%
5344112 - Bus Transporiation 6,095.91 4,243.92 1,851.99 43.6%
5314143 - Teacher StipendsfSubs 5,716.95 5,400,94 307.01 5.7%
5314405 « Miscellaheous Services 2.956.19 16,216.88 -13,260.69 -81.8%
5314400 - Professional Services - Other 35.83915‘9 79,330.09 -43,480.51 -54.8%
Total 5314100 - Professlonal Services 97,386,94 126,055.07 -27,668.13 22.1%
5314200 - Communications 4,636.17 7.,684.06 -3,047.89 -39.7%
5344300 * Travel 8,0456.31 22,198.09 -14,152.78 -63.8%
5314400 - Advertising 1,794.52 2,075.85 -281.33 -13,6%
5314500  Rentals & L.eases 50,705.09 40,442.68 10,262.41 25 4%
5314600 - Insurance Premiums 3,321.75 7,184.45 -3,862.70 -53.8%
5314700 - Utility Services 4,203.65 3,691.687 511.98 13.0%
5314900 + Miscelianeous 3,772.74 11,689.40 -8,116.66 «68,3%
5631040 - Services & Charges - Other 0,00 178.15 -178.15 -100.0%
Total 5531040 - Services & Charges 255,193.80 220,'399.42 34,794.38 15.8%
5531040 - intergovernmental Sve
5355001 - Election Expense 5,550.00 0.00 556000 100.0%
Total 5531050 - Intergovernmental Sve 5,650.00 0.00 5,550.0C 100.0%
5531060 * Maintenance 1,198,31 3,056.38 -1,858.07 -50.8%
5945360 + Gapital Qutlays 1,671.38 5,308.62 -3,637.24 -68.5%
5980000 - Other Financing Uses
5983100 + Intergov't Agreement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5989600 + Coslt Share Program 55,322.00 21,972,655 33,340.45 161.8%
Page 1
Page 20 of 35




0:29 AM Thurston Conservation District

—_—  —

10/25/18 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis January through September 2018
Jan - Sep 18 Jan - Sep 17 % Change % Change
5980000 « Other Financing Uses - Other 3 0.00 1944000  -19,149.00 -100,0%
Total 5980000 - Qther Financing Uses 66,322.00 41,121.55 14,200.45 34.5%
65100 - Cleaned up ltem Adj. Expense 172.00 0.00 172.00 100.0%
§6900 - Recondlllation Discrepancies . 64493 0.00 644.93 100.0%
Total Expense 770,684.90 949,171.70 -17848680 -18.8%
Net Ordinary income -405,496.98 -63,293.64 -52,203.34 -98.0%
Other Income/Expense .
Other Expense j84.00 o 0.00 184.00 100.0%
Net Other Income - -184.00 0.00 -184.00 -100.0%
Net Income -405,680.98 -53,203.64 -52,387.34 -98.3%
Page 2

Page 21 of 35




9:14 AM Thurston Conservation District

100318 Reconciliation Summary
3082003 - Saving-2410 Shellfish Fund, Period Ending 08/31/2018

Aug 31, 18
Beglnning Balanca 48,697.98
Cileared Transactions .
Checks and Payments - 9 item © o -17,884,19
Deposits and Credits - 1 ftem 1.02°
Total Cleared Transactions B -47,883.17.
Cleared Balance ' 30,844.82 |
Reglstor Balance as of 08/31/2018 30,814.82 |
Ending Balance 30,814.82

Page 1

Page 22 of 35




9:14 AM
10/03/18

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Detail
3082003 - Saving-2410 Shellfish Fund, Period Ending 08/31/2018

Type Date Num Name Amount

Beglnning Balance

Cleared Transactlons
Checks and Payments - 1 item .

Transfer 09f19/2018 -17,884.19
Total Checks and Payments -17,884.19
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 00/30/2018 1.02
Tolat Depostts and Credits 1.02

Total Cleared Transactions -17,883.17

Cleared Batance 3 -17,883.17

Reglster Balance as of 08/31 {2018 ) -17,883.17

Ending Balance -47,883.17

Page 23 of 35

Balance

48,687.99

-17,884.19
-17,884.19

1.02

_1.02

-17,883.17
30,814.82
30,814.82

30,814.82

i

Page 1




'E}mbeg;}zd Bank

e

Senee L9715
Page lofl 09/30/2618
THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT :
SHELLFISH FUND
2918 PFERGUSON ST SW STE A BLDS 1 CYCLE-101 2410
TUMWATER WA 98512 '
REG SV MO STMT FxAk02410
BEGINNING RATE  0.03000 ’
PREVIOUS STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF 08/31/18 L iiciciiiannssiensensnss 48,697.99
PLUS 1 DEPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS 1.02
LESS 1 CHECKS AND OTHER DEBITS .iioievviitirsrmesnersrsenssnnens 17,884.19
LESS MAINTENANCE FEE .. 0
CURRENT STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF September 30 2018 .............................. 30,814.82
NUMBER OF DAYS IN THIS STATEMENT PERIOD: 30
*%% ELECTRONIC / NON-CHECK TRANSACTIONS ** %
Date Description Amount
09/19 August Invoices and Reallocate 17,884.19
#¥X DEPOSITS #**
Date Dascription ‘ Amount
09/30 INTEREST PAYMENT 1.02
*%% BALANCE BY DATE *#%
Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
08/31 48,697.99 09/12 30,813.80 09/30 30,814.82
PAYER FEDERAL ID NUMBER....cvevvevvreree 91-0260220
INTEREST PAID YEAR TO DATE......ccvenue 129.24

Federal law requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Ow privacy policy has not changed
and you may review our policy and practices with respect to your personal information at www.timberiandbank.com/privacy-policy
or we will mait you a free copy upon request If you call us at 1-800-562-8761.,

Member

FDI@ www.timbetlandbank.com . ‘ 5 Ji e

Page 24 of 35




9:16 AM
10/03M18

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Summary
3082002 - Saving-6568 - Timberland, Period Ending 09/30/2018

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credlts -1 ltem

Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance 7
Reglster Balance as of 08/30/2018

Ending Balance

Page 25 of 35

Sep 30, 18
1,216.49

1,216.50

e et r———

1,216.5
1,216.50

Page 1




9:16 AM Thurston Conservation District

10103/18 | Reconciliation Detail
3082002 - Saving-6568 - Timbetland, Period Ending 09/30/2018

Type Date Nam Name Cir Amount Balance

Beglnhing Balance 1,216.49
Cleared Transactions
Daposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 09/30/2018 X 0. 0.01
Total Deposlts and Credits ‘ o 0.01 0.01

Tolal Cleared Transactiona 0.01 S .01
Cleared Balance ) o 001 1,216.50
Register Balance as of 09/30/2018 . 0.01 1,218.50

Ending Balance - 0.01 1,216.50

Page 1

Page 26 of 35




i

N,
Timberland Bank
s \\:5;235 Ginee. 1915

Page Lofl 09/30/2018
TRURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
52918 YERGUSON 87 SW STE A BLDE 1 G kSR
TUMWATER WA 98512 CYCLE-101 6568

REG SV MO STMT *¥ 4% 16568

BEGINNING RATE ~ 0.01000

PREVIOUS STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF 08/31/18 v 1,216.49
PLUS 1 DEPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS .oviiviiimmseranmininnens 0t
LESS 0 CHECKS AND OTHER DEBITS ...oiveiimirinsimsnnsnnns [0
LESS MAINTENANCE FEE .. ovccmismremsssinsinnnrnrsasassrnnnmenees 0

CURRENT STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF September 30, 2018 ..o 1,216.50

NUMBER OF DAYS IN THIS STATEMENT PERIOD: 30
*%% DEPOSITS *+*

Date Pescription Amount
0%/30 INTEREST PAYMENT 01

*%*% BALANCE BY DATE ***

Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
08/31 1,216.49 09/30 1,216.50

PAYER FEDERAL ID NUMBER.....cooivneren 91-0260220

INTEREST PAID YEAR TO DATE..ooeeieiins 341

Federal law requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Our privacy policy has not changed
and you may review our policy and practices with respect to your personal information at www. timberlandbank.com/privacy-policy
or we will mall you a free copy upon request If you call us at 1-800-562-8761.

Member

’ N " iy EOUML HOUSING
FDI@ www. timberlandbanlk.com = PBEs

Page 27 of 35




941 AM Thurston Conservation District

10/03/48 Reconciliation Summary
3081001 - 308.10.01 Cash TimberLand Bank, Period Ending 09/30/2018

Sep 30, 18
Beginning Balance 61,137.81
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 21 items -52,646,25
Deposits and Credits ~ 22 items 55,813.04
Total Cleared Transactions ) 3,166.79
Cloared Balance ' ' 64,304.40
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 23 jteims -25,778.98
Total Uncleared Transactions -25.;1'?8.98
Register Balance as of 09/30/2018 38,525.42
New Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item ~1,255.86
Total New Transactions 1,266.86
Ending Balance . 39,781.28

Page 1

Page 28 of 35




g:11 AN
10003118

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Detail
3081001 - 308.10.01 Gash TimberLand Bank, Period

Ending 09/30/2018

Type Date Num

Beglnning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 21 items

Bill Pmi -Chack 0811412018 19736
Bill Pmt ~Chack 08/14/2048 10738
Bill Pmt -Check 0B/28/2018 197614
Bl Pmit ~Check 82812018 19755
Bilt Pl -Check par28/20b 197458
Bift Pmt -Check 08/2812018 19760
Bifl Pmt -Check 08/28{2018 19767
Bill Pt ~Check 08/28/2018 16756
Bill Pert -Check os/282018 19769
Check 09/03/2018 EFT
Liability Check 09/05/2018 EFT
Llability Check 09/06/2018 EFT
Liability Check 00/06/2018
{iability Check 09/06/2018 EFY
Liabllity Gheck 09/06/2018 EFT
Liability Gheck 0g/072018
Llabllity Chack 09/19/2018 19758
Liapitity Check 09/20/2018 EFT
Liabllity Choak 09/21/2018
Liabilily Check 097242018
Liabifity Check 08/26/2018 EFT

Total Checks and Payments
Deposits and Credits - 22 items
197

Bill Pmt -Check 0BM4/2018
Bil Pmt -Check 08/18/2018
Paycheck 09/07/2018 dd042...
Deposit 09/07/2018
Paycheck 09M06/2018 ddo4z...
Paycheck 0g/10/2018 ddD42...
Paycheck 09/10/2018 dd042...
Paycheck 0971012018 dd042...
Paycheck 09/1(42018 ddo42...
Paycheck GH10/2018 dd042...
Daposit 0810/2018
Deposit £9/13/2018
Daposit noM8/2018
Transfer 00/19/2018
Deposit 06/19/2018
Paycheck 09/24/2018 ddo4z...
Paycheck 09/25/2018 ddn4a...
Paycheck 09/256/2018 ddo42...
Paycheck 00/26/2018 ddo42...
Paycheck 09/25/2018 dd042...
Paycheck 09/25/2018 dd042...
Paycheck 0912512018 ddo42..

Total Deposits and Credils
Total Cleared Transaclions
Cleared Balance

Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 23 ltems

Liability Check 09/14/2018 19767
Bilt Pmt -Check 09/21/2018 19763
Biil Pmt -Check 092112018 19783
il Pmt -Check 04/21/2018 19766
Bill Pt -Check 09/21/2018 19781
Bill Pmt -Check 09/21/2018 19771
Blil Pmt -Check 0g/21/2018 19780
Bilt Pmt -Gheck 092112018 19782
Biit Pk -Check 0912112018 19762
Bill Pmt -Check og9r21/2018 19779

Name

WA §t University En...
United Concordia In...
Whitlock Limited Par...
Accountemps
OfficeTeam

Wells Fargo

L ewls County Conse..,
Hatch-Winecka, Am...
V3P - Vision Care
Regence - Health C...
Dept of Retirement ...
EFT Payment
QuickBooks Payrali ...
EFT Payment

EFT Payment
CuickBooks Payrolt ...
Dept of Retirement ...
Dept of Retirement ...
QuickBooks Payroll ...
CuickBooks Payroll ...
EFT Payment

Thurston Gounty Al...
Regence - Life nsur...
Blehop, Stephanie E

Hatch-Winecka, Am...
Moorehead, Sarah
Warren, Nicole A
White, Nora E
Bishop, Stephanie £
Healy, MaraE

Healy, Mara E

Healy, Mara E
Moorehead, Sarah
Warren, Nicole A
Bishop, Stephanie E
White, Nora &
Hatch-Winecka, Am...

Dept of Refirement ...
Accountemps
Whitlock Limited Par..,
Deschutes Law Group
WACD

OfficeTeam

WA St Universily En...
Wells Fargo

A & L Western Agric..,
Wa St Conservalian ...

Page 29 of 35

oir

Se B BB B DK DR FHK N FEVEYE 5 5 3 -

XXX%XK)XKXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

Amount

-2,827.00
-387.20
-4,468.66
-1,852.50
-1,600.00
-1,000.00
“152.40
-56.17
-46.92
-2,448.89
-15.00
-3,093.82
-2,981.08
-1,5614.36
76714
-10,443.87
-5,629.76
-15.00
-703.13
-6,558.61
-3,074,84

-52,646.25

0.00
0.00
0.00
2,483.97
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.0G
0.00
0.00
417.21
4,397.37
6,070.65
17,884.19
26,659.65
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

e ———

55,813.04

———

3,166.79

e ———————

3,166.79

-6,026.48
-4,338.46
-3,960.00
-2,000.00
-1,877.00
-1,800.00
-1,467.00
-1,000.00

510,00

-577.00

Balance

61,137.6

-2,827.00
. -3,224.20

-7.692.86

-9,545.36
-11,146.36
-12,145.36
-12,297.76
-12,363,93
-12,400.85
-14,849.74
-i4,864.74
-17,858.56
-20,930.64
-22,454.00
-23,221.14
-33,665.01
-39,284.77
-39,300.77
-40,012.90
-49,571.41
-52,646.25

— e —

-52,646.25

0.00
0.00
0.00
2,483.97
2,483.97
2,483.97
2,483.97

2,483.97 |

2,483.97

2,483.97

2,901.18

7,298.55
42,369.20
30,253.39
55,813.04
55,813.04
£5,812.04
56,813.04
55,813.04
55,813,04
55,813.04
55,813.04

55,813.04
3,166.79

—

64,304.40

-6,026.48
-10,364.94
-14,314.94
-16,314.94
-18,191.94
-19,991.94
-21,458.94
-22,458.94
-23,068.94
-23,645.84

Page 1



9:11 AM Thurston Conservation District

10103718 Reconciliation Detail
3081001 - 308.10.01 Cash TimberLand Bank, Period Ending 09/30/2018

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance

BIll Pmi -Check 09/21/2018 19764 Comcast -370.64 -24,016.58
Bilt Pmt -Check ©08121/2018 19777 United Concordia br... -309.26 -24,325.84
Bill Pmt -Check 09/21/2018 19774 Puget Sound Energy -262.92 -24,688.76
Bill Pmt -Check Q8/21/2018 19776 Ricoh, USA Inc - Us... -236.86 -24,826.62
Bilk Pmit -Check 08/21/2018 19768 Jan-Pro Cleaning Sy... -225.00 -25,050.62
BIIf Pmt -Check 097212018 18775 Rlcoh USA, Ine. ~184.67 -25,235.29
Bill Pmt ~Check 08/21/2018 19772 Olyimpla Schooi Dist.., -170.00 -25,405.28
Bill Pmt -Check 09/21/2018 19769 LaMotte Company -161.26 -25,666.55
Bill Pm{ -Check 09/21/2018 19773 Pacific Disposal -50,70 -25,617.26
Bilt Prdl -Check 09/21/2018 19767 GRuB -50.00 -25,667.25
Bilf Pmit -Check 0912112018 19778 V8P - Vlsion Care -42.22 -25,709.47
Bl Pmi -Check 09/21/2018 16770 Lewis County Conse... -38.10 -25,747.57
Bill Pmt -Check Dor212018 19765 Culllgan Water Ca, -31.41 -25,778.98
Total Checks and Paymenis -26,778.98 -25,778.98

Totat Uncleared Transactions -25,778.98 -25,778.98

Reglster Balance as of 09/30/2018 : -22,612.19 38,625.42

New Transactions
Deposlts and Credits -1 item

Depaosit 10/01/2018 1,255.86 1,255.86
Total Deposits and Credits 1,255,86 1,255.86

Total New Transactlons ' 1,285.86 1,265.86
Ending Batance «21,356.33 39,781.28

Page 2

Page 30 of 35




)
&

Timberland Bank
CRRNN= - S
Page tof3 09/30/2018
THURSTON COMNMSERVATION DISTRICTE
2918 TERGUIOW ST SW STE A BLDG 1 L
TUMWATER WA 08512 CYCLE-030 : HRERTRGE54
FREE BUSINESS CK **%*06554
PREVIOUS STATEMENT BALANCE ASOF 0B/31/18 L iecicnervinsisen 61,137.61
pLUS 6 DEPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS oo vviricvrnrvrisisiirees 55,813,04
LESS 21 CHECKS AND OTHER DEBITS coomeeevvvvvcvvcnmrmrranearenns . 52,646.25
LESS MAINTENANCE FEE .oiiiriiirisercennremsemnmsin e, 0

CURRENT STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF September 30, 2018 ... 64,304.40
HUMBER OF DAYS IN THIS STATEMENT PERIOD: 30 :

#%% CHECK TRANSACTIONS ***

Date Serial Amount Date Serial Amount Date Serial Amount
09/13 19736 *  2,827.00 09/10 19756 56,17 09/17 19759 46.92
09/13 19738 * 397.20 09/12 19757 152.40 09/10 19760 1,000.00
09/11 19755 #  1,852.50 09/11 19758 1,600.00 09/28 19761 4,468.66

{*) Asterlsk denotes skip in check sequence

¥k Fl ECTRONIC / NON-CHECK TRANSACTIONS *#*

Date ' Description Amount
09/06 AC InstaMed REGENCE BL 2,448.89
09/06 AC INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS 2,981.08
09/07 AC WA DEPT RET SYS DRS EPAY 15.60
09/067 AC IRS USATAXPYMT 767,14
09/07 . AC IRS USATAXPYMT 1,514.36
03/07 AC IRS USATAXPYMT 3,093.82
09/07 AC INTUIT PAYROLL § QUICKBOOKS 10,443.87
09/12 AC WA DEPT RET SYS DRS EPAY ' 5,629.76
09/21 AC INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS 703.13
09/24 AC WA DEPT RET SYS DRS EPAY ' 15.00
09/24 AC INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS 9,558.51
09/27 AC IRS USATAXPYMT 3,074.84
*%% DEPOSITS #* ¥
Date Description Amount
09/07 AC WA ST SCC VENDOR PAY 2,483,97
09/10 AC TCTREASURER 1104 CITYREMIT 417.21

Federa! law requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your persenal Information, Qur privacy policy has not changed
and you may review our policy and practices with respect to your personal information at www.timberlandbank.com/privacy-policy
or we will mail you a free copy upon request If you call us at 1-800-562-8761.

Member

FDl@ www.limberlandbank.com 12y FURTER

Page 31 of 35



aberland Bank
S Snes 1905

Tt

Homdna

Page 2of3 09/30/2018

THURSTON CONSERVATION DEISTRICT

2918 FERGUSON ST SW SYE A BLDG 1 *EAXFNGEEH

TUMWATER WA 98512

®X% DEPQSITS #**
Date Description Amount
09/13 CK Deposit 4,397.37
09/19 "AC WA ST 5CC VENDOR PAY 25,559.65
09/19 August Invoices and Reatlocate 17,884.19
09/21 CK Depuosit 5,070.65
*%% BAL ANCE BY DATE %%

Date Balance Date Balance Date’ Balance Date Balance
08/31 61,137.61 09/06 55,707.64 09/07 42,357.42 09/10 41,718.46
09/11 38,265.96 08/12 32,483.80 09/13 33,656.97 09/17 33,610.05
09/19 77,053.89 09721 81,421.41 09/24 71,847.90 09/27 68,773.06

02/28 64,304.40

NOTE: THERE 15 A NEW PHONE NUMBER TO CALL TO REPORT A

LOST OR STOLEN CARD. THE NUMBER 1S 1-800-500-1044.

Member

FDI@ www.timberlan&bmlk. com

Page 32 of 35

o1 By




Page: 3 of 3

mmmmmm—“ 2] T A
THURSTON CONSERVATION OIS TRIGT ni b bt 19736 s aror 19759
AMTRFERLZLN 3T i, SUTTER lﬁlw&;’!miﬂ'\l &= TERTIML WALHHTION GIALLT 46 WLk L]
TR 2tk YA s e . R N 1y
Bt VIR SUE0 Lrderv ty Ent gy Program. 5 241700 E
Ton VoI B Hheded Tady Shan et LAY P
¥iAdeEs Wiribiy Er otk l
o Wy Eragriveyam TS 107 £QHA YATGH BT §
FARNRE |
OTERTA BRI ‘ :
- # W DRII LT
L B anmmms s J
“O19236F UARELTOTEMI WR0OOES 5L rox‘wsqn' :‘!25”015'.-' kql:lnm.szil.-* . v
09/13/2048 19736 $2,827.00 09]17[ 2018 19759 $46 9'.2
LA TTHTRIC WW - " T = T I -
- o wraa
) Tﬂ“ﬂ*rnuﬁnunm Anmlsmmr e

nrmlwn far

T e
s

5, Trved fifretpSnmand Biteer
¥ Garoseta e O

MaTarnuL .
3% PR BAMI 5 . -
a X

[ ; [ . ; )
NAZYLTOPELE LHOO0R S5 . VOIATEDY B3 RELI0PELY lﬂﬂDDEEE‘-l‘
e s Lot
09/13/2018 19738 $397.20 09/10/20618 19760 $1,000.00
Y 19755 THURSTON CONSERVATION ISR * - 1976t
HURBTOH CO)NER\"I\TIOH QMTRIGT TIHELALARD X T
uwumm tmum '”"&"?;‘5’3.’»,?1‘3:",5.““ umm"m‘”' ﬂmlﬂm%.k ummr e w P .
e s . PR yra Bk L g Pataneip | 5 ms
e . T Thves F b oty 57
g t POAAN -
hoasieaga prmcal ;s‘m.mv-...._f . ﬁ,’f{’*g}m”;{;‘mﬂ umm-«mumm vt
POB2ATONS Tk, WASASTE
Lan Angrhea CASRINBG p/’ l’ *
. 4;&«?, £
Ty v (hfehy Rard- -.-nm-nu—\u.a
. Iy IS [ RSt Ev—_
VRIS 325470750 LICORE SEu" wOLITR W 35 TETSM AGOODBSELW
09/11/2018 19755 $1,852 50 09/28/2018 19761 $4,468.66
, 1768 |
THURB‘!OII COHSERVAHDN DIHYRK:!‘ mw!gﬁ:ammnm e 3
rmlmz.n,wa g;"_, UL YiA 31281 B0 ,
prmel B, JepBisagae] § e i
FpSard 1 3
DOIARY N

I stahWeasig hooy B [erglaret} THSRICE oL T B Y .
.

I - 0 wee J

YOIGTSE MAZELMTISLE LRORORSTLY

09/10/2018 19756 $56 17

P R XTI o A T T oo s
0757
TN RLAND BN
RO S T A hddds
LAKTATER VYA 512415 S WA paFH AR
l"'a '< SNt
m’fmn "Auwswu&vwmamm g hat-t1
=
- Oogibedicd by T and (0HES"
B TALLANS
wairdl TRI( ETHAARA R T

e
18 i)
Cooksls WASRRATID ;ﬁ/f-

. A [

VELAIS e LAESLTATSLEG MRDUDEEE’-“‘

09/12/2018 19757 $152.40
T s r—

“WEL
18768
EYELALIHG.
s srnu Cg:}fuﬁkynﬂnmﬂ il ALITATICIN %S‘me AmI
ly",vAl:e;.rm [enid UYL A, 1T e
ALINE welein s . i
OALANGE
- ‘ DDLLARS
%‘:,";:;;5 TLRSY N AT Al Kt
’ .
Larhacee), CARFLTEN f_,
g flocsolf— Vi
e U meoan st
o &
L POLT 750 13125100755 LUODOESSHY

09/11/2018 19758 $1,600.00

Page 33 of 35



1:56 PM
10/15M18

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Summary
Woells Fargo, Period Ending 09/18/2018

Beghinlng Balance
Cleared Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - 17 items
Payments and Cradlis - 3 items

Total Cleared Transactlons
Cleared Balance

Uncleared Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - § items
Payments and Credils - 1 item

Total Uncleared Transactions
Register Balance as of 09/18/2018

New Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - 9 ifems
Paymentis and Credits - 1 itern

Total New Transactions

Ending Balance

Page 34 of 35

Sep 18,18

-1,621.50
2,000.10

478.60

9,343.36

8,864.76

-514.67
1,000,00

8,379.43

-387.00
500.00

113.00

8,266.43

Page 1




1:56 PM Thurston Conservation District

40MEHA Reconciliation Detail
. Welis Fargo, Period Ending 09/18/2018

Type Date Nun Name Clr Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 9,343.36
Cleared Transactions :

" Charges and Cash Advances - 17 items

Credit Card Charge 08/16/2018 8453 UPS X -14.68 -11.58
Credil Card Charge  08/24/2018 Terry's Autornotive ... X -742.3% -763.97
Credit Card Charge  08/24/2018 8440 Cily of Olympia X -3.25 -157.22
Credit Card Charge  0B/25/2018 8474 UPS X +10.38 767 .61
Credit Card Charge  08/25/2018 Home Depot X -5,95 -773.58
Credit Card Charge  08/30/2018 Office Depot X -32.66 -806.22
Credit Card Charge  08/30/2018 UPS X -11.98 -818.20
Credit Card Charge  09/05/2018 OfficeSupply.com X -337.05 -1,1565.25
Credit Card Charge  09/06/2018 . LUPS X 0,76 -1,165.01
Credit Card Charge  0%/07/2018 8446 Harbor Freight X -161.50 -1,328.51
Credit Card Charge  09/07/2018 T Sheels X -55.00 -1,381.51
Credit Card Charge  09/10/2018 Raiphs Thriftway X -17.37 1,398,886
Credit Card Charge  09/10/2018 Olympla Food Co-Op X «12.54 -1 41142
Credit Card Charge  09/12/2018 Les Schwab Tire Ce... X -14.87 ~1,426.29
Credit Card Charge - 06/12/2018 uprs X -10.39 -1,436.68
General Journal 09H 82018 10311... X -0.10 -1,436.7/8
Credit Card Charge  14/11/2018 X -84.72 -1,521.50
Total Charges and Cash Advances ~1,521.60 -1,521.50
Payments and Credits - 3 Hems
Bill 1213172012 Wells Fargo X 0.10 0.10
Bitl 08/14/2018 Wells Fargo X 1,000.00 1,000.10
Bill 08/24/2018 . Wells Fargo X 1,000.00 2,000,10
Total Cleared Transaclions 478,60 478.60
Cleared Balance ) -478.60 8,864.76
Uncleared Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - § ltems
Credit Card Charge  09/14/2018 Forestry Supplies -200.48 -209.48
Credit Card Charge  09/14/2018 8438 Harbor Frelght -137.97 -347 .45
Cradit Card Charge  09/14/2018 Crains Office Supply -§3.14 -410.59
Cradit Card Charge  09/18/2018 Women in Agriculiure -64.08 -474.67
Credit Card Charge  09/18/2018 Island Enterprisa -40.00 -514.67
Total Charges and Cash Advances -514.67 -514.67
Payments and Gredits - 1 ltem '
B 08/31/2018 . Wells Fargo 1,000.00 1,060.00
Tolal Uncleared Transactions 486.33 485.33
Ragister Balance as of 09/18/2018 . -963.93 8,370.43
New Transactions '
Charges and Cash Advances - 8 ltem
Credlt Card Charge  09/20/2018 ' US Postal Service -33.50 -33.50
Credit Card Charge  09/21/2018 Sunbird -25.28 -58.78
Credit Card Charge  09/21/2018 8465 UPrS -10.59 -69.37
Credli Card Charge  09/21/2018 Fred Meysr 435 : 73.72
Credit Card Charge  09/26/2018 Terry's Automotive .., -86.09 -169.81
Credit Card Charge  10/01/2018 8470 ups -9.76 -179.57
Credit Card Charge  10/04/2018 B473 uprs <11.98 ~191.55
Credit Card Charge  10/07/2018 T Sheots -55,45 -247.00
Credit Card Charge  10/09/2018 8472 {sland Enterprise -140.00 -387.00
Total Charges and Gash Advances ~387.00 ~387.00
Payments and Credlts - 1 item
Bill 10/03/2018 Walls Fargo soooo 500,00
Total New Transactions 113.00 113.00
Ending Balahce ‘ ,076.93 8,266.43

Page 1

Page 35 0of 35



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN GRAYS HARBOR CONSERVATION DISTRICT
AND THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

SCOPE OF WORK #1

REQUEST: Grays Harbor Conservation District {GHCD) staff will assist Thurston Conservation
District Landowners by developing a minimum of eleven Individual Stewardship Plans under the
Voluntary Stewardship Program. In addition, GHCD staff will attend VSP Workgroup meetings,
as requested by the workgroup, and participate as the technical service provider in TCD led
outreach events.

Deliverables:
e Develop a minimum of 11 Individual Stewardship Plans
e Attend up to 4 outreach events
s Participate in VSP workgroup meetings, as requested

DURATION: Work to be completed by June 30, 2019.

COST: Not to exceed 530,000

Thurston Conservation District GRAYS HARBOR Conservation District

Eric Johnson /Date Mike Nordin /Date
Board Chair District Manager




Office of the Washington State Auditor
Pat McCarthy

October 23, 2018

Board of Supervisors and Sarah Moorehead, Interim Executive Director
Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson Street SW

Tumwater, WA 98512

We are pleased to confirm the audit to be performed by the Office of the Washington State Auditor
for the Thurston Conservation District. This letter confirms the nature and limitations of the audit, as
well as responsibilities of the parties and other engagement terms.

Office of the Washington State Auditor Responsibilities

Accountability Audit

In accordance with RCW 43.09.260, we will perform an accountability audit for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2015, 2016, and 2017, of the District’s compliance with applicable state laws,
regulations, policies and procedures, and safeguarding of public resources in areas representing the
highest risk of fraud, loss, abuse, or noncompliance.

Areas will be selected for audit using a risk-based approach and will be identified in the audit entrance
conference.

Upon completion of our audit we will issue a written report describing the overall results and
conclusions for the areas we examined.

Other SAQ Responsibilities
Additionally, the Office of the Washington State Auditor will:

+  Provide the Board of Supervisors with timely notification if we identify issues that require
further audit work and increase audit costs.

»  Will communicate status of the audit during weekly progress meetings to be held on Thursdays
with the audit liaison.

+ Safeguard District financial records and documentation from loss, damage, and inadvertent
release to unauthorized persons.

Reporting Levels for Audit Issues
Issues identified through the auditing process will be communicated as follows. Failure to
appropriately address audit issues may result in escalated reporting levels.
. Findings formally address issues in an audit report. Findings report significant deficiencies
and material weaknesses in internal controls; misappropriation; and material abuse or non-

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 * Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 « (360) 902-0370 « Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov



compliance with laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements. You will be given the
opportunity to respond to a finding, and this response, or a synopsis of it, will be published in
the audit report.

* Management letters communicate contro! deficiencies, non-compliance or abuse with a less-
than-material effect on the financial statements or other issues with significance to the audit
objectives, Management letfets are referenced, but not included, in the audit report,

*  Exit items address control deficiencies or non-compliance with laws or regulations that have
an insignificant or immaterial effect on the audit objectives, or errors with an immaterial effect
on the financial statements. These issues are informally communicated to management, but
do not warrant the attention of those charged with governance and are not referenced in the
audit report.

Client’s Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the cash basis Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting System Manual (BARS), this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. Our audit does not relieve management or the governing body of their responsibilities.

Management is also responsible for:

* Selecting and applying appropriate administrative and accounting policies.

*  [Establishing and maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting, compliance,
and safeguarding of public resources.

*  Designing and following effective controls to prevent and detect fraud, theft, and loss.

*  Ensuring compliance with laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

* Making all financial records and related information available to us.

+ Correcting the financial statements based on the results of our audit.

* Identifying and providing copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other studies
that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations
have been implemented.

+  Promptly reporting to us knowledge of any fraud, allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
involving management, employees or others, in accordance with RCW 43.09.185.

« Providing us with a management representation letter, on the District’s own letterhead, that
confirms certain representations, both express and implied, which we will request at the
conclusion of our audit. This letter includes representations regarding legal matters. A
separate letter may be needed from the District’s legal counsel.

* Following up and taking corrective action on all audit findings, including, when applicable,
preparing a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan on the
District’s own letterhead.

Management will provide the Office of the Washington State Auditor with the information required
for performing the audit and is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of that information.
Management will notify the Office of the Washington State Auditor when any documents, records,
files, or data contain information that is covered by confidentiality or privacy laws, such as HIPAA.

All misstatements identified by the audit will be discussed with management. Material misstatements
corrected by management and all uncorrected misstatements will be communicated at the exit
conference, as required by professional auditing standards.




Management’'s Written Representations
At the conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written representations from you about the
audit, including items discussed above.

Additionally, the District will:
» Interact with auditors professionally and respectfully and promptly respond to auditor requests
and also communicate issues and concerns to the auditors.
+  Provide requested documentation in a timely manner.

Estimated Audit Costs and Timeline

We estimate the cost of the audit work to be $9,500, with work expected to commence by October 22,
2018. Invoices for these services will be prepared and presented each month as our audit work
progresses.

We anticipate our reports, which will be addressed to the District’s governing body and published on
our website www.sa0.wa.gov to be available to you and the public as outlined below. These estimates
are based on timely access to financial information and no significant audit reporting issues. The
estimated cost and completion date may change if unforeseen issues arise or if significant audit issues
are identified necessitating additional audit work. We wilt promptfy notify you if this is the case.

Report Date*
Independent Auditor’s Report on Accountability December
2018

*Report Issuance Dates Are Estimates Only

The audit documentation for this engagement, which may contain confidential or sensitive
information, is the property of SAQ and constitutes a public record under Chapter 42.56 RCW.
Subject to applicable laws and regulations, appropriate individuals, as well as audit documentation,
will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to appropriate auditors and reviewers,
District’s management and governing body, and federal agencies, for purposes of a public records
request, a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight
responsibilities.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the
report release (publish) date in accordance with the public records retention schedule established by
the Washington Secretary of State.

Expected Communications

During the course of the audit, we will communicate with the District’s selected audit liaison, Sarah
Moorehead, Interim Executive Director, on the audit status, any significant changes in our planned
audit scope or schedule and preliminary results or recommendations as they are developed. The audit
liaison is responsible for regularly updating the District’s management and the governing body on
these matters. We may also provide direct communication of these matters to management and the
governing body as needed or at the District’s request.




Please contact us if, during the audit, any events or concerns come to your attention of which we
should be aware. We will expect the audit liaison to keep us informed of any such matters.

Audit Dispute Process

Please contact the Audit Manager or Assistant Director to discuss any unresolved disagreements or
concerns you have during the performance of our audit. At the conclusion of the audit, we will
summarize the results at the exit conference. We will also discuss any significant difficulties or
disagreements encountered during the audit and their resolution.,

By signing and returning this letter you acknowledge that the foregoing is in accordance with your
understanding. Please contact us with any questions.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and look forward to working with you and your
staff.

Sincerely,

Bryson Bristol, Audit Manager 10/23/18
Office of the Washington State Auditor

District Response:

This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.

Board of Supervisors Date Sarah Moorehead Date
Interim Executive Director







Letter of Reprimand —~ Acting Executive Director - Thurston Conservation District

To: Sarah Moorchead

From: Eric Johnson, Chair TCD Board of Supervisors
Date: 103018

Re: Letter of Reprimand

This is an official written reprimand for your failure to perforin the functions of your
position, Acting Executive Director, despife previous formal requests, including by written
email and by public direction at public meeting of the Board of Supervisors. You have
failed to appropriately comply with the directions of the Board of Supervisors and of the
Chair of the Board of Supervisors, Thurston Conservation District. Specifically, you have
failed to submit, in a timely manner the weekly staff reports, which are required as part of
duty to act "in consultation and communication with the board.” Furthet, you have failed,
despite repeated requests and direction, to ensure that the Board had accurate meeting
minutes that could be approved by the Board under its duties under applicable statutes,
including the Open Public Meetings Act, which is a violation of your obligation to ensure
"ail district functions and services are managed and provided in accordance with all
applicable laws, regulations, and district policies. Finally, you have failed to pursue the
disciplinary action begun by your predecessor, at the request of the Board, against Amy
Hatch-Wineka, which is violation of both your duty to manage employees in accordance
with TCD policy and in consultation with the Board and of your duty o ensure that all
district functions and services are done in accordance with district policies. I am also
reminding you of the critical importance that your exercise of dependable good judgment,
and as an employee enfrusted with management responsibilities requires. Because of your
position, further diligence in carrying out your responsibilities is required for the future.

You have received many verbal reminders and e-mails of your many and innportant duties,
The Board has noted, in the minutes of several meetings, that you have failed to perform or
timeély perform these duties. With this letter of reprimand, 1 am reminding you of the
critical importance of you following the direction of the Board of Supervisors.

These are serious breaches of your expected and entrusted managerial role. Futther,
together, they reveal a pattern of intentional noncompliance or gross negligence in
performing your management role. The Board considers your failure to perform your
functions propetly as being severe enough io justify employment termination if you
continue to fail to perform those functions, as well as justifying a formal reprimand to be
added to your file. This letter both serves as a formal reprimand and as notice of
noncompliance needing correction, with the failure to correct being grounds for
termination. Therefore, another breach of our confidence in your ability to carry out any of
your expected managerial roles will result in additional diseiplinary action up to and
including the possibility of employment termination.

A copy of this reprimand will be placed in your official personnel file,
Signature:

Supervisor Name: Eric Johnson, Chair







r'h‘(‘yﬂ-;i

))\\\N

Conservgtion
= District =

% ( &
t,,ﬁ) ™ 4 a,“o

'”“lrstof‘c

To: Commissioners of the Washington State Conservation Commission
From: Sarah Moorehead, Interim Executive Director

October 4, 2018

Re: Thurston CD’s Compliance with 2018 CAPP

Dear Commissioners,

Please find the enclosed draft action plan to address Thurston Conservation District’s
compliance with the 2018 Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP). On
September 25“‘, 2018, Thurston CD Supervisors met during a regular public meeting to discuss
the elements of the CAPP that were found to be in non-compliance. Detailed in the attached
draft action plan, is the progress Thurston CD has made to date, along with additional steps our
District will take to ensure these issues are resolved efficiently and adequately. We apologize
for the delay in our response and would like the Commission to know that we are taking our
compliance in the program seriously. We also welcome additional feedback and guidance on
our attached plan as we continue to revisit, revise and make progress towards compliance.

The reduction in funding has certainly put the District in financial hardship, especially when it
comes to covering our administrative and operating (non-grant funded) expenses. Staff capacity
is limited, plantings and implementation projects will be delayed, soil testing and equipment
rental services have been suspended, our 2019 Annual Native Plant Sale and Festival has been
cancelled, landowner cost share reimbursements are subject to delay, and our ability to offer
services has been greatly limited to small portions of Thurston County. This results in extensive
impacts to our community members, our public reputation, and the conservation of resources
throughout our precious landscape. Very importantly, Thurston CD is also heavily focused on
finalizing the process to secure Rates and Charges funding for collection beginning in 2019. At
this time, we have very limited capacity to continue support our local Thurston County
Commissioners in this process, jeopardizing the success of this initiative, as well as, the overall
long-term viability of Thurston CD.

t: 360.754.3588 o f:360.236.0941 o www.thurstoned.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

L Iv]G)




On September 20"‘, 2018 a motion was taken by the Commission to suspend all WSCC direct
funding to Thurston CD, detailing that a response addressing the non-compliance was to be
received by and presented at the November 29" 2018 wscc meeting. | am humbly writing to
ask the Commissioners of the Washington State Conservation Commission to consider holding a
special meeting before this date to consider rescinding this motion and to restore all funding
for Thurston CD as soon as possible. We hope to minimize the impacts of this funding loss to
the health of our organization and the needs of our local taxpayers.

We look forward to re-building a collaborative relationship and hope to focus on strengthening
our District’s governance now and into the future.

Thank you for your consideration.

Interim Executive Director

Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson St. SW, Ste A Tumwater, WA 98512
(360) 754-3588 ext. 136
smoorehead@thurstoncd.com

CC: Marl Clark, Washington State Conservation Commission
Alison Halpern, Washington State Conservation Commission
Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors

[Enclosure: 2018 CAPP Action Plan]

t: 360.754.3588 e f:360.236,0941 o www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

L Iv])




LN

Conservation
WDlstrlctE

(o o

”’ltlstoﬂc

Thurston Conservation District

Conservation Accountability and Performance Program
Draft Action Plan
September 25, 2018

COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENT

TCD has hired general counsel to be present at all TCD Board Meetings beginning with 8/20/2018.

TCD ACTION
TCD attorney continues to review and provide guidance for compliance with OPMA, and currently
represents TCD in all OPMA related litigation.
One TCD Supervisor and Executive Director have completed OPMA training since funding
suspension. Additional Supervisors plan to revisit training.
Currently the OMPA violation is a disputed issue involved in pending litigation and not an
established violation.

COMPLIANCE 9. State Public Reco

REQUIREMENT

TCD ACTION

~TCD Supervisoré, under guidance of legal cbunse!, will develop a policy update to address public

information not housed within the ability of District staff to obtain, specifically requests for
information of TCD Supervisors.

One TCD Supervisor and Executive Director have completed OPMA training since funding
suspension. Additional Supervisors plan to revisit training.

Currently, all requestors of PDRs have been provided with an appropriate response, including those
requests made directly to TCD Supervisors. TCD has tracking mechanism for incoming PDRs to
monitor requests, installments and fulfillments to ensure requestors receive information according
to required timeline.

t: 360.754,3588 e f: 360.236.0941 ¢ www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

000




%rt‘w‘vﬂ;
))\\
Conservation

EDistrict o
o o

”’ lustot\c

COMPLIANCE = 12. Keeping public informed of conservation district activities. (RCW 89.08.220 (13))

REQUIREMENT

TCD ACTION TCD has developed a system to address revisions to public meeting minutes and approval of
minutes within one (1) month of the meeting date.
TCD attorney will develop a streamlined minutes template by the October Board Meeting.
TCD Supervisors are in the process of scheduling a meeting with staff to review approved past
meeting minutes, to ensure accuracy. Minutes will then be signed by the Chair and posted to the
TCD website.

COMPLIANCE 15. Demonstrated diligence in complying with st te and federalstatutes related to

REQUIREMENT

contracting, non-discrimination, labor laws, etc tion:of up-to-date policies
and training, ' :

TCD ACTION

TCD Supervisors hired attom&on‘ 8.20.2018 to maintain compliance. A Special Meeting was held in
Executive Session on 9.28.2018 to receive legal advice in regards to employment matters.

t: 360.754.3588 e f: 360.236,0941 o www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

f1v]c)




'U’Hrstof\cé‘

To: Commissioners of the Washington State Conservation Commission
From: Eric Johnson, Thurston CD Board Chair
October 30, 2018

Re: Thurston €D’s Compliance with 2018 CAPP

Dear Commissioners,

tion District’s
Program (CAPP}. On
eting to discuss

Please find the enclosed draft action plan to add hurston Co
compliance with the 2018 Conservation Acco
September 25" 2018, Thurston CD Supervisor
the elements of the CAPP that were found to be in n

draft action plan, is the progress Th

ility and Performal

during a.regular pub

District will take to ensure these issu

small-portions of Thurston County. This results in extensive
s, our public reputation, and the conservation of resources
ape. Very importantly, Thurston CD is also heavily focused on
finalizing the process tose Rates and Charges funding for collection beginning in 2019. At
this time, we have very limited capacity to continue support our local Thurston County
Commissioners in this process, jeopardizing the success of this initiative, as well as, the overali

long-term viability of Thurston CD.

t: 360.754.3588 = {:360.236.0941 » www.thurstoned.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512




On September 20", 2018 a motion was taken by the Commission to suspend all WSCC direct
funding to Thurston CD, detailing that a response addressing the non-compliance was to be
received by and presented at the November 29", 2018 WSCC meeting. | am humbly writing to
ask the Commissioners of the Washington State Conservation Commission to consider holding a
special meeting before this date to consider rescinding this motion and to restore all funding
for Thurston CD as soon as possible. We hope to minimize the impacts of this funding loss to
the health of our organization and the needs of our local taxpayers.

We look forward to re-building a collaborative relationshi hope to focus on strengthening

our District’s governance now and into the future.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Eric Johnson
Board Chair

t: 360.754.3588 = f: 360,236.0941 = www.thurstoned.com
2918 Ferguson 5T 5W 5TE A Tumwater, WA 98512




f\’.)\{u\\

) ) \\N

Conservation
ET“Dlstrlctﬁ

, Ko o

Jhlllstoﬂc

Thurston Conservation District

Conservation Accountability and Performance Program
Draft Action Plan
September 25,2018

COMPLIANCE 8. Open Public Meetings Act is followed
REQUIREMENT =

aingze__x_:egltive sessions (RCW 42.30)

TCD ACTION TCD has hired general counsel to be egesent at all TCD Board Meetings beginning with 8/20/2018.
TCD attorney continues to review and provide guidance for compliance with OPMA, and currently
represents TCD in all OPMA related litigation.

One TCD Supervisor and Executive Director have completed OPMA training since funding
suspension. Additional Supervisors plan to revisit training.

Currently the OMPA violation is a disputed issue involved in pending litigation and not an
established violation.

Training: TCD Board and Interim Executive Director reviewed and discussed the Washington State
Attorney General’s Office video on Open Public Meetings Act compliance at the 10-30-2018
Thurston CD Board Work Session.

COMPLIANCE jf'"
REQUIREMENT

t is followed (RCW 42.56)

TCD ACTION TCD Superwsors under gmdance of Iegal counsel, will develop a policy update to address public
information not housed within the ability of District staff to obtain, specifically requests for
information of TCD Supervisors.

Currently, all requestors of PDRs have been provided with an appropriate response, including those
requests made directly to TCD Supervisors. TCD has tracking mechanism for incoming PDRs to
monitor requests, installments and fulfillments to ensure requestors receive information according
to required timeline.

Training: One TCD Supervisor and Executive Director have completed OPMA training since funding

t: 360.754.3588 e f:360.236.0941 o www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

vl




Cons_ervgtion
?Dlstrlct.@

, Ko o0

bllrstoﬂc

suspension. Additional Supervisors plan to revisit training.

COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENT

12. Keeping public informed of conservation district activities. (RCW 89.08.220 (13))

TCD ACTION

TCD has developed a system to address revisions to public meeting minutes and approval of
minutes within one (1) month of the meeting date.

TCD attorney will develop a streamlined minutes template by the October Board Meeting.
TCD Supervisors are in the process of scheduling a meeting with staff to review approved past
meeting minutes, to ensure accuracy. Minutes will then be sighed by the Chair and posted to the

TCD website.

Training:

COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENT

state and federal statutes related to

and training.

TCD ACTION

TCD Supemsors hlred attorney on 8 20 2018 to maintain compllance A Special Meeting was held in
Executive Session on 9.28.2018 to receive legal advice in regards to employment matters.

Training:

: 360.754.3588 e f:360.236.0941 o www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

006







CONTRACT NUMBER: SUBRECIPIENT
Washington State Departmentof | CBO23407 Dves [INO

’ Health Bves Cvo

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Washington Department of Health,
hereinafter referred to as DOH, and the party whose name appears below, hereinafter referred to as
Contractor.

CONTRACTOR NAME and ADDRESS:
Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson Street SW, Suite A
Tumwater, WA 98512

UBI #: 600-330-344

PURPOSE: The purpose of this contract is to collaborate with Thurston Conservation District to restore
riparian function while preserving farmland in Henderson Inlet, Eld Inlet, Totten Inlet and the Nisqually
reach.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED THAT:

STATEMENT OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide all the necessary personnel, equipment,
materials, goods and services and otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of
the work as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance under this
contract shall be from the Date of Execution through September 30, 2020 unless sooner terminated
as provided herein.

DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES APPROVAL: This contract may be required to be
filed with the Department of Enterprise Services (DES) for approval under the provisions of Chapter
39.26 RCW. No contract or amendment required to be so filed is effective and no work thereunder shall
be commenced nor payment made therefore until ten (10) working days following the date of filing, and,
if required, until approved by DES. In the event DES fails to approve the contract or amendment, the
contract shall be null and void.

FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA): If checked
above, this contract is supported by federal funds that require compliance with the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA or the Transparency Act). The purpose of the
Transparency Act is to make information available online so the public can see how federal funds are
spent.

To comply with the act and be eligible to enter into this contract, your organization must have a Data
Universal Numbering System (DUNS®) number. A DUNS® number provides a method to verify data
about your organization. If you do not already have one, you may receive a DUNS® number free of
charge by contacting Dun and Bradstreet at http://www.dnb.com/ .

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 1 of 56
Revision April 2018



Information about your organization and this contract will be made available on www.USASpending.gov
by DOH as required by P.L. 109-282. DOH’s form, Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Act Data Collection Form, is considered part of this contract and must be completed and returned along
with the contract.

CONSIDERATION: The maximum consideration available under this contract shall not exceed
$300,000 without a properly executed written amendment signed by representatives of both parties
authorized to do so. Consideration includes but is not limited to all taxes, fees, surcharges, etc.

Source of Funds:

Federal: $300,000 State: $0 Other:  $0 TOTAL: $300,000
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable rules and regulations associated with these funds.

Unless otherwise indicated in this contract, any State funds which are unexpended as of June 30th will not
be available for carry over into the next State fiscal year (July — June).

INVOICES AND PAYMENT: Contractor will submit invoices to the DOH Project Manager for all
amounts to be paid. Invoices must reference this contract number and provide detailed information as
requested. All invoices must be approved by DOH prior to payment; approval will not be unreasonably
withheld. DOH will authorize payment only upon satisfactory completion and acceptance of deliverables
and for allowable costs as outlined in the statement of work and/or budget. DOH will return all incorrect
or incomplete invoices and will not pay for services that occur outside the period of performance. The
Contractor will not invoice for services if they are entitled to payment, have been, or will be paid by any
other source for that service.

DOH will issue payment within 30 days of receiving a correct and complete invoice and approving the
deliverable(s). DOH must receive correct and complete invoices per the Statement of Work, Exhibit A (if
applicable) or within 60 days after the contract expiration date, whichever is earlier. Late invoices will be
paid at the discretion of DOH and are contingent upon the availability of funds. Failure to submit a
properly completed IRS form W-9 may result in delayed payments.

GOVERNANCE: In the event of an inconsistency in this contract, unless otherwise provided herein, the
inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:

Federal statutes and regulations

State statutes and regulations

Contract amendments

The contract (in this order)

1. Federal compliance and Standard Federal Certifications and Assurances (Attachment 1)
2. Primary document (document that includes the signature page)

3. Standard/General Terms and Conditions (Exhibit B)

4. Statement of Work (Exhibit A)

oawmp

UNDERSTANDING: This contract, including referenced exhibits, attachments and documents included
herein by reference, contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this contract shall exist or bind any of
the parties hereto.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 2 of 56
Revision April 2018



APPROVAL: This contract shall be subject to the written approval of DOH Contracting Officer and
shall not be binding until so approved. Only the Contracting Officer or his/her designee, by written
delegation made prior to action, shall have the expressed, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend,
modify, or waive any clause or condition of this contract. Furthermore, any alteration, amendment,
modification, or waiver of any clause or condition of this contract is not effective or binding unless made

in writing and signed by the Contracting Officer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: DOH and the Contractor have signed this contract.

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE DATE
PRINT OR TYPE NAME AND TITLE
DOH CONTRACTING OFFICER SIGNATURE DATE

This document has been approved as to form only by the Assistant Attorney General.

NOTE: The Contractor’s signature is also required on Attachment 1,

Federal Certifications and Assurances (pages 51 and 54).

DOH Contract CBO23407
Revision April 2018

Page 3 of 56




8107 [udY uoIsiAsy
B LOYETOHED wenuo) HOA

L0FEZOED Mequunu penuo)

weiboid
UNESH 10 20UEB;}SISSY uoneuawalduw| Aouasy HoleI0ld
Y/N ON 000'00€$ 000'00£% 1d pue suoebsenul | €Z1'99 | 000°000'SS [BlUBWUOJIAUT | 9T0Z/2/8 0-1L008Lrood
198 v "
|eoiuyos epusby s93815 PaLIUN
uolRY punos yabng :
32INog
w Buipuny .
ajey awdo Siyl Jo} uonaY syl Kousby
- 19Aeq paiebigao Aq piebliao QanGINL a1 weibou 49 va4d mo‘_wuwmp..m<u awepN Aouaby |eispa w“.,m_,u :oﬂummw_“:__“%mﬁ
123.1pu| pue spun4 spuny |esapad ssed = dva # O | Ielepaday N 2 P Bealil I
Buniwi Yol |es9pad 40 JUNoWY 10 sweN 4o Junowy |esopay piemy [elapad
Basay 10 JUnowy 1ejoL
[ejoL
uoiosiold elqeH pue AjlenD JsjepA o) Ysid pue suued ssyieBo] Buibulg 26e0-910Z VAN uonduasaq josloid
Arejes yejs jo 9,01 020z ‘0¢ Jequisydas - 304 ddUBULIOUI3d JO pollad
a1y 103uipu] panolddy 0S8 £8/ 891 # SNNA
20¥€2082 # 1oenuo)
L0€E"9EZ°09¢
l12yoas uebapy

uoljewioju| Joejuo JaBeuey| 10e43U00 HOQ J0LI3SIg UOIIBAISSUOYD UO}SIny | Jojoenuoppuaidioalgng

}99YS uopew.IoU| Juels) [e18pa

UOI13910.4d 1eliqeH pue Aljenp Je1ep J0J Yysi4 pue swied Jjayrebo] buibuig
9ANENIU| 21631415 YSI|[3YS

0207 ‘0€ YIFINALJAS — NOLLADAXA 40 TLVA
LOTILSIA NOILVAYASNOD NOLSYNHL
L0¥€T0dD LOVIINOD HOU
MFOM 40 INHINALVIS
LO¥YETOLD LOVIINOD HOA
V LI9IHXH




8107 [udy UoISIASY
@m.«omumm& LO0¥ETOLD 1Penuo) HOA

wei30IJ UuLle Ueqif) Ue ISAISP
pue ajeam [m pue syredpnred gog Jo WnwIxew e 0 Sururen uLej uo-spuey apraoid [im gD UOISINY, SISULIE] SUNSIXS pue Mau
01 s1n01 urrey pue sdoysIom (g JO [e303 & Yiim Sururer) ssoursnq / SunadTeu Ulrey pue Jusia3eueur uLrey apraoxd [[im D uosImyL

"SR UITULIE,] U003 A3} ‘SINDD0 Jelf} UsM PUE JOSULI0D SIDUMOPUET] "SPasu IR 1

JeU] SISUMOPUE] IO PUE 10§ OO 03 Paaoo1d usyy “[UrjuLie Ul [[oIus ued srumopueT] ‘(uononpoid Arregen|q 11oddns Jet} SUORIPUOD
a1TS Y3IM 331S sea] B up paderd st 1eonpoid A11aganq e *8+9) asea] 103 ajqefrese Ajredoid [qe3ms Ay OYM STSUMOPUR] Y3M PUr|

JO 39U U SIOULIE] SUTUDYRUT UT JSISSE [[IM SUITuLre,] ay], “werdord yurjuire s era [qIssaooe aq [[i aseqejep drqnd aapoeisiur

Uy “JU9UWISSES UOTIEAISSUOD B IRIM pajoaold 10 uoponpoid ur pueyurrey pagnuspr desy 03 suondo dofpasp iim (D uosmyy,

‘sayyeur T 03 dn 9ye3oey [Im (1D UoISINYY, “(UrJuiie,] UojsITyL) HIp UIng 03 APeal SIOULIE] MU LM PUR] MO[[e] JO STOUMO PJeLt
pue AJIJUSPI 0 11059 3L} SNUIUOD [IM (1D U0ISINYL,) IPLOSI UOHBAISUOD) UOISINY], ‘s1aured Jo UOTH[E0D PEOI] € WHIM SUBTTOM

M3IIAYIAO

T8€0-9107 (] UONOY Ula], 183N

000°00€ $ ‘po92X2 0} JON

“yoeax A[renbsiN au3 pue s19[U] Us3i0], pue ‘PH ‘UOSIOPUSH Ul pueyuLie; Buiazesaid

S[TyMm uonouny werredrI 2103891 [[IM UOTIRIOQE[[0D SIU} ‘SUIean}s Surreaq-uoyes jusdelpe spuel [em}[noLide ul Suisnooyg :uondrisa(] 3oalo1d Jerrg

070z ‘0¢ Tequuaideg - uonNaXy JO 23e(] :BOUBWIOIIR] JO POLIS]
Axefes 1ye1s Jo 9,01 3ey 1a1pu] pasoiddy

/0€s-9¢7 (09€) A0S EM OPD[[PUDS UBSaW ‘[[ayog uedalA 1198euey 10e1U0D HOJ
00-ZFFSTO0AMS -#I0PUS A SPIMIEIS
FPE 0EE €09 414N

068 €84 891 ¢ SNNA
21686 WM “Io1eMumn ], ‘A 1§ UosnSiad 8167 ‘8856-S/ (09¢€) “TI00 POUOISINITDMUAWIE ‘e0aUIp-IPieH AWy 30ejuo)) jusidpaiqng
1OIMSI(] UOTIRAISSUOD) A3uno)) uojsIny], :.uoneziuediQ yusidmaigng

LOVEZ09D LOVIINOD HOA
V LISIHXA il o i e

2 130 | ‘.

LA rullf\l\\ FAW I =

ANAOS 139Nd



R10T [1dy uoIsiaay

9640 9 33eq LOYEZOED Wenuod HOA

'5183[998 PUE] 10 SISUMOPUER] Se WeIS0I] UITULIE] punog

0Z/00S TToIU/yoeay INog ul Oz [[o1us pue sAemisyem 03 Ajrurrxord uo paseq SISUMOPUR] )G JO WUNWIUTW € Yoy

00T SOUDJEUI [ETIUR}0 ] ‘syuedpired yurjwIe] punog yinog o3 saypjew [enuejod 001 puag
srawmred

UOT}EAIISUOD M -aseyoand ayduis 893 10 Juswases

3 sSuneaw A[a1renyy UOHBAISSUOD 3113033\ "UOISULT} U PUR[ULIE] YIIM SISUMOPUR| AJQUap] UOTYse] dI3ajens

PUE PajeUIPIOOd B Ul UOLBAISSUOD ydeoidde 0] sannue UOTEAISSUOD 93R3I[IDB] PUR SUSAUOD)

€ sIPuUMOpUR] "SU0T2301d UOHEAISSUOD I9}0/SIUSWISSES UOLBAISSUOD Sunjusws]dull SISUMOpPUE] €

"Su0Y9301d UOBAISSUOD D0 10 S)USUIISES UOT}RAIISUOD

00Z S9IY YSnoIy; spaysIsiep punog 198N ur sAemisjem 1eau pue [eIm3[no1iSe JO sa1de 0z 109301

(.42qunu,,)

sjadie]

{.So40e,, *3°3)

suun

(«pauadoal spag ysy||ays,, “3-3)

uonduasag

10de1 ST VH 93 3O yusuodwon e st a]qe) ST, *MO[2q SX[Se} 3Y3 UT JNO0 PITed SSINSEaUl PUE SI[qRISAI[P A2 SOZLIEUIUINS Aydums snyy,

S3AILD3MEO F1gVINSVIN B STVOD

"seare Ayriord ur senradord ayearrd Uo $310j50 UOHEAISSUOD / LOGRIOISSI S O} UOHIPPE UI aq [[IM S
"89G YSI[ES 91 JO [[B 10F 9}IS UOHBISUOWSP € SE (SUOHRPUSWIWIOdRI 19jjng Yy ON SuIsn) suonepusuniodar royng uerredi mau au
yuowa]dur 03 sdom Tenuaiad pure sSunuerd sAReU JO PUSI] B YIIM PRI0ISAI 9 [[IM PUNOS 398N ] OjuT Urerp Jey) yoeay A[renbsiy pue
S39[UT USHO], pue ‘PIH “UosIspuaL] jo seare onydei3093 sy} ur ‘swueans Surreag-uowrres o} jusdelpe puel [eInimoride ‘Apms ased e sy

LOYETOID LOVILNOD HOQ

V LIdIHXH

weJlsold Alenisy [euoileN

ANNOS 149Nd



95 10 / 98eq

8107 [dY UOISIASY
LOYEZOED Wenuo) HOA

‘pIeMeqns S} Iopun JUSWSSINGUIa 103 A[qIaeur

aq [ 0 3seyL, Jo uonardurod sy 03 1o1rd pejerdwod YIop “PIemeqnS SIY} IDPUN YIom Iayjo Aue Sunjeniut 9105eq peja[duiod aq Jsnu yse} Sy,

juswdoreasc 109[01] 0MSYILH =®

‘pIemeqns SIy} Y3m PajeIdosse Saul[peap PUe ‘S3[eIaAI[ap ‘SYse} au a1e SuImo[[of YL

SHTIVAHAITIA ¥ SASVL
0z 2OURISISSY ‘SI9ULIE] (7 0} 9JUR}SISSE [BIDURULY pUe SUTUTeI} SSaUISN] 9PIAOL]
0z sanoy/sdoysyiop -sapruniroddo mojy uwrey/sdoyssiom (g 9pIaocid

‘(2A0qE PaYDEaI §Og Y} O} UCTHPPE UI ST STU} — 230U1)
00S syuedoneg seonorl] Juewedeur A }s9g pue Sunesew ‘Suruueld ssauIsng 10§ SI19ULIR} 0} UOHEDNPS IPIAOL]
pcordn SaI0VY -sdom rernymonige [eruuerad pue syuerd saneu Surzimn uondaord 1eynq uerredr yusursiduy
002 yorsy[ “£yrenb 1eyem uo syoeduir ayy pue seopoerd eamynonSe ueqm Surpredal sfeNpIAIPUL 00T Yo'y
suapies
Arunurwod 03
g 20UE}SISSE [EDTUO
‘suapIed Arununuos Sunsmxe 10 Suruurdag g 0} a0UeRISISSE [EDNUDR} 9PIAOL]
UM PasIoMm
8 suapIes [0oUdg
"suapI1ed [0OUDS g 0} 9DUE)SISSE [EIIULDR)} SPIAOL]
LOPETOED LOVIALNOD HOA
V LI9IHXHA e 21 m,_._dj 3= 31)_)_0,,/ A

e | .\f\L\: i ] | r.l.‘\‘

ANNOS 139N




8107 [1dy uoIsiazy
e LOPETOED Wwenuo) HOJ

spraoxd [im pue ‘y08(oxd 18d yderBered e ynoqe v N 9 107 yorordde sisf[eue ue apraoid [[im UIes} SSSUSATIISNS JSJ "PasPes: SUreq soLjaw
1oaloxd SurpreSar wes) sssuaandage (J5d) drysiouie] punog 128nJ ays yim (sanunu (g) suoydafe era JNSUCD pue ERuoD [[im JuetdmaI-qns sy,

*NOILVLINSNO]) SSANIAILIFIIH ¥7°0
‘senianoe werdord moA jo ssanons pue edut a3 INoqe NOA [[9} SHNSal SWODINO 93 JRYM SSNISIp 03 pasn ‘psfoxd

SurMmor[og “SPOY3P U0ORIS[[0d eFep Surpniour uolen|ess 10§ sueld s urerdoid mok Suiqimssp yusumoop Suruuerd 98ed suo 11oys aperdwor)
{(AIVIdWAL HOd) NV1d NOLLVNTVAT £'0

"z 98ed Sunaydurod jo nery ur wioy wAteM JIVO au3 03 pepuadde aq Aew (1T ysel)
uerd josloxd paqressp sy, "pasordde pue pajajdiuod are s1aatem 10 J4V0) oY} [Hun urdaq jou Aew Bjep [BJUSUIUOIIAUS SUNDST[0D 03 PAIEal NIOM

‘pasoxdde

ST pue pa3s[duwiod a1e s1eATeM J V) U} [HUN UISaq Jou AUl ejep [EJUSWIUOIAUD Sungsixa Sursn 1o mau SURoa][od 0} Pajelal YoM
"ddVO 2y 2a0xdde pue dofaasp 03 DO JAN- I01BUIPIOO]) ANTeny) JEN S,AS0700F YIM 1om [im spustdpai-qns ‘parmbai st V0
& J] ( 90UBINsSe-AJI[en()/Sa0TAIes-0J UaI0G/a1eIod0-0 M- MO [1/ST-J10q /A0S M AS0[059//5d1T) :o8ed qom souemssy Ayreny) JaAN s,£80100g
jo yusunreda( aye3g uoy3uTyses| Y3 SUTMIIASI I8jje SUISN ULIO] IOATR AL UR[] 303[01] soueinssy Ajyeny)  jruqns [im justdmai-qng
INFWIOTIAI (IIVO) NV1J LDI[0UJ HONVINSSY ALITVAD 2°0

M.6E98 TCL apmiSuo] ‘qsr | N .9LI LY Ipmine ] "egy

,V/N, 193ud 3stmIayzo ‘ATuo syuerd paloxd ogwads aoerd 101 :NOLLYVIOT LDI[OUd

"pesn aq os[e Aewr 92130 s 3Us1dI091qNs € JO S91BUTPIOOD YT “JeuLIo] SUIMO[[0F dU3 Ul S92189p [ewep Ul (apm3rduo]
‘apryiye]) sejeurpiood yaford yrwgns prnoys s1eSeuew josloid [y -aload 1y; 103 BrRp [eRRdS JURAR(RI 9p1AOId PINOYS s1oSeurwr 1slo1g

*ATeSS9D3U 81 S}USWLIMbaI [EUCT)IPPE OU pUE SUOIDISIIUI 28URYD 3R] 2ABY ABWI SUOTIE J1 938 03 302(01d a1} JO MATASI € pajei[e]
sey HO(Q "sewono pue suoneidadxa 0aloxd aqrmsap 0 surewy pue aurno psloid pafreep e o3eaid [[im sjusiddaI-qng Mo[aq syse} a3 uf

1USWISSISS Y aBueyD) aew) pue eye(] [enedg 10801 10

LOPET09D LOVIINOD HOA
V LISIHXd wei8ou AJenisg [eUOnE]

=l I \ 1
.\J\r\.\rlrl.t\q AW Lo L“,.

ANNO Fm_UDa



10T 1UdY UOISIAY
wﬂom%ﬁ LOYETOED Wenue) HOA

UMWITUTL 8 ‘apnpul [reys siodar ssaxo1] ‘pepraoid st SJE[AWR] v S[NpaLps SUImMOo[of a3 0 Burproaoe
1nuqns 1osuodg 103[01] U3 ¥eU [BIHLID ST 31 210219} aMpayps Sunrods: V4 §,WeiBoL] JUBID) U} WIOFUL 03 paouss are spourad Sunrodar sy,

‘ssa1801d yyim ADUR)SISUOD 107 PaMILARI 3] [[IM

saotoau] “AJyzuow ueyy Apusnbaiy axow ou ing pue A[rerenb jses] e PaRIANS 3¢ ISNW SIDI0AU] “I0JeNSTUTWPY J0eHUOD HIESH JO juswiiredag
oy 01 “VI-61V 23 Wpim papnpur suiof ajqedrjdde [[e y3im sadloAur pue Sa[qeIoAlap ‘syr0dar ssex8o1d Aje3renb [rews [[im jusidoai-gqns Sy,
SLY0dTY SSTUD0dd ANV DNIDIOAN] AT4309v00 Z'T

-110da1 A[z93renb 31 YALM pIOM SN Ul JIWIGNS pue (SFE[die) PopIAOId SUIST) 193Us)oes osloxd e a1eaI)

LIFgHSLOV] L0A[0dd T'T
'SUONIPUOD PUe SWLIs) [e1opa) SUTA[Topun e yum A[duod pue 0} I195ay]

JusweaIde oY) Ul paurjino sayep uona[dwod Aue ym adueprodde ur osfoxd yno Arre) ‘swail souewioyrad paimnbar Jo [eRTUIgNS pue

10aloxd sy 105 ressaoau syySir £11edoxd 10 ‘Spusueses ‘sesusor] ‘syuriad parmbai [re pim souerdwos pue ‘jo 3di@oa1 ‘105 uonesrjdde ‘syuswaimbai
JusweaISe [E00]-Ieul pue Sunoenuod Juswamdoid ajqesrdde yym souerduiod ‘s310da1 ss91301d pue ‘SUrI0} (DS ‘S1UPNOA JUBwARd

JO [eRIUIQNS ‘spIoda1 1afo1d Jo souUrURIUTRIN pPIEME NS SIU} UM pIjeroosse syuawairnbai Sunrodal pure UOROS([0D BIEP S} SIGLIDSAP Sty ST,

funioday pue 1uswabeue|y 133[oid * | MSV.L 44

6107 0€ aun[ UOTe)NSUOD SSOUBATIONE | 70

“uone[dIod JOBHUCD Je anp

[BuL] "ayep 31e3s Juswearde Jo sAep 09 UrFIM anp eI Ue[J uonen[eag €0
550 [enoe Uo paseq paxmbai JT JJVO pue

arep 31es yusweaISe Jo sABp (g UM anp eI wIo UoWeuruRieq IARM JIVO 0
0088 JUOWISSaSSY

610T ‘ST Arenure( 01 dn JusUASIAUIIY ayeun) pue eyeq renedg josloig

ayep uorjadimoy) JURTIISINUIT ; I[qEIIAIR A

“UTea) SSOURATIORNID JSd S YHIM Jorju0d ut justdmai-gns ays ind o3 [reurd
Ue puss [im aanejussaidsr urerford preis Ig ysU[[aYS YL, "Wea], AI0SIAPY 2ARRRIU] d189121G YSY[PYS S O3 SISATeUR SSUSATIOR}D U} JO SINSaL

LOPETOED LOVEAINOD HOU

¥R weJdold Auenjsg [euoeN

ANNOS 1491Md



810¢ [11dy uoISIATy
B LOYEZOGD 10e1U0) HOQ

uona[duwod penuod/yIN uodn pue 070z ‘6102/8107 :PWwng  :usamiaq pajejdurod Sunzods: remueury VIN
uona[dwod oenuod/y N uodn pue 0z0z ‘610z ‘8107 ‘e pue Surzdg 1u9aM1aq pajeldwod Suntoder WIN

SISkq [BNUUE UR U0 SUOTOE II31f} JO SNIe}S [EDUBUL] e

SISeq [ENUUBIWILS B UO SUOLDE 112} JO Snjejs uonejusweidw] e

:3urmorroy a3 uo j10dazx 03 paimbai are sPUMO VIN
INILYOdTY V. LN QadIN0TY dIHSHANLYY J ANNOS 1390d Z'Z'T

uoneadwod penuod uodn :Aq pajerduwon jrodar s yHy [eury
1 139010
1 udy :Aq pajerdwod aq 3snuw Sunroday s1vHd

"pauIea] suossa SurssnosTp pue sawroojno joafoxd SunySySy osfoxd siue

1Y} 2qLIDSIP [[IM pUR ‘JuRIS 313 JO pUD a3 I93Fe 4noasop alord Surmp papraoid aq [qim ‘Surpiq 0sfoxd reury sy Sunoapger 410der gV
[eury oy, “110da1 GLVH] [euy e se [[om se ‘syrodax ssaxSoid (wazsAs Sunyovi] Sugunoosy uweisAsoog puv pouvury) SLVH [enuue-1q aarduion
SLVAAT'C'T

:sjuswaxnbaz Sunroday

61 Arenue( Aq snp Areurung 1€ "09(] - T 13gOR0 :poLIaJ I93Ieny) YHnog

(I'z'1 Msel 99s) Arewrwuns 109o1d se 9AISS [[IM SIVHI 0¢ 1deg -1 An( poLIa Iajreny) pIryL,
¢TI An{ £q snp Areurwing og aun[ - 1 mdy IpOLIaJ I2}1eN() PU0dag

(I'Z'T ¥se], 99s) Arewnuns j09(oxd se 9ATes [[IM SIVHI € UDIRIN — T Atenue( 'POTISJ I93IeNy) 3811

‘(moraq 29s) syueweimbar Suniodsr sy e paie[duwiod A[II0joeIsSIes aaey Nok jeys SouspIAg e
"$3500 10 “{10Mm Jo adoos ‘sjep uonardwod ayy Sunosyge seoursWNOID 10 wajqoid Aue jo uondipsag e
"S9[RISAI[P WLIS}-TEaU PUR SaNIATIOR 109(01d a1 107 a3ep uone[dilod pue snjels syl e
"S9[RIFAI[PP paje[dwuod
Aue pue srowred Aue pue zosuods psford syy £q Surpuads [ejoy Surpnpur ‘eyrenb jser ayy ur paserdwod yiom s jo uondipsep Ve

LOPETOID LOVIINOD HOA
V LI9IHXA wei80J] AJensy [euone}

| I < | /
AL T AN s .U| (F\_f ,,

ANNOS 139Nd



810 [Ldy U0ISIAY
cmgﬁo:uwmm LO¥E20ED 9eRU0) HOA

«(1'T 995) 199Yysioey 30e(o1g parepdn ue aq [im 3xodea yosfoxd reury

aup yim papnpouy] ‘ued paloxd pafreiep sy Ul PAYTIUSPT S3INSEIW S0URULIOJIad U} SUIASTUDE JO SSBODTIS SU} S3RM[EAD [[IM jodaz eug ay Iom
5IMyNy 10] SUOTEPUSUIUIONSI PUE PIUTEd] SUOSS]] ‘S}[NSai ‘SPOYIOUI 9} SIIIDSap Jey s1oumo afoxd auy £q uayitim aq [rim 31odsi [euly v
14043y 1304 J TYNIJ £'T

uone[dwod penuod uodn puy
A[renuue ‘GT 12900 :£q pajerdwon Sunzodar ggM/AGIN

"000'0ST$ Spo20Xa PIYM

uoniod yeys 3snl jou ‘s[qeroda axe suonoe JusweInooid [V *SIseq Tenuure ue uo (YZ6-004S W0 VId) y10daz ,sjusweeidy AousBersiug

pue sjusweaIdy aaneradoo)) SIURIS) [eIepa ] I9pu[] UOHRZIN HAM/IGIN,, & IWqns pue s3a[dwod o} saa15e juatdal s "SUOHEdYTPOUI
10/pUe syuswpuBIe SUIPNIOUT ‘000’0STS JO JUNOULE PIOYSIIY} SU} Padxa ey A10883ed 1930, AU} Ul SUEO] 10 SPIZME]NS Jopun
juswaInoid 10 Juardmar ay: Aq juswainooid 3oa1rp 10§ pajadpng spuny Surpnput ‘sarjddns pue sadiales Auawdmba “vonponysuod Sutmnoord
10] pa3eSpng SPUNF a1e 219y} 212 SjUWeaIiSe aoue)sisse 10y paimbai st Suniodad [e1apaf sTYL -Aqrenuue paxmbaz st Sunzodar 3G M/AGIN

S1904TY (AGM/AGIN) SSANISNF AANMQ-ALISONIN/NIWOM +'Z'T
uona[dwod penuod uodn :Aq payerduwrod Anus I MOLS B

1’71 YISel @[npayps SLVHA 99 :Aq paserdwod Suprodar [HYOLS

"9dusIage1 10] adures

uonedyLIRA A1jue e st 319] 'sprodar ssex8ord Ajreirenb auy ur (O LHMOLS 9Us 9PNPU] '§S9] 10 SIsjdeIelp g¢ 9q 03 Spaau (] palord anbnm
U “(auinu woyyzIuSA0 14asus) 4107 JAN :SMmO[[oj se 1a(o1d moA swreu I TYOLS Ul Bunpen UL IsIsse o *A[renuue papnugns ag pinoys (1€
29(] — T Ue[) Teak Iepusied sigus e 103 eje "paimbai aq [im Sunioder THMOLS uey: (erep yeliqey pue [20180[01q IBUI0 PUER “[00000I3UY
10 100 *g “ueSoxu re303 ‘snozoydsoyd ‘Hd “Arprqimy ‘Arures ‘omjeradws) e3em ‘UIBAXO PIA[OSSTP -3-9) e1ED [BIUSWIUOIIAUS 10 [EDIUIBLD
qeorsAyd Lue 3087700 syusidpaI-qns §] “VJd 4Aq pedoeasp erep Suriojuow Ajrrenb 1arem 10§ we3sAs elep DIUOIIO3[d Uk 03 siefal [HNOLS
ONLLY0JTY VLV (LTHOLS) FONVHIXA ALITVAD) YALY M ANV TVAIR LAY ANV 3OVIQLS €T T

“pauIea] SU0Ssa] SUISSSIP pue sewodyno aford SunydySry 3osloxd aius
a1 9qLIDSIP MM PUE ‘JueIs a1 o pus ayj 1v3ye 4nossop 3aloxd Surmp papraocad aq [jim Surqpiq ysload Teury sy Sunoapar 41odar SILVAL
reuy sy, “1oda1 §LvH4 [euy e se [jam se ‘syrodar ssea8oid (wagshis Sunovs], Sutuncody wiagshisooq puv piouruiy) SLYHA [enuue-iq ajerdwo)

LOVEZOTD LOVIINOD HOQ
V LISIHXH il R 1R LN

| 1S } / [ / !
AAEAO0UAA+ /AdE] L@}

aANNOS 139Nd



9¢ Jo 71 98eg

yroddns o3 212 sarmyonys ases| armjongserur pue yuawdmba

8107 [1dY uoIsIAay
LOPETOLO wenuo) HOA

"$S900NS PUE 20USPIJUOD YIIM Upjewt 03 syuedonred
‘s[003 Supueury pue] ‘ssjerdws) asea] Sururejuod syuedonred 10y Areiqr

0INOSI PAsLaIdUI Ue Y3noiyy mo18 osfe [[im urerdoid sy, “uononpoid remymonse ur puey Surureyss £qaiawy ‘syuedonred o) pareys
saypjew enuajod (0T pue SI9xsas PUe 10 SISUMOPUE] Iyjie se urerdoid Yurjuire sy Ut SUI[[OIUS S[ENPIATPUT 0z Yaim ‘wresSord

9Y3 J10qE Pa3ednps 9 [[IM SIBUMOPUE] ()G 3S8S] }V "SJUSUISRIZE J[Ls PUe 9ses] 91eald 0} SIOP[OY PUR] PUR SISY9s PUe SaUDIRW YoTym
‘urergoid yurjuLreq punog ynog sy} mo18 [[im PLOSI(] UORAISSUOT) UOISINYT, "SPUe] PALIUSPT U} U0 SU0no210id UogeAIssuod
930 10 SJUDIISES UOTIRAISSUOD 3911} 3}efo3au [[Im pue juswdopasp ojur uononpoid wol uonisuer; SULIeaU J0 UT PUeULIE] Ujm
SISUMOPUE] AJHUSPI [[IM UOLRH[DRS STT, *AJUnoD) UOJSINY[], Ul SJUSWases UOReAIasuod Surnoexs pue Junenolau 1oy sjqrsuodsar
SUOIEZIUESIO 313 JO [[& SUSAUOD [[LM JOLISI(] UOHEAISSUOL) UOSINY], 93 ‘Siseq AJraprenb e uQ) “juswdo[aAsp srurouods ur Sunsaaur
4q frrenb rejem Sunosyord pue uoponpoid [ermymorie ur puef urejar 0y s1eonpoid [ernymorde M SUDIOM UO SISND0J S} STy,

sAemiarep\ punos 196nd Yyinos ul Alijenp Ja1ep pue pueT [einijndubyY JO UO0I1D9104d "7 MSV.L 44

uonsduwos yoenuos uodn

uona[dwod oenuod uodn pue A[fenuue ‘G[ 22qoP0

1T SMpayds SLVHA 19d

uonadwod 1penuod uodn pue
020¢ pUE 810¢ FSuwng

uonardured penuod uodn pue
0T0T PUue 610T ‘810¢ [[ed pue Surdg

Arenuue ‘7 1990300 pue [dy

Afrenuue ‘g1 Arenue[ pue Anf

610T ‘ST Atenue[

JEep uonRduoy)

LOYET0ID LOVAINOD HOA
V LI9IHXH

§350D [ernjoe U0 paseq

08'8.7'6T$
01 dn yuswrasmquuray

JUBWISINUILY

1P9Ys 1ory pajepdn pue jrodaz [eulg €1
Sunzodey FaM/A9IN ¥TI
(paxmba1 1) 13IOIS €71

SNjeIg [BDUBUL] e

snjeig uonejuawardwy e

Suntodey VIN permbay 4Sd |  TTT

sitoder Gy A [enuue-TwRS | T[T

SALIBLIUING

1o3lo1 pue sd10AUL A[T81rEeN]) I
129G g 1alo1g

S[qerAIad | Jaqunp

g@moi\cmz J [euoneN

OS Fm_UD&



8107 [Hdy UOISIAY
ommomﬁmmmm LOFETOED Prnu0) HOA

Aunon) uojsINy [, §Y "suspIed LJTUNUIuIoD 10§ 9DUBISISSE TEDIULD?} PUR ‘SUSPIES [00UDS 10§ S0URISISSE [EdIULD3) pue sryeururerdord
‘sanradoid weqan 10§ 90UeISISSE Tedruypa) Jo Sunsisuod wrerdord fermymoLiSe weqim e 93eaid J[Lm JPLGSIJ UOHRAISSUOD) U0ISIMYL

we.150.14 21mnoLSy ueq.y) ue JIAI[Rp A[2an0e pue do[a4aa( €7

"§S9001S pUE
90UBPIFU0d W3IM Upyewt 03 sjuedonred jroddns o3 -39 sarnjonns ases] aIjonnseHul pue yuaurdmba ‘sj003 Sumureury pure] ‘sorerdury
asea] Sururejuod syuedpnred 10y ATeiqr 221n0SaI PISLIIDUT UB y8nonp moi8 osye [im wrexdoxd sy, uononpoid fermmoride

ur puey Sutureyar Agezarp ‘syuedpnied o3 pareys saypyewt [enuajod QT PUE SI9X[995 Pue] I0 SISUMOPUR] IRIS se wres8oxd yurjurreg
aup ur SUT[oIUR S[enpIAIpUI 07 yiim ‘ureiBord sy Surpredar payoear aq [[Im SISUMOPUR] 00 1589 1V ‘sTUawaIde OTes pue 9ses] 93l
0} SIP]OY PUR] PUE SI2333S PUR[ SIDILW YOTYM ‘Urerdord sjurjurie] punog ymos s M018 [[IM IOLLSI(J UOHBAISSUOD) UOISINYT L,
WYYH0Ud JNITINEY] ANNOS H1N0S MOYD Z°C

ST, pUBTUIE] AJIUNUILIOD) PUNOS aYj JO [ANog pire jsniy, puer] [o3ide)) :9pNJour 310559 SIU} UI SI9UIE] ‘Burpuny pue

MBIADI JURIS 10] PAPIGNS Usaq AR JRY) SPUE] PAYHUSPT 3U} U0 SUORd9301d UOHEAIISUOD 133O 10 SJUSUIRSES UOHRAIISUOD 991
ayenoZau [rm pue juswdoreasp ojur uononpord woiy uonisuer 3ULIESU 10 UT PURIULIR] UM SISUMODPUE] AJUspI [[LM UOTye[IOe]
STU T "UOT}eAIasU0D pue] [einynoride oy ypeordde d13sjens e juswa[dun pue dojeasp 03 AJUnoD) UOISTNYT, Ul SJURUISSEd UOTBAISSUOD
Sumnoaxe pue JunenoSau 10§ S[qIsU0dsaI SUOHRZIURSIO 33 JO [[B SUSAUOD [[IM JPIISI( UOREAIRSUOT) UOISINU], U ‘siseq Ajreyrenb e uQ
ANNOS LA9Nd HLAOS NI SAYMYILVM ¥VAN ANVT TVENLTNITEIV 40 STAIV 00 Z LIILOUd T'Z

*[IOM STU JO S}NS2L PUE SPULL]} U} JUSWNOOP [[im urer301d NHHID Punog [pnos au £q pajonpuod Suriojruow Ajrjenb

1918 M -opmS SUTUSpIeS UeqIn PUE [ENUEUI JO0}SIAL] URGIN Ue SUIPT[OUL S[ELISeU YDeanno Mau Jo uorponpord sy apnjout osye

mm urex8ord srmymoniSe ueqin s, s9onoe1d SuruspIed AJrunuIuod may} y3noxyp uognyod =jem Sunueaaid Ul ‘SISUMOIWOY
~uou SUTPN[OUL ‘SYUSPISII [[B 9AISS 19113 0} SUSPILS AJIUNUILIOD Pue [O0UdS 3O] UL SOUE}SISSE [EJILI09] pUe Surururerdoxd
Anumununos £q pajuswa(dumod aq [[Im 30UR}SISSe [edIULD3) Paseq JoUMOpURT] "SUoRoRIul Ayenb 1ayem as19A91 pue Jusaaid

dioy M D1 “3eyem o3 uonnyjod juaaaid 03 suonoe Supye} Ul SIURPISAT sopm3 ey weidord [ermymoriSe Ueqin Ue SULISAI[SP pue
Surjean £g "punog 198n jo Arenb 1arem 2y 0} JeaILp B sasod SSNIATOE 3S3Y] JO DRy "SPUDpPISaL Ueqmn Aq pasrel 3uraq JO03SaAL] pue
sdoxd predspeq [[euwls pue Seary YiMOoIo) eqif) U3 UMM Pajedo] SULITE] aIe 3191} 'S9Sealour uonemndod pue doaaap 03 senuuod
Ajunon) uosINYT SV "Suapied AJTUNUILIOD 10§ 3DUR)SISSe [edIUda} pure ‘SuapIeS [00UDS 10] 0UR)SISSE [EOIULDa) Pure dfewrure1dod
‘saradord weqan 10§ aouresTSSE TROTUYDS) JO Sunsrsuod ureiSoid TemIMOLISe UGN Ue 2}eald OS[e J[IM PIOSI(] UOHEAIISUOT) UOISINY],

LOPETOTD LOVIINOD HOA
V LISIHXA i 12n 11 A erie eLione

- ;...
D | AlPM PLIO

ANNOS 13

>— LA



8107 1udy uorsiAey

9 j0 1 98eq LOYETOYD Wwenuo) HOJ
020z ‘0g qu=ideg £q 0z
6107 ‘0¢ roquiaides £q o1 UITWIBH pUNOS YINOS 01Ul $33]|0JUS M3BU QT QT
0202 ‘0¢ Iqusydag £q 11y
LXXX610T
‘0¢ raquuaydag £q pgg +Payoeal sjenpialpul 00s v
0202 ‘0¢ 1oquaydag 4Aq
suoneoridde jusweses v
6107 ‘ST Ioquaoa(] £q Sulpuny 1o} paiapisuod
uonyeoridde juaurases 3s11g 8ulaQ S1UBWISES UOIIBAIBSUOD 334y qre
"UOI3BJIPISUOD
ul seidadodd Aue jo uonedyUSp!
pue sjonpoud 109{oud pue ‘saspuane
SROD RMIEI0 peseq pue salou pue sepuase Suilea UWGNS
89°T0L'611L%
020t ‘0¢ Tequeideg 03 dn jusuresinquurey Alepenb siauyied suaauo) 48

91ep uonsjdunoy)

JUD TR SINUITNY

S]qBIAAI[(]

‘(uerd sy Aq papumy jou ing jueid sng jo 3roddns ur suop yrom
Ayirenb 1a3eMm) 10M ST JO S)NSaI pue spusy Ay JUBWIMOOP Tim trerSord NTTNO punog yinog ayj Aq paronpuod unrojruow Ajenb

T9¥e M oINS SuuepIes Ueqin pue [entreur Yo0jSAI Ueqm Ue SUTpN[OUI S[LIS}eU OBaIN0 MaU JO uononpoid ayy spnpur osfe

[ urexdoid armmonde weqm s, ‘seonoeid Suruepred Anmurnwod neyy ySnong uonnyod rejem Sunusasid ur ‘SIDUMOIWOY

~UOU SUIPN[OUT ‘SJUSPISSI [Te 9AISS 133399 0] SUSPILS JUNUILIODd PUE J0OYDS 30 UT S0UB)SISSE [eonnppa) pue Surwrurerford

Anumunuos £q pajustue[duod aq [[Im S0UEISISSE [edIUYda) Paseq Iumopue] ‘suonoeipur Ayenb meyem aszoasr pue jusssid
day [Im g, “Teyem 03 uonnyod jussazd o3 suonoe Supye ur syusprsar sapms jey; urerdord [eTNoLISe Ueqin ue SULIDAT[Sp pue

3unean £g ‘punog 3230 jo Ayrenb 1a3em ay) 03 Jesnyy e sasod SIPIANOE 35U JO YoRY “SIUSPISaI Ueqn Aq pasrer 3uraq yoojseAl pue

sdom predypeq [Tews pue seary U3mMoIs) ueqin) sy UTYIIM Pajedo] SULIej oIe 21913 ‘sasearnour uonemndod pue dopaasp o3 ssnunuoo

LOYETOED LOVAINOD HOA

V LIGTHXH

Welsold AJenis3 [euoneN|

ANNOS 1495Nd



9g Jo g1 98ed

810T [14dy uoIsiAsy
LOYEZOED 10810 HOA

103 Aressaosu uononpoid 2}eIgRlISAUIOIOEUT PUE apeys apraoid 0} SNUTIUO0D O} ST JUSJUL Sy, “IE[[UIIS IO ‘SaOYDTIE ‘SaLLaqan|q

‘so01) 11 se yons sdom ernumiad Jo SUo O $9913 PUR SILIYS JO SPUR[] SALJEU WIOIJ SISUFESJ JEU} U0 OJUI BaIe I9fNg 33 SSZIPLIGAY
UOIN{0S ST, "eale I9Nq Sl WOIJ JJAU] JIIOU0d3 Ieures 0} SNULuod 0} onpoid ay Surmore S[Iym UoHouny o0} 3[qe a1e s3ss9001d
werredrr fermnjeu aoym uonnios e 2oe[d ur ind o3 JMOLFIP SIIT ‘InINoLISe 0} PIUORISURT} dALY Seare ueLredLt U JO YonuI Sy

‘aa1AIns sgunuerd ay3 JO 945/ JO WNWIUIW B 3B} PUE $9]1S UONRIISUOWSP St PIZI[IAN 99 UBD S9)IS 3.INsuy

‘sdom [eamymorrSe eruusiad pue s1apnq werredit safeU JO puS[q B U3Im sa1de (G 03 dn Surfejo} says G 03 dn 2103521 pue Ajuep]
sJajing ueliedry Jo uoneluawd|dw| "€ MSY.L 44

-Suizijeuly 03 Jold M3JASJ )M 3UO0 10} HOQ 03 [ElS31BW pajulid pue suonedijgnd ||e HwgnsS,

0202 ‘o€ qua=idag £q 00T
6102 ‘0¢ Tquisideg Aq 00T

020z ‘0¢ Toquu=mydes Aq §
6107 ‘0¢ Tequeides 4q 7

020t ‘0¢ Tequieydag 4q g
6102 ‘0¢ quidag Aq

610T ‘0g aun[

6102 ‘ST Taquiadeg
y10de1 Teury

Ui pareys Arexqr [y
M 60T ‘0€ PPquaidag
NP JUPUI[[EISUT ISIL]

020 ‘0¢ @queidag Aq [y
610¢ ‘0¢ Taquydeg 4£q 05

£Al[enb uslem
uo s1oedw ayl pue saoi3oesd [eanyjnoLise

uegJn Suipie8as payoeal sjenpialpul 00z ¢z
suapJed Ajunwwod Sulisixa

J0 SuluwBaq g 01 2JURLSISSE |BDIUYID]L 9PIADI] PET
susp.ed

|[O0OYDS g 01 9JUBISISSE |BIIUYID] BPIACId €T

Luoieaignd spin3d Suiuapies ueqin aieald qez

Luoneoiqnd [enuen %20153AIT Ui 31eal) M org

«ABIQl] 921N0S34 ISNCOJ JO UOIB3.D PTT

paJeys sayoiew |erjualod QOT o g

LOYE€204D LOVAINOD HOA
V LIGTHXH

;lll /
=S r-ioN A\
AL AL -~ \

ozaom 139N

...U.\JJ |

rUONeM

LA _||(\

N\




8107 [udy uorsiAay]
9¢ Jo 91 95ed oy Y s

Te303 Suruuni e pue porrad Sunzodai yoes 1oy jusds Junoure rezo3 sy pue ssardord
ur pue pajajduion sqINg Jo uoneso] pue 3s0d ‘9d4} “Iaquinu aYj U3im SJULUISSINGUIISI aIeys 3500 pue syrodai ssaidoxd jnuqng

JUSWIISINGUIISI SIeYS 3500 10§ sjuswaiimbar Suntodar joaur o syuedionred o3 souelsisse sAeRSIUNUPE SPIAOI]
"sIayonoa Juswied 10 uoneurIofur A18S905U Ji0da1 pue 309100

uonjeurIojur urrodear jurers JruIgns pue spiodai 3oaloxd urejurey

JUSWISSINGUITSI 9IRYS }S0D pue ‘uoneurpiood ‘Suniodar juerd 10y syse} 9AGRISIUNLIPE ONPUOD)

"SI JO dURURJUTRW U ‘9sn ‘uone[reisur 19doxd amsus 03 syisia 231s dn mo[[0F pLE [eRIur 1onpuo’)

‘syoaloxd Jiag [reisur pue dopasg

SIING
1ongsuod pue ‘eznrond ‘USIsap ‘931s 3s3q 03 suonezruesio ajerrdoidde ela 10 AJOSIIP SISUMOPUE] 03 30UEISISSE [EITUYD3] SPIAOIL]

SI9PIOYaY[E}S PUR SISUMOPUE] 0] YDBaIino Jonpuo))

:SIDTAIDS SULMO[[O] S} SPNIUI [[IM

Sdue)sisse uonejuawRldwr JINg oyoads aygrsuuewr A[aury e ur juads Suraq jou axe 453 J1 Spuny Merpyjm Lew pue samyrpuadxs
30 ssa1301d ssasse Aqesrporrad [[ImM HOQ "seuepms) a3 jeaw syoeford amsus 03 reacrdde-axd Toj 3siy 09loxd Jig renusiod
saxmbal HOQ “(sauljaping) sauifeping a0qovd juauaSouniy 15ag [vinipnoti8y :spung wivi8oid Aionis puonpN saupiu] 018a1m4

YSY11ayS 93 pUe JUSWMOOP SIU} UI (¢ UOHIPUO) PUR ULIS], dewurer3o1 ] wymg ueiredny v g MO[[07 3q Tim Sunueld werredry

"S9DIAIIS Wa}sAS002 puodaq puel Jray) woty Ayianonpod
aambai jey spaysisiesm o ur suewmy jo 9dussaid ay S98pa[mOowOE Jel} PUS[q B NG UOLEI0ISII [[Nf € JOU ST ST, “UOTIEATI[TD
[enuue srmbai jou op jel sdod Wox IUMOopUE] Y3 10§ AI[IGRIA SIUIOUCD? SWOS 10§ SULMO[[e OS[e S[TM s3ssa001d ureaxns [eor8oforq

LOYETOED LOVAINOD HOA

dﬂHHgm 111D ,q\)\}__ | .., 121 IOV M

AL C. AL ((\n .m

ANAOS L



8107 [y UOISIAYY
mmwoﬁuwf LOYETOED W0enuo) HOA

ajep uonadwoy) JUSUISSINGUITOY] J[qRIDAISA

-SISULTE] ()7 JO WNUITUIUI & 03 papIAoid aq [[im Sururen Sunasiewt

pue ssoursnq ‘A[[eUORIPPY "SISUMOPUE] PUE SISULTE] (0G JO WINUIIUILL B SUILDEST ‘SIN0} pue sdoyss[IoMm (g 1oNPUOD TIM (D UOISINYL,
“(uonenyry) Sunueld sseworq pue ‘Bupusy ‘9FeIof pue Jurzeid paqusaid ‘Juswseueur JUSLNU Se Yons ‘Sadndel] JuswaSeuRA

359¢ TermnoriSe Jo uoneURWRTdUII 3} U0 90UepmS pue ‘Sunaxreu ‘Gururern; ssourstg apraoxd [[Im 1911sIq UOHRAIISUOD) UOISIMYT,

SJOUMOPUET 01 UOIIeINPT SPIAOI "t ISV 44

*19e11U02 JuelS 3y jo uona|dwod
JuswaSeuRI uodn aaiains sguipue|d ay) JO %G/ JO WnWiujw e eyl
0z0T ‘0¢ Joquaidas Ag pue uopensturwpe ‘Suruueld ‘Yoesnno | PUE S3LS UOILBIISUOWSP SB pazl|lin 3F Ued SaUs ainsuj 2TE
10} (SA0QR 895 -5]500 UOHE[[BISUL
JING [BM9E JO %07 03 dn) 0SL9TS

ue|d yelp iHOQ Aq [encadde
yoea jo uonajdwod uodn (10qe[ quswidinbe ‘srerrajeur) 10} ue|d Sul0)UOIAl pue Sunueld Hwgns pue 1eaud qre
uore[eIsul JING 10F 0SLE8S "|e303 Suiuuny e pue pouad Sujliodad yoes 104

( 5 @ juads Junowe [e103 3y} pue ssaiSoud ul pue pare|dwod

soulEpIMd) JINESY dAN ISS o s 0 uonedo| pue 1500 ‘@dA} “sqwnu iods
NAMO@IVIYE/TIV.LId diNe JF MEISESR) PUE 6 A SIRgnll Loesy

INTAHESYNINITT HT19VAAOTIV

‘yoeasino
BAI1E|SIS9| pUBR |BUOI1EINPS 104 SBLIS BZ[|IIN PUE |BAIAINS
$1S00 [BNIOR U0 paseq J0JUOW 0} SJSUMOPUR| UM I0An “sdoud [elnyjnoLiSe
I8 T0S00TS [eluuaiad pue sjueid saneu  Suiziin pooJaynq
a[npayps T yse], rod 1oday | 03 dnjuswesmquuiay] ueuedl jo saioe Qg Sujelol saUs § 0} dn 210159y eTe

3jep uonardwon) FUIUIISINqUITON] J[qEISAIR | I QUIIN
NOIL4TIISA(

LOYETOLED LOVIINOD HOA
L weldo.d Auenis3 [euoleN

ANNOS 1349Md



810T [udy uoIsiAey

95 jo g1 a8eq L0¥ETOLED Wenuo)d HOA
‘ampayos T yse] 1od 31odax
oafo1d reury 10/pue §IVHI WIM sojoyd joaloxd jruugng T
610T-8Z-80 $3500 [EN3Ok U0 paseq 70 795’cS 90USILJUOd [BUOISRI 6/8T(7 € I JUssal] qTs
1u942 0} rouid shep ¢ HOJ 03 S[eLI®}eW UoeIuasa1d JJeIp jruqng eI

djep uonajduroy)

o0} dn JjuswesInquursy

JUDWIOSIMqUIIY]

S[GEISAI[RA

‘suonped1iqnd arnyng 10y pasn are soapia 1o sojoyd aseo ur
9sea[al e pausls sey 0apra 10 0joyd ayy ur suoue amsuy (-39 ‘ssexdoid ‘ssenoid) paloxd ays jo sdip oapia 10 sojoyd sfoad Lpenb-ySry nugng

SOLOHd Z'S

JusA9 03 1011d MATARI 10 HHO(] 01 S[ELIajeW Jyelp jrugng “(doyssyrom
IOPIOYe}s ‘WMNI0] ‘B0un1a§u0d) d1doy 10sfo1d auy 03 JUeas[al JusAs a8urypXe a8paymowy [euorSar e je sawodno aloid jusserd pue ur ayedorire
HONHIAANOD TYNOIDTY LV LNISTIJ T'S

"Te3]d ST UoTEdTUNUIIOD J0 8sodind aImsus pue aduaIpne pajadie) SUTWLIIP 03 O M JTOM

uonesunwwo) pue syedw| Japeolg -S MSVL 44
6102 ‘0¢ 2unf 4q HOQ Wim
pareys werd ym zoz ‘0g "s1onpoid ()7 Jo wmurur
raquisydag £q uonardwon e 0} Sururen SumeIewl pue SSaUISnq SPIAOIJ >TF
020 ‘0¢ 2quidag 4q oz
6T0T ‘ST I2quuada(] 4q 0T SInoj pue sdoysyIom (g PNpPUoD) qry
020T-0¢-60
(s1247y Inoy
pue sdoysyjzom Surpnpur)
MBIIADI @M DU MIIADI $3500 [ENJOE U0 paseq
10J HO( ©3 s[ereieut 09°2SL'9%$ SIaUMOpue] O0¢ Jo
YoBaIINo JeIp Juqng 01 dn JuswesInquirsy wmuIrunu e o} sapruniroddo [euonesnps Spraoig TP

LOYET04dD LOVIINOD HOQ

V LI9HXH

welsoud AJenisy [euone]

ANNOS 149Nd



8107 [Hdy UoISIAY
omwom:wf L0¥€20ED Wwenuod HOd

£31md3s19q£D) — SUOTHPUO)) PUE SWI3 ] [eIdUdD) ¢

‘9181 A[Tep WNWIXew sy} sUTULISISP 03 § Aq parjdinur usys ST YDIYM ‘93el A[INOY WNLIIXEW JUf} SUTWLIRISP 03 SINoY
/807 £q POpIATp ST ATeres [eruue sy, * S[NPAUDS SATINDAXH U3 10 A& JO S31RY,, P3[0S pue / 598 pue Kre[eg, 10925 "EO0/A0S TUAO MMM//-dNY
:)1S JOUIAIU] SUTMO[[O] 313 UO S[NPaAYDSG SAINISXT 3} JO A] [9AS7] 10§ Are[es enuure ai pul Aewr juerdoaiqns au ‘syum] sIeak armyng 104 (I LON

-moy 1ad $9°//$ Aep 19d 74779 ST W 33 /10T ‘T Arenuef jo se /, deD) Jueinsuo)), 9# SUOIPUOD) pue SWI9], [I3U2D) 31} 03 UORIPPE U]

UOHRWIONU] [EUOHPPY - deD) JUB}Nsuo)) - SUORIPU0)) PUE SWLID], [BIdU3D) °Z

SUoOnpuoOy-pue
SWIIeT-JUCIS /STUBIS/A0S edo MMM//-d1I] J8 PUNoj aq Ued 1eak Aq SUOBIPU0D pue Swiis) [eI9UsS dlj) 10§ Aroyisoder wd Ayl

JUSWMOOP STY} JO PUS 3U} 0} Pappe a8 pue ‘pIeme 3l JNOYSNOI) Pajld SUOHILISAI 10 ‘SUORTPUOD ‘SULIS} 3U) Pue pIeme auj jo jred
© Se PR SUOTEDIHS) PUE S30URINSSE 3U} O} UOHIPPE Ul 31 SUORIPUOD PUE SWLIa} 53, “I01e[-10-£10¢- £ [Hde-9ALI9}jo-SUONIPU0)-pUe-SULId]
[eTaUs3-edo/5IUBIS/A0S Bda  MMM//-SATT :1e 9[qe[leA’ SUOGIPUOD PUR SULIR) [BIDUSS H JUSLITD SUf UM Adwods 03 sea1de jusrdaiqns ayy,

£102-£Z-% payepd(] - SUOBIpUOD puE SWIS [e19UID) ‘|

SUOT}IPUO)) SATEIISTUIWIPY PUE SULI3 ], [eI3Pa]

S0°000°00€$ TVLOL
(soLTees JO 9,01 JO a1el

U0 paseq suorR[MO[ed) atey 1211pu] pasoiddy A[rerspay 03 Sutpioooe pardde pue £q parroddns aq 3snu)

€4°40€'a1% $3507) J9911pU]
0T'6LL'€9T$ 1500 211 (810,
00000 T1TS SRR )
00°000°9% sariddng
96'968'T$ [oARIL
2A0QE Ul papnou] syousg
8T'6EY'S91LS saLie[eg
junoury A108318)
145dnd

LOYET09D LOVIINOD HOA

V LIdIHXA Q 4 I
miiISA1 1 £ 1ionic it ianok

LBIS044 ALETL]SH [EUOQILLEN]

J \d o—d ] L L

ANNOS 139N



810 [11dy uoIsIAay
e LO¥ETOED WBDU0) HOA

[BUL} S} 10, "ULIOF 33 JO gT UOHIIS UT  [enuue,, Pafil} X0q a3 o3 03 pajongsur are sjusidosiqns Gzodsr renuue a3 Sunaiduiod usym000'0S1S
spaaoxa yorym uoniod yeys 3snf jou ‘s1qeyrodar are suonoe JusweIndoid [V 'Siseq [eNUUe Ue uo (yzg-004C Wiog v iq) 1oda1  sjusweaidy
A>usBerau] pue spewesidy sanersdoo) ‘SjueIo) [e19pa ISpup) UOHRZIN HAM/ALIA,, © Jruqns pue a3aidwos o0} seaide juatdoaigns ayJ,

4 edqng ‘e¢ 1ed 1D 05 “ONILIOIT IIM/AIN

€€ MeJ LD 0F Ul Paurejuod ‘sjuswsaise sdur)sIsse Japun
senIAROe Judwamooxd 10y wrerSox] (3gQ) esHdieuy sseursng padepreapesic] s,y 4q 70 sjuswaImbar au yim Ardwod o3 seeiSe jusidmaigns sy,

€€ ¥ed "Y4D 0F ‘ADNVITINOD

TVIEANED (AIM/HGN)SHSTIIYILING SSANISNI SNIWOM ANV ALNONIN “TIVIAS 40 NOILVZITILA 'S

"J 1edqng 00T MID T PIm eouepIoode ur sjuswaainbar ypne oy yim L[dwod o3 sseide jusidmeaIqns sy,

TIA xtpuaddy 00z ¥4D T Wim aduepioooe ur [esodoxd a3e1 3500 10911pur ST yruqns pue aredsid o3 sa918e 11 ‘381 3500 109ITpUr
paysIqessa [snotasid e aaey jou saop JusIdoaIqns s J1 4, SIURIERIS Y 21ey 150D JORIIPUL, SUORIPUO)) PUE SWLIS], [EISUID) 33 03 UOTIPPE U]

"preme sy 03 ‘@yerrdordde se ‘sjqesrjdde axe g yredqng 0oz YD 7 Jo sordourid 1500 sy,

[eqIL], pUe $3JB}S 10F $350)) }03IIPU] - SUOTIIPUO)) PUE SWII] [BISUSL)

JPASIURIADAT ISYJ0 10J UOHIPUO) JUBTS AJHTDS 19qAJ/SIUSWO0P/Z0-G [0Z/53]/UONoNpoId/sas/A0S Bda g MMM/ ATy

ssjustdoey Q) 100

"JPA UORIPUOIATTINDSSISqASIURTS[eqI}/STUaWNO0P/Z0-G [0¢/59]J/UOHoNpOId [Solis/ A0S Bda g MMM/:diY

‘SHERLL o

JPAUOTIPUOIATIINDSSISqASJURT 39 €]5/STUSWIDOP//0-G L¢/59]J/U0HoNpoId /5o]15/A0S eda gMMM//-dnY
‘SHIVLS 104

"9)ISqa M SUONIPUOD) PUE SULID ], SJURID) W alf} Uo
PUToj 9q Ued SUORIPUOD pue SULId) aY], *,A}LINdesIaqL)),, SUOBIPUOD pue SULId} [eIouad v 7 Juaimd oy} yiim A[dwos o3 seaide jusidmeiqns sy

LOVETOID LOVIINOD HOA
v LIEHXT wet3o.4d AJenisy [euoileN

ANNOS 149MNd



$107 Hdy uoIsiAey
@:oﬁmuwwm LOPETOED enuo) HOA

-sosurdrauy ssaursng AJIIOULA PUR USWIOA JO 20LJ0) S L-8383S U0IBUIysep
Uy eoreurmroy) jo jusunredac] oy jo LHusdy juawdo[asa ssaulsng AJLIOUIA 3} PUe (S S} JO 2DURISISSE PUE SIDIALSS 33} 5[] (a)

*A[[eNPIATPUL S[pURY] 0} SULIT} 353U} JO U0 10J 93I] 003 ST PRIUOD B USYM SHE(J JO WNHIOSUOD B LM Sunoenuod afemoduy (p)

-ss3001d aanneduros oy ut sgqq £4q uonedpired wnwxew jrured 03 sapiuenb
10 $¥{SB} IS[[eUs O3UI A[qISes] A[[EDIIOU0Da UayMm SpuseImbal 1303 SUIPIAIP SpNOUT [[IM ST} ‘sjuatdDaIgns JUSWILLISAOS) [ED0] PUR
21BIg ‘[eqUL], UBIPU] 10 ‘ST YHIM PRIUOIGNS P[NOD soeruod 98rel 103 Sunadwod sWiIly RyRyMm ssapo1d Sunoenuod ay} ur WPIsuo) (9)

‘a1ep Sursop

resodoxd 10 piq ay3 a10Joq sAep TepuUS[Ed (¢ 1O Wnwrurw e 10§ sfesodoid 10 spiq 10§ SUOHEIDIOS 3unsod ‘aqissod 1aAsURYM ‘SapTOUL

sty "ssa001d aannadwon ayp ur sggQ Aq uonedpnred ssyeyiioe; pue sadeInoous jely Kem e ut ynured syuewsimbal ay a1eym ‘Ss[npayos
AI9AT[OD UST[qe)Se pUE S10BIUO0D 10F SAWERI} 2N 2SueLie pue Sg(J 03 9[qe[leae senmumaoddo Surooy}Ioy uo uoreWIONUI eI ()

-saoanos Tenueiod are Aay) 1eAsusyM WAy} SURDIOS
pue s3s1] UoneIDI0S Uo sgg Sumeld spnpur [[Im S ‘siuaIdosIqns JUSWUISAOD) PUE [J07] PUR 311G ‘Teqli], UeIpU] 104 "SShianoe
JUSUIINIDAI PUE Ypesnno y3noiys ajqeonoeid Juaixa 1s9[[ny a3 o} sespiumioddo Sunoenuod jo s1eme apeu a1e sgg( oImsug ()

“pouTeIal 3q [[eYS SHOHe 13Tej poos XIs oy yim aowerjdurod Supuewmoop sp103ay *A[dW0oD 0STe ST03ORIUOD
swrid pue ‘syustdioa1 ueo] ‘syusidaI-gns jey) axmbal 0} pue Jusweaide aduelsIsse [EDURUY Y JH Ue :2pun sorjddns pue seorazes yuewdmba
“rorpnnsuod Sunmoord 19A9USYM SHOFR Uire poos SuImoroj sy} axew o} sea1de justdioaidns ay} “T0g'EE WORIRS MAD 0F 03 Fuensing

o pedqng ‘e¢ Wed “MID 0F ‘SLY044d HLIVI A0O0D XIS

-moTaq paureidxs pue (1 3redqng ¢g 18 AD 0F UL PagrDdssp se uogenodau seands(qQ areys Ireg pue D yedgng ¢¢ 1reJ
IO 0F UT paqLIdssp se spuswaImbai 1105 Yire] poos) sl SUIpnpul 4o9d Ul Urews ¢¢ 3ed D 0F Ul pauIino syuawaImbai 1930 ) ‘TaAsMOYy
Z0G"6¢ UON0RS “E¢ B AIID OF UI paqLdsap se sjuswaimbaz Suntoder FEM/IIN U3 WO UOHRIARP pasordde ue sjussardar uoisiaoid smyL,

T suniodeiaqp/dqso/A0s edo MMM//-dig
1€ 986 ] WO 5 We1d0l ] ssoulsng [[EWS Jo 90 VJd 9y e Punoj aq ued yYgg-004S WO VJH JUs1ImD Sy,

w0y oy Surjerdwod UsyM ge UOTas Ul X0q U3 3P p[noys jusidioaigns aip ‘porzad Sunzoder oy
Sunmp aoeqd axe3 syuswamdoid pajedpng ou J] jou 1o porrad Sunrodar ayy Surmp 2oe[d axe) sjuewanooid pauueld oy PyRYM A[Tenure 1rods1
03 paxmbaz a1e Juswanooxd 103 spuny pajedpnq 10/pue papuadxe pm spupidpaIgNg ‘sjuRwRIMo01d [€30} UO paseq St juowesmber Buntodar sy,

15113 SOUIOD 1AUPTYM ‘portrad 1pefoxd ayy jo pus auy 13 SABP (6 10 wOE 12400 Aq 2np dIe syr0dai Teury “Ieak Uoes JO g 22qoin0 £q
anp are s310del [ENUUY “WIOF U3 JO T UOIDas UT 30a(o1d aup Jo ,310da1 1s€, U} 103 Pa3edIPUL XOq aUj} 3PP 0} pIjonysut aie syustdoaIqns 410dex

LOFPETOTD LOVAINOD HOA
V LIdIHXd e 1I2ai1 Ai1emea evonen
: 1] ,

Fay 4)_ o |

AAA S AN A M WAL food =]
¥

ANNOS

CUNJILT N

19Nd



8107 [1dy uoIsiasy
e LOVETOHD wenuod HOA

JpAdSTeOSaTeySITe]() [1/5Jpd/dqSO/A0S Bdo MMM]/:dITY :puro] 3q Ued s[eo3/s3A1103(qo areys 1rej 0] Uor3sy syl "VJid
UM pajenodsu s[eos/saandalqo areys ey ggm/agIN 21qeordde s sydeooe jusidiaigns sy, 10w 10 ‘000°062$ 51 VI woif 1ea4 [eds1y [eI1opay
FUSLIND 23 UT SJUSWSISE 80URISISSE [eDeU S JUsIdDaIqNS U3 JO [[8 JO JUNOUTe IR[[Op [30} 9} 10 JUSWSSISe a0ur)sIsse STU2 JO JUNOWE IB[[OP Y.

yuetdpay] 1a130uy jo sfeon)/saanda(qQ sreys 1reg a3 Sundaooy

‘uondwsxa ue 103 £1renb Aewr vonezueSIo 1YY YUy £5U3 J1 ‘T0FRUIPIO0d FE(] IBYL YILM J1om pnoys syuardoaiqng (] 1edqng ‘e¢ e 904D
0% Ul paqrsap se sjuswarinbal saana(qo areys 1rey ayy woiy 3dwaexe aq Aew syusrdmdaIqns WS TTF ¢ WOTI9S 1D 0F YILM 90UBPIOIDE U]

"SJUaWaa13. 9OURISISSE [RIDURUT 31} Iopun jusweinsoid ur uonednnred
HEM PUE HEIN 10 $941103(qo axeys 1rey ‘aauSisap IaY/s1y 10 ‘Tenyjo preme g sreudoidde ayy yim syenofau jsnw justdoaiqns v

sreos) Sundeooy sjuerdmesiqng 10 g

"sjueweImO01d s11 U ST /AFIA JO UOTeZIIN U} 10 S[e0d/saandalqo areys

Irej ajejodau o3 paxmbai jou st pue ‘( 3redqng ‘ge 1e g 4D 0F J0 siusweimbai sanalqo axeys ey a3 woy 3dwexe ST JUSISIZE 2OURISISSE
ST JO Jua1dIDaIqNs S} SI0JRIBY L, *$S3] 10 000’0STS ST Tea4 [0S [eIPa,] JUSLIND S UT Y JT WOL S{USWaaISe 0UEISISSe [RIDURUL S Aueidaiqns
943 JO [[& JO JUnOoure Ie[[op [e303 33 10 !Ssa] 10 ()00’0STS ST IUNOUTe preme a3 10 (5 ],) JULID) SDULISISSY [EDIUYDA], € SI JUSUISaISE 90URISISSe ST T,

$$977 10 000'0STS SPIEMY JUeLD) 101 I

d ¥edqng ‘e¢ 3ed “MID 0% ‘SHALLDH[GO TIVHS WIVA

‘suondurexe pue syueweimbai oyads 107 (9) pue (q) 105 EE UOHIAG A

0F 295 ases]{ "spuswaImbar Surppiq 2anneduwod “Mo[[0} 03 3500 10 ‘03 33[qns ST ueo[ 2y J0 FUSIdPaI S13 J1 IST] SIDPPI] B UTEIUIEW PUR 3}231D 0}
SUeO[ payuap! SUIATe0al saljljue axmbaz 03 8918k ose puny ueo] Surajoas: e azi[e3ided 03 JUSW3ISe SDUEISISSE [RIDURUT) V[ UB jo syusidaIgng
ISI] SI9PPIq & UTejurew pue ajea1d 0} sa13e querd Suniodar fenuue 1830 10 juern) weidoi] [ejuswuonauy Sumunuo)) e jo spusrdoaiqng

(@) Pue (9)105°¢E UonI3S MAD 0% "LSI1 Sudadid
"TOE'EE UOTOAG Y IO OF J0 suorstaoid uonensmururpe 1oenuod auy yiim Ajdwod o3 sea18e justdoaiqns ay,
C0E°€E U0TIRS WID 07 ‘SNOISIAOCUd NOLLVILSINIANAYV LOVILNOD

“uo1}09s
ST} 3O (3) ySnonyp (e) syderSered ur sdass s a3qe3 0} 1o1enU0d swird a1 a1mbai ‘Spoeruodqns spreme 1030e1U0d awtrd au I n

L0¥E70dD LOVIINOD HOA
V LIGIHXH T

{ 1M e 170 1~ 1R
o | | \ )

A\ 1S - ) =
F A ol L) = AN LG

o0

-

o

ANNOS 13IDNd



8102 [1dy uoisiasy
ww,wcmmuw.mm LOFETOED Wwenuo) HOA

syuardpay ueoT Jo se05)2AR03[(qO

XINO SIURTdDay 419 SA TAIINMOYT PUR NUSMD "TISMA 104 7

'spe08/saanpalqo ateys irey ay; SunenoSsust usym  1redqng
‘e 1R YLD 0F UI PAUI[INO se sjuawaImbal mo[0j 03 pasmbai st justdaiqns sy, 'seAndalqo axeys Irej au} Bunzoddns zyep ay3 03 sadueyp
JUeogTUSIS 3T SIS} SSI[UN STEaA [edSTy 991U} 10§ 10919 UT UTeWSI $9AR09[q0/sTeos paystqesss ' 1edqns ‘€€ 1Ted YD 0F YHm 9UepIodde uf

speos)/san03[qQ areys 1reg Suneno8aN

Tpd-s[e0SaIeySIIe( [1/5]Pd/dqso/A0S edo MMM//-dnY
:punoj 9q ued s[e03/s9A103[q0 SIRYS ITef () UOLSY ST, "9I0UW 10 ‘000’057 ST VdH WO Teak [eds]; [e1apa)
JUSLIND DY} U SJUSUWI=aISe 90uelsisse epueu s juetdioaigns a3 JO [[e O JUNOue Ie[[op [e30} 3U} 10 JU9Lua91de aDUe)SISse STU JO JUNOWE IBT[OP SY,

[e0D/eAI3[qQ 31RYS IIe] JUaLIin)

-uonyduexa ue 103 A3renb Aewr uopeziueSIo 1Y) UL A813 JT 10JeUIPL00D I IPUR YHM JIOM P[Noys syusrdaigqng (] 3redqns ‘c¢ 1ed
~[4D) OF Ul paqusap syuswaimbai saanoalqo axeys 1rej sy woiy 3durexe oq Lew sjusidoaIqns auios 1§ ¢ UOHORG WD 0F WM 20UepIodde U]

‘SjUsWRaISE 2oUR)SISSE [EDURUL a3 Jopun juswamooid ur uogedpnred
T9M PUE N 10} $3A10[qo aTeys rej ‘asudisep IoY/sIY 10 ‘eRyjo preme I3 ayerrdordde aup ypam ajenodau s juatdpaiqns ayg,

s[e0s) paysi[qessy ynm syusrdoaiqng 103 g

“peITqNs a1e s[eos/oAndalqo areys ey pasodord

au [un sjuswemoo1d 10§ spury v st puadxs jou Aew justdiaigns ey ‘suwrer awy Aep 0T Ui UIHM PIALRII JOU S8 sreog/aan0a(qo

areys 1rey pasodoid J] “UoIsSTIgNS auy SUIALEDAI JO SABD OF UIyim S[eo3/eAnds(qo a1eys 1rej pasodoxd aup 03 puodsal [[Im Y JH “PIeME DURISISSE
[emueUTy U Jo aoure3dande s31 Jo sAep (7T UIYHM I03BUIpIoo)) FAM/AGIAl [BUOL3sy 2y 03 ‘Apmys Ayredstp 10 sisATeue Anqiqerreae unioddns

o ypm 1eypesos ‘speod/seanoalqo axeys ey pasodoid jnuqns o3 see1de jusrdioaigns sy, ‘Justdaiqns Iayjour Jo s[eos/saandalqo areys

1rey a3 Sundeooe jou st 1uetdaIqns s yey suesw Aprys Ljuredsip 1o sisATeue Supioddns sy yaim sjeod areys Irey pasodoid jo uorssnuqgns Y],

quawdmba pue sarjddns ‘seo1atas “UonONISUOD 10§ 13rew Suldng onydei8098 juead|al IS} UT SHAM Pue SHIN pagirenb jo “Apns Ajredsip 10
‘sisATeur Ly[iqe[reae ue uo paseq s[eod/saanda(qo gam/A4IA pasodoxd yrurqns o3 seaide yuerdaiqns A ‘sTe08/saandalqo areys 1ey gGM/AGN
UMO 811 23e13080U 0] SaUSIM JUBIdIDaIqNs s J] S[e0S/seandslqo axeys 1rey FGM/AFIN UmO s} eenoBau o} uondo i sey juardideIgns s,

B0P'EE UORDAS D 0F ‘STe0D/s2A192[qQ d1eyg e SunenosaN

Jorewr Surdng oryder80s8 jueAs[a refrurs 1o sures ayj ur Justudmba pue sed1ates ‘se[ddns UOHONISUOD TR[IWIS 10 SUIES A} Surseypand
ST 11 JEU3 1087 93 0 $38933e pue sTeoS/saandalqo areys irey sy Sundeooe st juerdpaiqns auy ~usuIoaISe aour)sISSE [BDURUL ST} SuTuSts Ag

LOYETOED LDVIINOD HOA
V LISIHXA T

IR0 | A 11 JJ] I 2R©
AACADOUAA / .‘.K.__,lw .,:U., l _,r\ rxh.r..;nﬁr\\_/.,

aNNOS 139Nd



8107 [1dy uoIsiay
e LO¥ETOID Wwenuo) HOA

‘porrad aupy 105 uerd yrom
JuswRaISe 2OURISISSE AU} UI paysI[qelss sawooino/sindino ay; o3 spusurystdwodoe remoe jo uostredwon e e

'seare SUTMO[[OF Y3 JO DB UO UOTFEULIOJUI JoLiq apnjour Jey spodar souewrozzed jruqns o3 ssaide justdmaigns sy, [rew JTUI0I0S]?

4q papruuqns aq [[eys pue 100530 19[01] sy £q papraoxd wioy SIVHE Y U0 18010 109[01 93 03 panTwqns aq [[eys syioday ‘1esk Iepusfed
yoee Jo yiog equietdag pue 3sTg Yorey pue [reys sporrad Suniodsx oy, -porred Sunzode yoes Jo pus a 1eige sAep repused gg anp a1e syroday]
(SLVHL) weysAg Suppei] Sununoddy waisAsooy pue [ELURUL] punog 18nJ s,vJq ySnony syrodsx souewrorrad jruugns [im jyusidmoaigns oy,

“UOTJBT}IS A} SA]OSS1

03 Papasu adue)sIsse Aue pue ‘paie[dwajiod 10 Usx e} UORDE JU} JO JUSWRIL)S B 9PNUT [[eys Uonesyrou sny], "ue[d s1om juswesile aoue)sisse

U U1 payads sawodino/sindino ey 3eswr o3 Ayiqe suy aredwr A[[erayew [[Im UDTUM UMOLD] 9009 SUOHIPUOD ISIFAPE 10 SAR[EP ‘swa[qoxd

S U00s se 19010 10301 a3 wirojur 03 sa918e jusidpaiqns ayy ‘sjeridordde sy sentanoe payroddns-preme aiy uo edur JuedTyIudIs B aAey

ye syuswdoreaep jo 1e8eury spRRUC) HOJ 943 Ajnou Aprerpauwrur [reys jusidoaigns aup ‘sprodal soueuLIo}Iad [enuue-Twss s} 03 UORIPPE U]

'§3800 JIUN YSTY I0 SUNIIAO 3502 Jo uoneue[dxs pue sisiTeue ‘srerzdordde usym ‘Surpnpur uoneurioyur jusuniad [euonyIppe D

foyerzdozdde 31 4owr Jou azam s[eo8 paysiiqesss Aym suoseazayy °q
‘portad aup; 10j ueld syroM JuSWesISE S0UEISISSE U UT PaySI[qeIss sawodino/sindino ayy oy syuswnysidurosse [enpe jo uosuedwos e ‘e

:seare SUTMOTOF a3 JO
UoBS U0 UONBULIONUT Ja11q Spn[out jey syrodar souewtoprad juqns o3 seaxde justdaigns oy ‘srerzdozdde se ‘9767007 MAD) 7 YHLM S0UBPIODIE U]

“A[reoruondse papraoid aq Aew pue 10130 199(0L] VJF 243 03 pepruqns aq [reys syiodsy “pouad Sunroda ypes JO puR
a3 1333e sAep Iepus[ed ¢ anp are sprodey “psford sy jo 931 a3 Suninp sypuow (g) xs L1949 sprodar souewroyrad jruqgns [reys justdaIgns auy],

5310day] DURULIONISJ [ENUUY-TWAS T

SUOIJIPUO,) DIJVIIIDAS O]

"UIRIA} 9dURIeFe1 £q 31 9yerodIoour 10 Juswaside aoUrR)SISSE [RIDUBUL U3 Ul 9010UD ST} Ajpads
3snu JuSTdDAIGNS BY], *SINJ0 UOTIE JuswaInooid aU} UYDIYM Ul 1eak 91 I0J 10 papIBME ST Ueo] PAHUSpT U UDIYM UT 180k a1 10§ ID1e soerd
ur 2A1a[qo axeys 1rey sy A1dde 03 asoop Lew justdaiqns ay) “1eak 2UO UL} SIOUX T9A0 INDJ0 [[IM sjuswamdoxd I1 ey seaide justdaiqns sy

" ¥edqng ‘e 1ed D 0F UM 30URPIOIE UT SHIM PUR
STAIAl JO AJI[Iqe[TeAR 31 JO 2OUBPIAR J[qRISUOWRP U0 Paskq aq 1S s[eod/saandalqo syeredss asay ], “sjusrdioa Ueo] paynuspI sj1 im saAnalqo
aIeys Irey ojeredss 3enodau 10 4axrew oryderSoss jueas[ar rerurs A[[erueIsqns B SUISN SUBO[ PAYIUSPI 01 VT UM parenodsu saanoalqo areys
arey umo syt A|dde oe 03 sea1de Jusrdidaigns sy ‘spuny weo] Sura[oadl sz1Teided 0} JUSUIeaISe SDULISISSE [BDUBUT Vi U Jo Juaidaiqns e sy

LOPETOID LOVIINOD HOA
V LISTHXT e e i 1 53 [BUOIEN]

'

ANNOS 139Nd



10T [udy uoIsiAay
mﬂommomﬂ LOYETOED 10enuo) HOA

JusuIsie)s SUTMOTIO]
3U} UTEIUOD [[RYS Jusweaide aouessisse iy} Aq papuny spafoid jo jred se pado[easp “erpaut 19130 10 ‘S09p1A 98euSis ‘suswinoop ‘syrodayy

Surpung v 44 Jo uonuS0d3y °g

“pajoarp Suraq S1 A9AINS B} WOYM 0} () PU ‘UOHEULIOJUT 3Lf} 10} PaaU a3 JO uopjeue[dxe
(7) ‘pa3231100 9q 03} UoHEULIOJUT a1 Jo uondLosap (T) :UopeWIOFUr SULMO[[OF a3 IO 109(01 V5 2 03 @praoxd iim jusidoaigns sy,

-suostad a10w 10 0T 03 pesod suonssnb reonuspr Jo

sueawu Aq UOIEULIONT JO Uonda[[od s juardmeIqns au 03 Iotd soueres (INO) 398png pue JusIaSeURIA JO 20FO UIRIqO 03 Vg sermbai /( bas
13 T0SE 'S 1 ¥%) S661 JO 1V uononpay sromrade] ayy “Aj1anoe Sulioyes-UOTJeUIOFUL TB[IUIIS 10 arreuuonsanb e ‘£aAIns e sapnoul 3I0Mm JO
adoos awy asnedaq ‘waloxd auy Sunerdwos ur Py uononpay spomrade] 2y Jo spuewaImMbar 3y m Ardwod o3 9918e Justdoaiqns sy3 pue V4

sjuRWAIINbay UOIIOI[[0)) UCTRULIOFU] “f

‘saanoa(qo pafo1d a1qiSi[e 1oylINy 03 pasn a4 [[eys pue Juerdaigns
a3 pue Vi Aq 1aloxd sy 03 papTunuod spuny o} pappe aq [feys pue jueidmaIqns ay3 Aq paure;at aq [[eys potad 10afo1d a3 Suump
pauIes swoout weiSoi “afo1d sny 03 pajerar swodur weidoxd 1oy junodde 03 parmbai st justdaiqns s ‘payersuad st awoour wrerdoxd J

uonIppV — dwodu] urerdorg ¢

Kressavouun 10 ayerzdorddeur st 10de1 € yons swesp 10gj0 19[01g sy 1 170de1 sduewiojad [euyy € 103 yusweambaz ay)

aatem Aewr 1901330 9l01 ] oy ‘oefoxd sy jo uonadurod 19y "porad 1aloxd ainus au 19400 p[NoYs ing ‘syrodaz orpotrad a3 Ul St UOIFRULIOUT
oures aup ureruod A[eieuss [reys 11ods1 sy, A[edruonpae papracid aq SNW pue 1001JO 19301 AU} 0} PAHIIANS 3] [[EYS jiodaz oyl "preme

a3 Jo uonEUTILIS} 10 UoneIdxe sy 1a)e sAep Iepualed o NP ST YPTYM ‘SIV AT YSnoay 110da1 soueuLiojrad [euy e jrugns [Teys juatdoaigns YL,

j10day soueUIIONRJ [RUL] 2

“UOTJENIIS 3L} IA[OSDI
03 papasu aoue)sisse Aue pue ‘paje[diaiuod 10 Uade} UOTOE 313 JO JUSWD}e)S & IPNDUI [[eYS UOHROYHOU STY], e[d JI0M JUSWISAITL SOUR)SISSE 3}
ur pagads sswoono/sindino sy j9aur 03 A1[iqe si redwt A[[eLIseul [[IM UDIYM UMOLD] 3LI003] SUORIPUOD 3SIDAPE 10 sAefop ‘surajqoid se uoos

se TeSeur A 1081U0D) O Y3 WIoFur o3 seaide jusidoaiqns ayj ‘erenrdordde sy ‘saniande psjroddns-preme ai uo yoeduwr juedryrudis e asey
ey sjuswidoaasp jo wSeuely s1RIU0D) O 24 Ajnou Aajerpaunut [reys jusrdioaiqns auj ‘sjzodar sourULIOjIad [ENULE-TWRS Y} 0} UORIPPE U]

*g3s00 J1un Y31y 10
SUNII9AO 3509 JO UoHeULIOfUI pue sisATeue ‘sreridordde usym Surpnpul ‘UOHEULIOFUT juauniad reuontppe
Jow J0U 1M sawodno/syndino paysiqeisa j1 sadeddis 103 suosear a3 °q

LOPETOED LOVIINOD HOA
V LIGIHXE A .

LBI304d Aden]sT [BUOIIEN|

ANNOS 139Nd

P o |



8107 [Hdy uoisiaay
e LO¥ECOD Wwenuo) HOJ

000'00¢$ P995X 0F J090Xy 10 peaoxy SpUI] JUSWISaIsy 90UBISISsy [B1opag

JusWSaISe ST} I9PUN Biep [BJUSLULIOIIAUS JO 3N 10 Uolerauss oy} Surajoaur sanianoe Aue 1no Surdires
03 1o11d £ousjedurod sjensuOWap (0S SUOP BSTMISYRO SeY 31 SSI[UN) [[IM 31 BIED [EIUSWIUOIIAUS JO UOH}RISUSS 10 95N 3L} SAJOAUL [[IM Pue (Jusueside
ST} 03 spusWpuawe Juanbasqns woy SunmsaI) 000‘007$ SPa9oxe pIeme sTy uo payeSiqo Surpuny [eI8paj [B303 A3 J1 Jeyy searde jualdaigng

000°00¢% O1 A1 SpUTl] JUeWoeisy SoUeIsIssy [E1opa]

"paeMmE ST} 103 J20IFO) 193[01 Vg 3y Supdeiud £q pajsenbar aq oste Aewr £dod e 10 WA AWOSqE]/Wa}/ACS Bde MMM/

¥e auruo aqereae st £>1104 a3 jo £dod v "ssenord Sunrodar fenuure sy SuLmMp pajUSWNOOP 3q [ SIU} PUR JUsWaa1de STU} JO

porsad 308(01d a1t 30 uonRIMp B3 10§ Aousjeduod urejurew [[eYs JUsIdDAIGNS TTPWRSISY SoUESEEY PopUn-AoUssy TOPUN Bje(] JUSWUaINSEaN
[BJUSWILOIIAUY SURBISUST) SUOHEZIUESI] O AJUS3ad o)) aU 9aNssy 0F AJNO] ‘Z0-Z10T-INH JqUINN 2A10a11 £31[0J £5UsSY Ujim 0uepIosde uf

Bl JUdUIaINSedJy [ejuduruoiiaug Suisn) 1o/pue Sunerauas) suoreziuesiQ yo LHusjadwo) g

"Aprys papuny au3 woxy Sunnsaz spnpoid 1o sprodai reuy Aue Sursester o3 zoud 1ouo 301 a1y 0 papraoid

29 [IMM Id 943 £q passaIppe aIe sjusunuod aaRdadsar Moy o uondiiosap Jaliq & pue SJUSUIIOD JO PIOdAI Y ‘Sjsienads 1ojeu oalqns juessrar
30 Sunsisuod dnoid 10SIApE 10 MITARI [EDTULDS) B WOL} SOBQPIa) PUL MIIADI ‘ao1apeE 301[0s 3snut 3(oxd sty Jo (1) 10reSnsaau] redourtg
aup sponpoad [eonnoe) yuesyrudis Aue Surzireuy o3 1011 ‘punog 1280 03 Sunea SUOISAP JUSWRSeurw 09332 Aewr 1oaloxd sty jo symsaz ayL

MITAIY 193] '/

FGE/SWIo1/510° punosias Ndos MMM//Sany 1e3png

pasodoxd 1t ur seousIayuod Surpusie 10§ s3505 paredonue spnppur prnoys jusidmeiqns ay, -Surdpor pue [eaen 107 Aed 03 spuny preme asn oy
pamolre aq (1M Jusidaiqng “pesodord srom au Jo a1njeu au uo puadap [[1m s30usIaUD dyIadg JOUSIoJUODCaS SI[e5 NP MM MMM//:a1IY
SUOHEID0SSE JUBAS[RI I3}0 10 DPYRUSDS ‘Teuolssajord ‘[equ, Jo sSumeaw [euotSal 10 [e90] pue /q8sd/jUos M/ Apa uoisursem sidap;/:dny
SOURISJUOD) WRISAS00Y Ulseq e181090)-punog j28nd [eruusIq a3 ‘) PajIWI] J0U 918 INg ‘@PNIOUT SIDUSIFUD JUBAIRI Aenusjod

Jo o[durexy N10M Papuny oy} JO SILIUNUIWIOD UOTRIO}SSI pue Uoipajold waysAsods ogenbe a81e] pue ‘eag ysi[eg ‘punog 198N a3 Unim
ssaUsIeME astel 0 A[[eTaual pue ‘edusLIadxe I8y WOy 1yausq AeUl Jey) SUOLEZIUBSIO YIIM SI0M papuny I12y3 INodge UoneuIojur 93ueypxs 03
S{IOM PapUNy A3 03 3je[al jeys swreidord pue SOANRLIUL JUBAS[SI JDIO WOL Jjauaq pue ynoqe ures] o3 senmmzoddo wpim syusrdoaiqns spraoid
03 sTjuaWRMba1 sy Jo asodind By, "I IURID) A3 Y3LM UOHRI[NSUOD UT PAUIULISIOP 94 [[IM SIdUaIajuod oypads ay] “uorger punog 3123nJ

1R8N a1y uryImm aq Aew yorym “reak yoes sadusejuod sjerzdoidde arow 10 suo pusye Aeur justdaiqgns sy,
$30UIIFUCD) [ENUUY °g

,osn

10} UOHEPUIUILIOD 10 JUSWSSIOPUS J1JISUO0D §3onpord [EIDISUWIUIOD 10 SIUTEU SPEI} JO UOHUIW S0P 10U “A>us8y U01309)01 [BIUSUILIOIIAUY
Y3 30 sapI[0d PUE SMIIA 3} JO3[FT A[ITESSIDIU JOU OP JUSWNIOP SIY} JO SIUSUOD L. “YI[EdH Jo Jusunreda 33e1S U03BuIysep 03 1088800
-Dd Juswaa1de aduelsIsse pun AUy U01d}01] [JUSUWIUOIIAUY S3e1§ Pa3ru() 3y} Aq red ur 10 A[joym pepunj usaq sey pafoxd siyy,,

LOYE€T09D LOVIINOD HOA
V LIFTHXH

} _‘
IR0 1 1 A I1PO1IC 1D IOND
5014 AJeNn]sy |euoiieN|

i
¥ |

48]

LA ™ R |

aNNOS 139Nd



8107 [Mdy UCISIAY
%%R%ﬁ LOYEZOTD Wenuo) HOA

“JUWINDO(] premy ays Jo a8ed juos ayy Uo pais] 1oWJO 19901 W7 oL 1orjuod sseafd ‘suonysanb aaey

noA£ j1 ‘sweyrenbpesy v g woi sjeaoidde ayerzdordde ureiqo ued A3y 3y} 0S ‘01X 10/pUe EPEURD) Surpnpout ‘Arjunoed ayj 3o yno pauuerd st
[2aeT 31 a[qrssod se uoos se 180130 18(01] VJH oA joepuod ases]] ‘Tescidde v LIO soxmbai ‘9ousIeyucd e pusye 03 afdurexs 103 ‘Anunod udeiIoy
e 0 din) Jo1Iq B UDAT *SIND00 [9ART TYOIAd (VLIO) IV [eqLi], PUe [eUoneuIsiu] jo 30530 aui 49 pasoidde aq jsnu [ARI], [EUOT}EUISIU] [[Y

(epeue)) Surpnpuy) [9aei] [eUORUIU] L)

‘3s9nba1 UoGRIASD € UO UOISIDIP [eUl] B SUDNEW 910J3q YV JH YHM J[NSU0d 0} SaqL1} Pajoajye 103 fnumyroddo a3 spraoid pue 301007

j0 usurpreda(] uojBurysEM a3 pue (VYON) UOHENSIUTpPY dLeydsouny pue d[uesd() [eUOHEN a3 U3Im I3JUoDd [[IM VT ‘uerd yuroduou ayeis
oy} pue (STALL) SPeoT Afre Wnwixely [e3o, ‘sueld A1oA0091 UOWIes ‘ejep jusussasse 0Jads-a31s e |pns SadIN0S Wwoly padolpaap aq pmod
S[eUONEI JYIUSIDS AU ] SINSST FULAI[DI ISU30 0 S[BUONEI YIS A} U0 yndut [eqrs szLreununs jsnui jsenbar ayT -A19A0021 uowyes pue Ajenb
1e1em Suntoddns 105 szapng jo Aoenbape SunensUOWSP S[eUOHEI SHUSDS AU} FIWGNS SN as)uers ai ‘uondadxs ue 1oy jsenbai e ajenyess

0} VI 10] 19pI0 U] "y Jd £q paaoidde uondsoxe ue ySnoIy; paureiqo aq ATUo Ued SUOHEIAS(] AISAOISI UOWIES pue Ayipenb xe3em 110ddns o3

eae 1alo1d s ur senradoid oy} UO $2SIN0D 19eM IB30 UO $92IN0S UOTN{[od SSAIPPe SSIMIAIO 10 SIOFNg uelredit ayerzdozdde spnpur sresodoad
UPTUM 03 JUSIX@ 33 1opISUod pnoys os[e seajueid ‘sjesodoid josfozd Surdoasp UsYAL "2A0]E PIDURIRIRI SUOHEPUSWILIOISL U} LHTM Adusysisuod
s1alord SunTIm UT WITFUOD [[BYS $993URID) ‘9dUepNS ¢10T ‘8T 22030 3 10 “(g107 ‘91 [1dy ajep paaredal duess) €107 ‘6 117dV pue (€102

4 Areniqay - ayep paaredez dureis) 107 ‘0¢ ATenue[ Jo SI1919] 9DIAISG SILIDYSL SULTRIN [BUOHEN] A 90TAISG UOHERAIDSUOD) 2DIN0SY [EIMUEN A} pue
VdH 01 pap1aoid SUOHEPUSWILIODDI Jojjnd UeLred I WLIDIUI 33 UFIAM JUSISISU0D 3¢ ey Seale [eimndLige ur spoaford uone1oisat oymq uerrednyy

stopng uenedny oL

(XOIM) 38ueypxg AIeng) BYeM S,V PUR SSHIATIOR UDJEW UiLm pajernosse eiep Ajrenb 1ajem jo adeiols au 10§ pazinn
aseqeiep I MOLS-Uou Aue usamiaq yem ssom e do[aasp 03 paSeinodus a1e sjusidpaigng “(aseqerep 130 awos 10 LHIOLS ur) aqqrssaooe Aprqnd
aq }SNW UOT}eWIOFuT Sunnsai ay ‘ejep Ayienb 1a3em jo uonersussd oy} SAJOAUT JUSWSISE 2IUR)SISSE [EI2Pa] ST} 10 YDYEW! S PIPIWINS SIRIARIE J]

XbM]191075/A05 edo MMM//-dII 3& PUTO] ¢ Ued ‘STeroin} Surpnoul

‘ssnoyarem [TNOLS AU PUE ‘GaM XOM XM INOJe UOTEULIOJUT SIOJA] “SI0MIBN 2SUeydXH 9 U0 s1outred 10911p jou axe jeiy sI0}eIoUR3

eiep IS[[EWS 10§ Jewiio} [TO.LS U} OIUL BIEP JI9AUOD 0} [003 Paseq gam e ST gam XDM 21dnys THIOLS/XOM 24 03 2IIoN1s sseqeiep a3
dewr sowyred ewayps XOM oY Surs] SIomIaN a8urypdxy [eqIL], PUe 93elS YV IH 9} UM PajeID0Sse BUUSLDS Bjep 1ajem ayj S (XOIM) 28ueyoxg
ANITeny) 193E M YL "BIEp JEIQRY PUR [e130[01q WOl Pajelousd Sadpul pue SOLOW alj} PUe ‘ejep [ed180[0IqODTW ‘ejep AyoIX0] 9pNIPUI BjRP

Y[ "oNSST} UST pUe JUSWIIpas ‘Idyem 10 synsar ajduues [eordofo1q pure ‘Tesruwaip ‘[easdyd sapnput LHIOLS 103 areudoxdde eyep Ajipenb 3ep "gam
XOM 10 XOM Ioyte Sursn asnoyarem eyep (ITMOLS) [eALnay pue a8.1035 s,A0uady auj 0jul papIwusues q 03 paambai aq [[m ‘premeqns Aq 10
Apoa1Ip I9pTe ‘JusiueaIde 30URISISSE SIU} JO J[NSal B se Ue[] 309(01] adueinssy Ayfeny) paaoidde v Jf Ue yim aouepIodde ur pajerauad eyep Lienb
oyeM [V $198pnd IU3 UI $3500 Uons apnpul pue sued 31om Iy ojul spuetweambai Suniodal paziprepuress a3myusur o} paxmbaz are syusidaIqng

juawaambay LHVOLS '6

"BJEp [EJUSWIUOIIAUS JO 9ST 10 UOHEISUSS 9y} SUIAJOAUL PIEME 21} Jopun sajiande Aue no
Suiires o 1o1d Aousieduios ajEnSUOWSP PUE UOTBIUSWNIOP JruIqns 0} saa1de jusrdaiqng ayT, -a[qesnoeid jou s Adusjaduiod Jo UOTIBLSUOWRD
preme-a1d e ameym ‘ApAeuIsife 10 ‘preme o3 zoud Aouajedurod payensuowap sey i Jey ‘Juswsaide sy o Surrejue 4Aq ‘seaile justdpaigng

LOYETOID LOVIINOD HOd
V LIGIEXJ B s of ieace: DAL LA

i T f 1
ot I 4 { AW LWIH N,
i \)

AA TAINS A

A

ANNOS 13DNd



810T [Ldy uersiaay
e LOYETOED 19enU0) HOA

‘spIemeqns g 10§ 9[qLi[eul axe senianoe Surdqqor ur a8e8us Jel apo) anusAsy [eUISIU] 93 JO (F)(2)T0G UOHISS I9pUn UoLEXE)
woiy durexe suoneziuedio yyoiduon 19y 3mMsosI(] SUILGQOT a3 JO € UOTI9G UT pauljap St SILIALDR Surfqgor ur a8e3us 10U [[I1M pue
jou s20p INq 3P0 3 JO (F)(2) TG Uondag Ul paqrssp uonezuedio jyorduou e st 31 123 10 {9867 JO 9POD) SNUSASY [BUISiu] 33 Jo (5)(2)105
UOHI3G U PaqLdsap uoneziuesio 101duou e jou ST 31 ey swrre 3ustdoaiqns sy 40y 2Imsopsi(] Sut£qqor st Jo 8] UOHIag 0F JUBNSING Al
'SPIEMY [BISPa] 19puf) s1oenuU0)) ATUY [eIapa-UoN I0J SUOISIAOI] J0RIUO) — (07 HMed
03 11 xrpuaddy ay3 ur pajerndns se uorstaoxd Surdqqor-nue au ‘ejqearidde usym ‘urejuod [[eys jusidaIqns au} Aq papIeme sPeQUOdNS T
"aInyTpuadxa yons yoes 103
000°00T$ Uel3 a10uw jou pue (00‘0T$ Uey s3] jou jo Ajreuad [1aD e 03 399(qns aq [reys suiioy Surdqqoy 10 uoneoynIs> parmbai ayj oY1y 0} S[rey
10 $€ 3. YAD 0F PRIL opun arnjipusdxe pajiqnioad e sexew oym jusidmar Aue Juswpuswry SUlAqqoT-nuy pidqg sy} Yiim 0UepIoode uf “[I
*A18UrpI000€ SULIO] INSOSIP PUE UOHEIGIILD JWANS Sjua1doaIqns
yeu axmbax pue ‘0pp’p0T$ SUIPaRIXD SPIEME]NS [[€ 10§ STUSWINOOP paeme ul uoisiaoid iy Jo aSenSue| sy spnput [reys justdoaigns ay,
“8u1fqqo o suoIPInSIY MON FE 1ed WAD 0F 9L uim A[durod 0y seerSe jusidaigns sy, "SaTjIALOR reontod reyjo 10 Surqqof 105 10 ‘g
3y sureSe uonesni| 10y spuny juesd [e19pay Jo asn oy syqryord Afrersuss yomym 00z YD 7 38 A[qerreat sapdmouri] 3507 oy 4q apiqge [eys
yustdaigns 2y “me] Sunsixe ISpUN pazLIoyINe ssaun "g') a3 JsureSe uoneSni| Ul 10 JUSWUISAOD) [2I9Pa] a1 J0 3urdqqo] ur aSe8us 03
pasn are juswaaI8e 33UB)SISSE ST} JoPUN PapIeme spuny jueid ou yeyy aInsus [[eys A>usSe 1us1daIqns S} JO T9DLJO SALIDEXS JOIYP AL, T

uoneSyry pue Surdqqoy  “pi

"90ueI[dWOodUOoN 107 SATPawWRY 8€€" 007 Med
YID T3 PUB £0Z'00T ¥AD T “(2)TEL700T MAD T ¥e payioads 85013 Se UpNs SaUIDYap 1991100 03 Usye) sey A1nus ydnomyj-ssed sy suomdy e
"SUOTSIORP JusWwedeuew Anus ydnorys-ssed paje[al pue sSUIpUl JIprie JO SSLBWIWNG o
‘passTyoe Jus1ddaIgns Y} S3NS3I [BJUSWIUOIIAUT e
-oouewroyred jusidoaigns e
SATIDJJ2 INSUD 0} SMIIARI MSIP I0/pUR SIISIA 9IS WOIF SSUIPUL JO SOLIBWIWING e
‘s3r0der opewrurer8ord pue [eDURUL JO SMITASI JO SINSAI JO SALIBWIWING o

'91e S[qe[IeAR UOHRULIOUI 33 sy A13us ySnoiyl-ssed ay3 J1 pajrodal aq 3snu Jey3 swies jo sajdurexy

"(P)1€€°00Z ¥AD T 1opun senIAnoe Sultojruow premeqns syt uo jxodar snw jusidmaigns sy
(L0-9T-1dD) juswainbay Sunrodsy premeqng onjeurmerSorg [pON €L

AOSDPS] MMM JB PUNOJ 8q ABWI SpIEpUR)S 953}
U0 UOTRWLIOFU] "SPIepUels PasIopus (DD) sennuwo)) eye( o1ydeidoas) [eIapa,] Yim JUDJSISUOD 3q JSNW pajeald ejep [enedsoss [y

spiepuejs eje( epedsoany 'z

LOYETOLID LOVIINOD HOA
V LI9IHXH 2

,
Weld30Jd AJenis] [euoiieN

-
AA T AN A~ /AT | & WA -

ANNOS 139N



810 [1dy uoIsiaay
wmwommuwdm LOFEZ0OgD wenuo) HOA

020T UpTelA A9 umoq useid ag [[e PInoys (4107 ‘0¢ 12quidag-910g ‘T 22901R0) LI0TA UT PapIemy spung

-queid ay) JO T2k U3IN0j U} 10§ S[qR[TRAR SSLMISIO S[3AS] J8 PSISPISUD 9 0} SUIPUI [EJUSWISIOUT 103 I3PIO Ul sreak /17 Aq yuads
aq PINOYS SPUN [[V "PRUSIeIse ST SpIEMEBQNS YIIM JUeld pes| SARRIUL D[831e1)s MAU Lea 103 SpUny JO UOREZI[HN 103 [e08 yp1ems V¥ [[e0D) Yo1ans

-A[o3{Iun s7208 UDIans 95313 JO JUSUILTEIIR DXL B} ISLIE SUEISUT AUy M IS BUEIA 3uerD HOd oA YIIM I9Juod
0} pue jusesIde SOURSISSE U} JO AJI] 93 INOYSNON) S[e0S ,PId1s,, 953} £1dde o3 a1e sjusidpaigns pue sjusididal JUsUWIeIISE SOUEISISSY

“PaIIULPI 324 jou spreme jusnbasqns o3 £jdde Aew pue ‘preme sardsrens uonejuawedwy
104 10ddng sousIsu0)) JURWRSEURIN 9TOTA ] A3 ‘preme uoneziueSIO ped’] [eqLi], 9T0TAL 243 SPIeme pea 2AReRIU] o18e1e15 9T0ZA SUL

:sy0a(o1d premeqns jim sjusuIsaISe a0Ur)SISSe asay)
03 UoIpUOd pue wie) dneunueidord Summoroy sy Sutd[dde 4q (s01n) suonesdiqo paeprnbifun 353y} JO UONONPaI dj} Sa3.INOdUS Y JH

‘spuarde1 premeqns 0 SJUSWSSINGSIP YSNOI} umop umelp 3o4 jou
‘spuny [exepay ,Jusdsun, are sslord premeqns 0} PaRIIIILIOD pue pajeSI[qo SPUNy [eI9paj Jey} Sl JO ySus] ay3 eonpai ey} sAem Ut Surpuny
premeqns pue swerSoxd 1y a8euew pinoys wejdyiom pasoidde sy ur spremeqns spnOUL e} siusweaISe aourIsIsse Y4 Jo syustdoay

[0D Yo1311s 01N "9k

.Eur_.wu:mh:mmm\ﬂcﬁw\Umo___>om.mam.BBE\hBE

211809 M JUSUITEGS(] PUE SIURID) JO 2L V. JH Y3 I8 PUNO] 8q Ued sjusaimbal 353l U0 UOHRUIIONT [EUORIPPY FUSWINI0p SOURINSSE

Lyrenb sy panoadde sey ‘1e8eueA] soueInssy ANENY V. JH Y3 YILm 1180U0D UL “T0IHO alo1g v JH 2yt [Bun 1oalord sTy3 repun pajenIul aq [[eys
ASojouypa) [ejuswLIoIIAUS Jo Uoneiado pue ‘uononisuoed udisap ay3 Sunioddns ejep pue ‘eIPI STUOTII[R 10 IMILIS}] WO BIEp JO uoneiduiod
‘SUIPOW [eUSIUOIIAUS ‘UOHEISUSS Bjep I0 SJUSLIRINSEalll 1011p SUTA[OAUL SI0M ON “120LJ(O 199[01] VI S Yim perenoSau se ajep Iayjoue
10 JuaweaISe sty Jo ouededde Ay Jo sAep 0f UIYHM J9dJQ) 392(01] VJH dU3 0F PIRIWNS 9] SN UOHRIUSWNIOP DUBINSSY Ayrendy arqeideooy

TET0C0E070/508 ed ATE WS /SUO T el [N /AJ9/A0S EM SSoTII0//SATY

“pasoidde pue paje[dwiod a1e sTaATEM JIVT) U} [AUN UISeq Jou ABUI BJEp [EJUSIUOILAUD Sunsixs 3ursn

10 MaU SUTOa[03 0} PAYE[RI IO "IV 9yt 2a01dde pue dopasp 03 (D7) dAN) 103euIp100D AI[end) JAN §,AS0IODH WBIM JIOM [[LM syuatdoaIgqns
‘parmbai st JIVD B II SSUEIMSSE-ATIEN()/So0IAISS O TUATG/eIad0-0 M- MO]/SN-INOq Y /A0S BM AS0[009//5d Y :98ed qam oueInssy Ayirendy

JAN 54801007 J0 Jusunreda( 93835 UOIBUISEAL AU} SUIMSTARI T93je SUIST WO IDATEA UR[] aloxg souemssy Ayfenyd) e jruqgns [[im jusidpaigqng

(IT'00€T ¥ID ) syuswermbay aouemssy Liend "5l

LOFEZ09D LOVEINOD HOA
V LIGIHXA i i 4 o e ne

PlA Y11 A TP
s —

mw

w
o

s

- .Qﬁw 7/..

1 A

(

S 139Nd



8107 [Mdy uoIsiAay
e LO¥EZOID wenuod) HOA

'SPUNJ JUBIS [eI2Pa] JO 3T 9AHVRYS PUe JUsDIe sejowoid asn yons Usym jueid sapoue urojrad oy juesd
STy} Zopun papraoid spuny A>usBy pim padoaasp ejep 18130 10 syIom payySukidos asn o asjueis ISyjoue dZLIOWINE ABW W Jq “UOLIppE U]

JusweaIde SIy) o uonendxe 10 UORBUIILI) ‘10 B1ep JoY30 10 sy10m pajyS1iAdod sus Jo asn ai aaoaur

[11m ey 303foxd e uirograd 03 v Jg 4q 993ueil mijoue Jo UOHOI[ES 3L} JO JNSAI € SE JueIS SIy1 Iopun padojaasp eiep 19130 10 syI0M papyStiAdod
93} 2sn 0} (s)avjueIs poue azLIoyine Aew V7 eyl sadpa[mowioe sojueis ay ‘gue)] I9pun) “BIep T80 10 sspom payySuidos aip asn 03

33jueIS I2U30 BY) 0} UOHRZLIOINE S,/ J JO SULIS} S} UHM JUSISISUOD 51 asn a3 papraocid syuerd [eI9pa N0 ALTed 03 seaueIs 130 Aq 9sn pajrur|
(9) ‘pue uondIpsLM 119y} URFIM wrerSord [ejUSUILOIIAUR [BUOTIRU & J10 A11ed 0} Vg Yiim stowred [eIDTJO st J0 10 ,s103e[nda1-00, se surerdord
[EJUSWIUOIIAUR [eI8pa Pajedajop no ALTed Jey) SJUsUILIBA0S [e00] pue [eqLy ‘01835 Aq 9s) (G) ‘sarroysodap [e1epag Ur UoISn]oUl 10] S]USWMND0P JO
uononpoxdsy (%) esimiaiyo 1o uoneyn ySnony Jusidmoaiqns s 03 peynqruye Aadoad st 1om 3} pue (s9pod 21eMIJOS "3'9) S19ID3S SprI} SOSIP
10U S0P JUSWMNDOP 33 pap1a0id SJUSWNIOP Vg Ul UOHEDNqN (€) HUsWUIDA0D) 9yj 10§ syjse) dywads Surwzozrad sI0108IU0 [e1opay Aqesn

(7) ‘sesodind jusururasos) [ewyo 105 seakorduws [e1epay BUYI0 pue v g £q 980 (1) 03 pe3tw] jou are ng apnpurl asodind [erepay e Jo sajduwexy

"sasodind [ezepay 105 jusweaiSe souelsisse iy} sspun pado[aAsp Byep IS0 10 SYIOM
panySrddod asn pue ystiqnd ‘eonpoidaa 03 s1eyzo szmoyne pue asn ‘ystiqnd ‘@onpoxdai 03 1S o sBY VA ‘SIE 00T MAD T UM 9DUBPIODDE U]

Bl pUe [eLjen paiySuddon X

*/STeIqe[/S00q/Wo0Is Ulpeal/Npa dew MMM/-d 38

PIsse00E 3] Ued PUe [DUNOD) DIeasay] [BUOHEN ‘S90Inosay] [eWIUy AzojeroqeT jo aymusuf a3 Aq paredard ‘srewumnry A101R10QET JO 98] PUE BIBD)
107 8pmo) Ay 3nsuod pmoys jusidoaiqns sy ‘sejdpuli] sy3 jnoqe UOIEWLIOJUT [EUOLIPPE 10 W 110A/ )1V /5qId/JIME/ACS EPSIT [EU MM
M/[-d8uUnSoI+Ul+pas N+S[EUWTUE+9]RI(91I0A+]0+0Ted+PUE+UO N EZI[N+o[J+10)+5a[d DULId+o UU=UI0] % [= H ) =dd1; J(oIeas/Npa dew MMM]/SdNy
ye pamata aq ued sapdpunid suru sy *(S861°07 ABIN "G9807-F980T :(£6)0S 1915180y [e12pay)

. BUIUTEI], PUe “yoIeasay] ‘Sumnse . UL PIsn S[BWIUY 9JBIgalId A JO 918)) PUE UOHRZI[N 93 10§ sa[dIDULL] JUSWUISA0D) " 1], a1 Aq apiqe 03

sea13e os[e yuatdidaiqns ayJ, *9G1Z-1€1Z DS Z ‘popusie se ‘($36-68 “1'd) 9961 JO PV SILJ[PDA [EWIUY ay3 yiim Ajdwod o3 searde juardoaIqns ayJ,

spalqng rewrruy -z}
"2jep pus preme £q umop umei( ag p[noys [V 0Z0TAL Ul papIemy spurL]
TT0T WPTRIN 4q umo( umer(] o [[e pinoys (6107 ‘0¢ 12quisides-g10z ‘T 19q0100) 610TAL Ul papIemy Spum]
120Z Y2TeA Aq umoQ umei( o [[e PINoys (3107 ‘0¢ 2queidsg-£107 ‘T 229010) §10TAL Ul popremy spung

LOPEZOED LOVIINOD HOA
V LISIHXd weiSoL Aien

1 1=, i Tela - 1D
AA ﬂt,_, 00A4 Al _ﬂ( l m o | | ﬂ ‘rL

3

(

| N

ol

ANNOS 139N



8107 [udy uoistaay

9530 [¢ 988d LOYEZOED WeOuoD HOA
LOPETOID LOVAINOD HOA
¥ IHTHXH weJddold Auenisy [euoieN

ANNOS 1349Md



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. DEFINITIONS

As used throughout this contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

1.

“Allowable Cost” shall mean an expenditure which meets the test of the Uniform Guidance
(2CFR 200) (see “I. Federal Compliance”). The most significant factors affecting allowability of
cost are; 1) they must be necessary and reasonable, 2) they must be allocable, 3) they must be
authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws and regulations, and 4) they must be
adequately documented. For more specifics see Selected ltems of Cost 2 CFR 200.420).

"Client" shall mean an agency, firm, organization, individual or other entity applying for or
receiving services under this contract,

"Cognizant State Agency" shall mean the State agency from whom the sub-recipient receives
federal financial assistance. If funds are received from more than one State agency, the cognizant
State agency shall be the agency who contributes the largest portion of federal financial assistance
to the sub-recipient, unless a cognizant State agency has been designated by OFM.

“Confidential Information " shall mean information that is exempt from disclosure under chapter
42.56 RCW, and other State or Federal statutes and regulations.

"Contractor” shall mean that agency, firm, provider, organization, individual or other entity
performing services under this contract. It shall include any subcontractor retained by the prime
contractor as permitted under the terms of this contract.

A contract is for the purpose of obtaining goods and services for the non-Federal entity's own use
and creates a procurement relationship with the Contractor. See §200.22 Contract. Characteristics
indicative of a procurement relationship between the non-Federal entity and a Contractor are
when the non-Federal entity receiving the Federal funds:

Provides the goods and services within normal business operations;

Provides similar goods or services to many different purchasers;

Normally operates in a competitive environment;

Provides goods or services that are ancillary to the operation of the Federal program; and

Is not subject to compliance requirements of the Federal program as a result of the agreement,
though similar requirements may apply for other reasons.

mOQ® >

“Contracting Officer" shall mean that individual(s) of the Contracts and Procurement Office of
DOH and his/her delegates within that office authorized to execute this contract on behalf of
DOH.

"Department" shall mean the Department of Health (DOH) of the State of Washington, any
division, section, office, unit or other entity of the department, or any of the officers or other
officials lawfully representing DOH,

“Equipment” shall mean an article of non-expendable, tangible property having a useful life of
more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more.

DO Contract CB023407 Page 32 of 56
Revision April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

9. “Noncompliance” shall mean if a non-Federal entity fails to comply with Federal statutes,
regulations or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, the Federal awarding agency or pass-
through entity may impose additional conditions, as described in §200.207 Specific conditions. If
the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity determines that noncompliance cannot be
remedied by imposing additional conditions, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity
may take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances:

A. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the non-Federal
entity or more severe enforcement action by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through
entity.

B. Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of
the cost of the activity or action not in compliance.

C. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award.

D. Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR part 180 and Federal
awarding agency regulations (or in the case of a pass-through entity, recommend such a
proceeding be initiated by a Federal awarding agency).

E. Withhold further Federal awards for the project or program.

F. Take other remedies that may be legally available.

10. "Personal Information" shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not
limited to, information that relates to a person's name, health, finances, education, business, use
or receipt of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social
security numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial
identifiers. Personal information includes “protected health information™ as set forth in 45 CFR §
164.50 as currently drafted and subsequently amended or revised and any other information that
may be exempt from disclosure to the public or other unauthorized persons under either chapter
42 .56 RCW or other State and Federal statutes.

11. "Reimbursement” shall mean that DOH will repay the Contractor for allowable costs incurred
under the terms of this contract.

12. “Risk Assessment” shail mean (2 CFR 200.331(b)) DOH is required to evaluate each
subrecipient’s risk of noncompliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the subaward for purposes of determining the appropriate subrecipient monitoring
described in paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, which may include consideration of such
factors as:

A. The subrecipient's prior experience with the same or similar subawards;

B. The results of previous audits including whether or not the subrecipient receives a Single
Audit in accordance with Subpart F—Audit Requirements of this part, and the extent to
which the same or similar subaward has been audited as a major program;

C. Whether the subrecipient has new personnel or new or substantially changed systems; and

D. The extent and results of Federal awarding agency monitoring (e.g., if the subrecipient also
receives Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency).

13. “Sensitive Data” shall mean data that is held confidentially, and if compromised, may cause harm
to individual citizens or create a liability for the State.

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 33 of 56
Revision Aprit 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

14. “Specific Conditions”

A. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may impose additional specific award
conditions as needed, in accordance with (2 CFR 200.207) paragraphs (b) and (c) of this
section, under the following circumstances:

1) Based on the criteria set forth in §200.205 Federal awarding agency review of risk posed
by applicants;

2) When an applicant or recipient has a history of failure to comply with the general or
specific terms and conditions of a Federal award;

3) When an applicant or recipient fails to meet expected performance goals as described in
§200.210 Information contained in a Federal award; or

4) When an applicant or recipient is not otherwise responsible.

B. These additional Federal award conditions may include items such as the following:
1) Requiring payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments;
2) Withholding authority to proceed to the next phase until receipt of evidence of acceptable
performance within a given period of performance;
3) Requiring additional, more detailed financial reports;
4) Requiring additional project monitoring;
5) Requiring the non-Federal entity to obtain technical or management assistance; or
6) Establishing additional prior approvals.

C. The Iederal awarding agency or pass-through entity must notify the applicant or non-Federal
entity as to:
1) The nature of the additional requirements;
2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;
3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;
4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable, and
3) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed,

D. Any specific conditions must be promptly removed once the conditions that prompted them
have been corrected.

13. “Subcontractor” shall mean a person, partnership, or company, not in the employ of or owned by
the Contractor, who is performing all or part of those services under a separate contract with or on
behalf of the Contractor. The terms “subcontractor” and “subcontractors” mean subcontractor(s)
i any ter

[6. “Subrecipient” shall mean a non-Federal entity that received a subaward from a pass-through
entity to carry out part of a Federal program; but does not include an individual that is a
beneficiary of such program. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards
directly from a Federal awarding agency. (2 CFR 200.93)

Characteristics which support the classification of the non-Federal entity as a subrecipient include
when the non-Federal entity:

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 34 of 56
Revision April 2018




17.

EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Determines who is eligible to receive what Federal assistance;

Has its performance measured in relation to whether objectives of a Federal program were

met;

C. Has responsibility for programmatic decision making;

D. Is responsible for adherence to applicable Federal program requirements specified in the
Federal award; and

E. In accordance with its contract, uses the Federal funds to carry out a program for a public

purpose specified in authorizing statute, as opposed to providing goods or services for the

benefit of a pass-through entity.

< >

“Successot” shall mean any entity which, through amalgamation, consolidation, or other legal
succession becomes invested with rights and assumes burdens of the first contractor/ vendor.

II. GENERAL CONDITIONS

I

ACCESS TO DATA - In compliance with chapter 39.26 RCW, the Contractor shall provide
access to data generated under this contract to DOH, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review
Committee, and the State Auditor at no additional cost. This includes access fo all information
that supports the findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the Contractor’s reports,
including computer models and methodology for those models. The Contractor agrees to make
personal information covered under this contract available to DOH for inspection or to amend the
personal information, as directed by DOH. Contractor shall, as directed by DOH, incorporate any
amendments to the personal information into all copies of such personal information maintained
by the Contractor or its subcontractors.

ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED -~ No payment in advance or in anticipation of
services or supplies to be provided under this contract shall be made by DOH.

AMENDMENTS — This contract may be amended by mutual written contract of the parties.
Such amendments shall not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel
authorized to bind each of the parties.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, also

. referved to as the "ADA" 28 CFR Part 35 — The Contractor must comply with the ADA, which

provides comprehensive civil rights protection to individuals with disabilities in the areas of
employment, public accommodations, State and local government services, and
telecommunications.

ASSIGNABILITY - Neither this contract nor any claim atising under this contract shall be
transferred or assigned by the Contractor without prior written consent of DOH.

ATTORNEYS® FEES — In the event of litigation or other action brought to enforce contract
terms, each party agrees to bear its own attorney’s fees and costs.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 35 of 56
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

7. CHANGE IN STATUS - In the event of substantive change in the legal status, organizational
structure, or fiscal reporting responsibility of the Contractor, Contractor agrees to notify DOH of
the change. Contractor shall provide notice as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty days
after such a change takes effect.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION — The use or disclosure by
any party, cither verbally or in writing, of any Confidential Information shall be subject to
Chapter 42.56 RCW and Chapter 70.02 RCW, as well as other applicable Federal and State laws
and administrative rules governing confidentiality. Specifically, the Contractor agrees to limit
access to Confidential Information to the minimum amount of information necessary, to the
fewest number of people, for the least amount of time required to do the work. The obligations set
forth in this clause shall survive completion, cancellation, expiration, or termination of this
contract.

A. Notification of Confidentiality Breach

Upon a breach or suspected breach of confidentiality, the Contractor shall immediately notify
the DOH Privacy Officer at DOHPrivacyOfficer@doh.wa.gov. For the purposes of this
contract, “immediately” shall mean within two calendar days.

The Contractor will take steps necessary to mitigate any known harmful effects of such
unauthorized access including, but not limited to sanctioning employees, notifying subjects,
and taking steps necessary to stop further unauthorized access. The Contractor agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless DOH for any damages related to unauthorized use or disclosure
by the Contractor, its officers, directors, employees, subcontractors, or agents.

Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return
of all Information.

B. Subsequent Disclosure

The Contractor will not release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell, disclose, or otherwise make
the Confidential Information known to any other entity or person without the express prior
written consent of the Secretary of Health, or as required by law.

If responding to public record disclosure requests under RCW 42.56, the Contractor agrees to
notify and discuss with the DOH Privacy Officer requests for all information that are part of
this contract, prior to disclosing the information. The Contractor further agrees to provide
DOH a minimum of two calendar weeks to initiate legal action to secure a protective order
under RCW 42.56.540.

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST — Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics
Board or other tribunal, DOH may, in its sole discretion, by written notice to the Contractor,
terminate this contract if it is found, after due notice and examination by DOH or it’s employee
that there is a violation of the ethics in public service act, chapter 42.52 RCW, or any similar
statute involving the Contractor in the procurement of, or performance of this contract.

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 36 of 56
Revision April 2018



10,

11.

12.

EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In the event this contract is terminated as provided above, DOH shall be entitled to pursue the
same remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the contract by
the Contractor. The rights and remedies of DOH provided for in this section shall not be
exclusive are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law. The existence of facts
upon which DOH makes a determination under this section shall be an issue and may be reviewed
as provided in the “disputes” section of this contract.

COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES — The Contractor warrants that no person or
selling agent has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, excepting bona fide
employees or bona fide established agents maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of
securing business. DOH shall have the right, in the event of breach of this clause by the
Contractor, to annul this contract without Jiability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract
price or consideration or recover by other means the full amount of such commission, percentage,
brokerage or contingent fee.

DEBARMENT — The Contractor, by signature to this contract, certifies that the Contractor is not
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded in any Federal department or agency from participating in transactions. The Contractor
agrees to include the above requirement in all subcontracts into which it enters to complete this
contract.

DISPUTES - The parties shall use their best, good faith efforts to cooperatively resolve disputes
and problems that arise in connection with this contract. Both parties will continue without delay
to carry out their respective responsibilities under this contract while attempting to resolve the
dispute under this section. When a genuine dispute arises between DOH and the Contractor
regarding the terms of this agreement or the responsibilities imposed herein which cannot be
resolved, either party may submit a request for non-binding mediation to the other party through
the DOH Contracts Unit and the DOH Contracts Unit will notify the other party of the request for
non-binding mediation. DO Contracts will act as the initial coordination point and manage the
non-binding mediation communication to and from the parties.

Fach party agrees that the DOH will identify three mediators who are neutral to both parties.
Each party agrees that Contractor will identify one of the three mediators to engage in this
process. Each party agrees that it will be responsible for one-half (1/2) the cost of the mediator.
Each party agrees that the non-binding mediation will occur at a time and place convenient to all
parties, including the mediator and that preference is for the mediation to occur in Olympia or
Tumwater, Washington. Each party agrees the mediation is non-binding,

A party’s request for a non-binding mediation must:

¢ Bein writing,

+ clearly state the disputed issues,

» state the relative positions of the parties, state the Contractor’s name, address, and his/her
contact number, the DOH Program Contract Manager.

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 37 of 56
Revision Aprit 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CB023407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

e be mailed to ATTN: DOH Contracts and Procurement Director, P.O. Box 47905, Olympia,
WA 98504-7905 within 30 day (30) calendar days after the party could have reasonably be
expected to have knowledge of the issue which he/she now disputes, or

e beemailed to DOHCON.MGMT@DOH.WA.GOV with the subject line clearly displaying
the contract number and the word “DISPUTE.”

The non-binding mediation process constitutes the sole administrative remedy available under
this contract. The parties agree that this resolution process shall precede any action in a judicial
and quasi-judicial tribunal. Both parties have a duty and responsibility to timely pursue and
engage in non-binding mediation. However, the requesting party may pursue judicial or quasi-
Judicial action prior to the completion of non-binding mediation if the subject party unnecessarily
delays or intentionally frustrates the mediation process.

13. EFFECTIVE DATE — Unless otherwise specified under period of performance, the effective
date of this contract and subsequent amendments, if any, is the date of execution. The date of
execution is the last date of signature of the parties to the contract. Contractor assumes all
liability for any expenses incurred prior to the date of execution or in the event the
contract/amendment is not executed.

14. GOVERNING LAW — This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington
and applicable federal laws and regulations. The venue of any legal action or suit concerning this
contract shall be the Thurston County Superior Court and all actions or suits thereon shall be
brought therein.

15. INDEMNIFICATION — To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the State of Washington, DOH, agencies of the State and all officials,
and employees of the State, from and against all claims arising out of or resulting from the
performance of the contract. “Claim” as used in this contract means any financial loss, claim, suit,
action, damage, or expense, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, attributable for bodily
injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of tangible property including loss of
use resulting therefrom. Contractor's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes
any claim by Contractors’ agents, employees, representatives, or any subcontractor or its
employees.

Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State for any claim
arising out of or incident to Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s performance or failure to perform
the contract. Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State shall not
be eliminated or reduced by any actual or alleged concurrent negligence of State or its agencies,
employees and officials.

Contractor waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless State and its agencies, officials or employees.

16. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE CONTRACTOR — The parties intend that an
independent contractor relationship will be created by this contract. The Contractor and his or her

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 38 of 56
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

employees or agents performing under the contract are not employees of DOH. The contractor
shall not hold himself/herself out as nor claim to be an officer or employee of DOH or of the
State of Washington by reason hereof, nor will the Contractor make any claim of right, privilege
or benefit which would accrue to such employee under law. Conduct and control of the work will
be solely with the Contractor.

7. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE — The Contractor shall comply with the provisions
of Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance. Prior to performing work under this contract, the
Contractor shall provide or purchase industrial insurance coverage for the Contractor’s
employees, as may be required of an “employer” as defined in Title 51 RCW, and shall maintain
full compliance with Title SIRCW during the course of this contract. if the Contractor fails to
provide industrial insurance coverage or fails to pay premiums or penalties on behalf of its
employees as may be required by law, DOH may collect from the Contractor the full amount
payable to the Industrial Insurance accident fund. DOH may deduct the amount owed by the
Contractor to the accident fund from the amount payable to the Contractor by DOH under this
contract, and transmit the deducted amount to the Department of Labor and Industries, Division
of Insurance Services. This provision does not waive any of the Department of Labor and
Industries rights to collect from the Contractor.

Industrial insurance coverage through the Department of Labor & Industries is optional for sole
proprietors, partners, corporate officers and others, per RCW 51.12.020.

18. INSURANCE — The Contractor shall provide insurance coverage as set out in this section. The
intent of the required insurance is to protect the State should there be any claims, suits, actions,
costs, damages or expenses arising from any negligent or intentional act or omission of the
Contractor or subcontractor, or agents of either, while performing under the terms of this contract.

The Contractor shall provide insurance coverage which shall be maintained in full force and
effect during the term of this Contract, as follows:

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy - Provide a commercial general liability
insurance policy, including contractual liability, in adequate quantity to protect against legal
liability arising out of contract activity but no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.
Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring that any subcontractors provide
adequate insurance coverage for the activities arising out of subcontracts.

B. Automobile Liability - In the event that services delivered pursuant to this contract involve
the use of vehicles, either owned or unowned by the Contractor, automobile liability
insurance shall be required. The minimum limit for automobile liability is:

1) $1,000,000 per occurrence, using a combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage

C. The insurance required shall be issued by an insurance company/ies authorized to do business
within the State of Washington, and shall name the State of Washington, and its employees as

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 39 of 56
Revision April 2018



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

EXHIBITB
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

additional insureds under the insurance policy/ies. All policies shall be primary to any other
valid and collectable insurance. Contractor shall instruct the insurers to give DOH 30 days
advance notice of any insurance cancellation.

Upon request, Contractor shall submit to DOH, a certificate of insurance which outlines the
coverage and limits defined in the Insurance section. If a certificate of insurance is requested,
Contractor shall submit renewal certificates as appropriate during the term of the contract.

LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION - The Contractor shall comply
with all applicable local, State, and Federal licensing, accreditation and registration
requirements/standards, necessary for the performance of this contract.

LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY — Only the Contracting Officer or his/her delegate by writing
(delegation to be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to
alter, amend, modify, or waive any clause or condition of this contract on behalf of DOH. No
alteration, modification, or waiver of any clause or condition of this contract is effective or
binding unless made in writing and signed by the Contracting Officer.

NONDISCRIMINATION - During the performance of this confract, the Contractor shall
comply with all Federal and State nondiscrimination faws, regulations and policies.

NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS NONCOMPLIANCE - In the event of the Contractor's
noncompliance or refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation, or policy, this
contract may be rescinded, canceled or terminated in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be
declared ineligible for further contracts with DOH. The Contractor shall, however, be given a
reasonable time in which to cure this noncompliance. Any dispute may be resolved in accordance
with the disputes procedure set forth herein.

OVERPAYMENTS AND ASSERTION OF LIEN — In the event that DOH establishes
overpayments or erroncous payments made fo the Contractor under this contract, DOH may
secure repayment, plus interest, if any, through the filing of a lien against the Contractor's real
property, or by requiring the posting of a bond, assignment or deposit, or some other form of
security acceptable to DOH, or by doing both.

PRIVACY - Personal information including, but not limited to “protected health information”
collected, used or acquired in connection with this contract shall be used solely for the purposes
of this contract. Contractor and its subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer,
sell or otherwise make known to unauthorized persons personal information without the express
written consent of DOH or as provided by law. Contractor agrees to implement physical,
electronic and managerial safeguards to prevent unauthorized access to personal information.

DOH reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate the use of personal information collected,
used or acquired by the contractor through this contract. The monitoring, auditing, or
investigating may include but is not limited to "salting” by DOH. Contractor shall certify the
return or destruction of all personal information upon expiration of this contract. Salting is the

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 40 of 56
Revision April 2018




25.

26.

27.

28.

EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

act of placing a record containing unique but false information in a database that can be used later
to identify inappropriate disclosure of data contained in the database.

Any breach of this provision may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return
of all personal information. The contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmiess DOH for any
damages related to the contractor's unauthorized use of personal information.

For the purposes of this provision, personal information includes but is not limited to information
identifiable to an individual that relates to a natural person's health, finances, education, business,
use or receipt of governmental services, or other activities, names, addresses, telephone numbers,
social security numbers, driver license numbers, financial profiles, credit card numbers, financial
identifiers and other identifying numbers.

PUBLICITY - The Contractor agrees to submit to DOH all advertising and publicity matters
relating to this contract wherein DOH’s name is mentioned or language used from which the
connection of DOH’s name may, in DOH's judgment, be inferred or implied. The Contractor
agrees not to publish or use such advertising and publicity matters without the prior written
consent of DOH.

RECORDS, DOCUMENTS, AND REPORTS - The Contractor shall maintain books, records,
documents, data and other evidence relating to this contract and performance of the services
described herein, including but not limited to accounting procedures and practices which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the
performance of this contract. Contractor shall retain such records for a period of six (6) years
following the date of final payment. At no additional cost, these records, including materials
generated under the contract, shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit
by DOH, personnel duly authorized by DOH, the Office of the State Auditor, and Federal and
State officials so authorized by law, regulation or agreement.

If the contract reimburses the Contractor for costs incurred in performance, the Contractor shall in
addition maintain books, records, documents and other evidence of procedures and practices
which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any natore expended in the
performance of this contract.

if any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the
records shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have
been resolved.

REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE — The Contractor shall complete
registration with the Washington State Department of Revenue, if applicable, and be responsible
for payment of all taxes due on payments made under this contract.

RIGHT OF INSPECTION — The Contractor shall provide right of access to its facilities to
DOH, or any of its officers, or to any other authorized employee or official of the State of
Washington or the federal government, at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 41 of 56
Revision April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CB023407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

performance, compliance, and/or quality assurance under this contract. The Contractor shall
make available information necessary for DOH to comply with the client's right to access, amend,
and receive an accounting of disclosures of their Personal Information according to the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) or any regulations enacted or
revised pursuant to the HIPAA provisions and applicable provisions of Washington State law.
The Contractor’s internal policies and procedures, books, and records relating to the
safeguarding, use, and disclosure of personal information obtained or used as a result of this
contract shall be made available to DOH and the U.S. Secretary of the Department of Health &
Human Services, upon request.

29. RIGHTS IN DATA/COPYRIGHT - Unless otherwise provided, all materials produced
exclusively under this contract shall be considered "works for hire" as defined by the U.S.
Copyright Act and shall be owned by DOH. DOH shall be considered the author of such
Materials. In the event the Materials are not considered “works for hire” under the U.S.
Copyright laws, Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in Materials,
including all intellectual property rights, to DOH effective from the moment of creation of such
materials.

Materials means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports,
documents, pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs,
films, tapes, and/or sound reproductions that derive exclusively from the Contractor’s work under
this contract. Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability to transfer
these rights.

For materials that are delivered under the contract, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not
produced under the contract, Contractor hereby grants to DOH a nonexclusive, royalty-free,
irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense others) in such materials to translate, reproduce,
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Contractor
warrants and represents that Contractor has all rights and permissions, including intellectual
property rights, moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to DOH.

The Contractor shall exert all reasonable effort to advise DOH, at the time of delivery of
materials furnished under this contract, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained
therein and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this
contract. DOH shall receive prompt written notice of each notice or claim of copyright
infringement received by the Contractor with respect to any data delivered under this contract.
DOH shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the data by
the Contractor.

30. SECURITY OF INFORMATION — Unless otherwise specifically authorized by the DOH IT

Security Officer, Contractor receiving confidential information under this contract assures that:

e It is compliant with the applicable provisions of the Washington State Office of the Chief
Information Officer’s policy, Securing Information Technology Assets, available at:
https://ocio.wa.gov/policy/securing-information-technology-assets-standards

e It will provide DOH copies of its IT security policies, practices and procedures upon the
request of the DOH IT Security Officer.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 42 of 56
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

¢ DOH may at any time conduct an audit of the Contractor’s security practices and/or
infrastructure to assure compliance with the security requirements of this contract.

e It has implemented physical, electronic and administrative safegnards that are consistent with
OCIO IT security standards and guidelines to prevent unauthorized access, use, modification
or disclosure of DOH Confidential Information in any form. This includes, but is not limited
to, restricting access to specifically authorized individuals and services through the use of:

e Documented access authorization and change control procedures;

¢ Card key systems that restrict, monitor and log access;

e Locked racks for the storage of servers that contain Confidential Information or AES
encryption (128bit or stronger) to protect confidential data at rest;

e Documented patch management practices that assure all network systems are running critical
security updates within 6 days of release when the exploit is in the wild, and within 30 days
of release for all others;

e Documented anti-virus strategies that assure all systems are running the most current anti-
virus signatures within 1 day of release;

» Complex passwords that are systematically enforced and expire at least every 180 days;

¢ Strong (Two Factor) authentication mechanisms that assure the identity of individuals who
access Confidential Information;

e Account lock-out after 5 failed authentication attempts for a minimum of 20 minutes, or for
Confidential Information, uniil administrator reset;

AES encrypted (128bit or stronger) sessions for all data transmissions.

s Firewall rules and network address translation that isolate database servers from web servers
and public networks;

» Regular review of firewall rules and configurations to assure compliance with authorization
and change control procedures;

e Tog management and intrusion detection/prevention systems;

e A documented and tested incident response plan

Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return of
all personal information.

31. SEVERABILITY — If any provision of this contract or any provision of any document
incorporated by reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other
provisions of this contract which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end
the provisions of this contract are declared to be severable.

32. SITE SECURITY — While on DOH premises, Contractor, its agents, employees, or
subcontractors shall conform in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or
regulations. Failure to comply with these regulations may be grounds for revoking or suspending
security access to these facilitics. DOH reserves the right and authority to immediately revoke
security access to Contractor staff for any real or threatened breach of this provision. Upon
reassignment or termination of any Contractor staff, Contractor agrees to prompily notify DOH.

33. SUBCONTRACTING — Neither the Contractor, nor any subcontractors, shall enter into
subcontracts for any of the work contemplated under this contract without prior written approval

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 43 of 56
Revision Aprif 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

of DOH. In no event shall the existence of the subcontract operate to release or reduce the
liability of the Contractor to DOH for any breach in the performance of the Contractor’s duties.
This clause does not apply to Hospitals and/or Medical Clinics that must contract with specialty
physicians (e.g. anesthesiologists, radiologists, physicians groups, independent practitioners, etc.)
nor does it include contracts of employment between the coniractor and personnel assigned to
work under this contract.

Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all terms, conditions, assurances and
certifications set forth in this contract are carried forward to any subcontracts. Contractor and its
subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell or otherwise make known to
unauthorized persons personal information without the express written consent of DOH or as
provided by law.

If, at any time during the progress of the work, DOH determines in its sole judgment that any
subcontractor is incompetent or undesirable, DOH shall notify the Contractor, and the Contractor
shall take immediate steps to terminate the subcontractor's involvement in the work.

The rejection or approval by DOH of any subcontractor or the termination of a subcontractor
shall not relieve the Contractor of any of its responsibilities under the contract, nor be the basis
for additional charges to DOH.

DOH has no contractual obligations to any subcontractor or vendor under contract to the
Contractor. The Contractor is fully responsible for all contractual obligations, financial or
otherwise, to their subcontractors.

34. SURVIVABILITY - The terms and conditions contained in this contract which by their sense
and context, are intended to survive the completion, cancellation, termination, or expiration of the
contract shall survive,

35. SUSPENSION OF PERFORMANCE AND RESUMPTION OF PERFORMANCE — In the
event contract funding from State, Federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in
any way after the effective date of this contract and prior to normal completion, DOH may give
notice to Contractor to suspend performance as an alternative to termination. DOH may elect to
give written notice to Contractor to suspend performance when DOH determines that there is a
reasonable likelihood that the funding insufficiency may be resolved in a timeframe that would
allow performance to be resumed prior to the end date of this contract. Notice may include notice
by facsimile or email to Contractor’s representative. Contractor shall suspend performance on the
date stated in the written notice to suspend. During the period of suspension of performance each
party may inform the other of any conditions that may reasonably affect the potential for
resumption of performance.

When DOH determines that the funding insufficiency is resolved, DOH may give Contractor
written notice to resume performance and a proposed date to resume performance. Upon receipt
of written notice to resume performance, Contractor will give written notice to DOH as to
whether it can resume performance, and, if so, the date upon which it agrees to resume

DBOH Contract CBO23407 Page 44 of 56
Revision Aprit 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

performance. If Contractor gives notice to DOH that it cannot resume performance, the parties
agree that the contract will be terminated retroactive to the original date of termination. If the
date Contractor gives notice it can resume performance is not acceptable to DOH, the parties
agree to discuss an alternative acceptable date. If an alternative date is not acceptable to DOH,
the parties agree that the contract will be terminated retroactive to the original date of termination.

36. TAXES — All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, any
other taxes, insurance or other expenses for the Contractor or its staff shall be the sole
responsibility of the Contractor.

37. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE — Except as otherwise provided in this contract, the
Contracting Officer may, by TEN (10) calendar days written notice, beginning on the second day

after the mailing, terminate this contract in whole or in part when it is in the best interests of
DOH.

If this contract is so terminated, DOH shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the
terms of this contract for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination.

38. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT — In the event DOH determines the contractor has failed to
comply with the conditions of this contract in a timely manner, DOH has the right to suspend or
terminate this contract. Further, DOH may terminate this contract for default, in whole or in part,
if DOH has a reasonable basis to believe that the contractor has:

A. Failed to meet or maintain any requirement for contracting with DOH;

B. Failed to ensure the health or safety of any client for whom services are being provided under
this contract;

C. Failed to perform under, or otherwise breached, any term or condition of this contract; and/or

D. Violated any applicable law or regulation.

Before suspending or terminating the contract, DOH shall notify the Contractor in writing of the
need to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within fourteen (14) days, the
contract may be terminated or suspended. In the event of termination or suspension, the
Contractor shall be liable for damages as authorized by law including, but not limited to, any cost
difference between the original contract and the replacement or cover comtract and all
administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of the competitive
bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time. DOH reserves the right to suspend all or part of the
contract, withhold further payments, or prohibit the Contractor from incurring additional
obligations of funds during investigation of the alleged compliance breach and pending corrective
action by the Contractor or a decision by DOH to terminate the contract. A termination shall be
deemed to be a “termination for convenience” if it is determined that the Contractor: (1) was not
in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside of his or her control, fault or negligence. The
rights and remedies of DOH provided in this contract are not exclusive and are in addition to any
other rights and remedies provided by law.

39. TERMINATION PROCEDURE - Upon termination of this contract DOH may require the
Contractor to deliver to DOH any property specifically produced or acquired for the performance
of such part of this contract as has been terminated.

DOH Contract CB(23407 Page 45 0f 56
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DOH shall pay to the Contractor the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed work
and services accepted by DOH. In addition DOH shall pay the amount agreed upon by the
Contractor and the Contracting Officer for (a) completed work and services for which no separate
price is stated, (b) partially completed work and services, (c) other property or services which are
accepted by DOH, and (d) the protection and preservation of the property. If the termination is
for default, the Contracting Officer shall determine the extent of the liability of DOH. Failure to
agree with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the Disputes clause of this
contract.

DOH may withhold from any amounts due the Contractor for such completed work or services
such sum as the Contracting Officer determines to be necessary to protect DOH against potential
loss or liability.

The rights and remedies of DOH provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by faw or under this contract.

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Contracting
Officer, the Contractor shall:

* Stop work under the contract on the date and to the extent specified in the notice;

* Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, facilities except as necessary to
complete such portion of the work not terminated,

* Assign to DOH, to the extent directed by the Contracting Officer, all of the rights, titles, and
interest of the Contractor under the orders and subcontracts in which case DOH has the right,
at its discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders
and subcontracts.

¢ Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of orders or subcontracts, with the
approval or ratification of the Contracting Officer to the extent he/she may require, which
approval or ratification shall be final for all the purposes of this clause;

* Transfer title to DOH and deliver, as directed by the Contracting Officer, any property which,
if the contract had been completed, would have been required to be furnished to DOH;

* Complete performance of such part of the work not terminated by the Contracting Officer;
and,

* Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Contracting Officer may direct, for the
protection and preservation of the property related to this contract which is in the possession
of the Contractor and in which DOH has or may acquire an interest.

40. WAIVER OF DEFAULT — Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any subsequent default or breach. Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of
the terms of this contract unless stated to be such in writing and signed by authorized
representative of DOH.

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 46 of 56
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE
AND STANDARD FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

In the event federal funds are included in this agreement, added by future amendments(s), or redistributed
between fund sources resulting in the provision of federal funds, the following sections apply: “I. Federal
Compliance” and “II. Standard Federal Assurances and Certifications”™. In the instance of inclusion of
federal funds as a result of an amendment, the contractor may be designate as a “Subrecipient” and the
effective date of the amendment shall also be the date at which these requirements go into effect.

1. FEDERAL COMPLIANCE - The use of federal funds requires additional compliance and control
mechanisms to be in place. The following represents the majority of compliance elements that may
apply to any federal funds provided under this contract. (Refer to Catalog of Domestic Assistance
number(s) cited in the “Payment” section of this contract for requirements specific to that fund
source.) For clarification regarding any of these elements or details specific to the federal funds in
this contract, contact:

Compliance and Internal Control Officer
Office of Financial Services

Department of Health

Post Office Box 47901

Olympia, Washington 98504-7901

1. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDANCE — The Uniform Administrative Guidance
(Supercircular) became effective December 26, 2014 and combines numerous OMB Circulars
into one document. This document established requirements which govern expenditure of federal
funds. These requirements apply to the Department of Health, as the primary recipient of federal
funds, and then follow the funds to the subrecipient. The Uniform Administrative Guidance
provides the applicable adminisirative requirements, cost principles, and audit requirements are
identificd by subrecipient organization type.

Compliance Matrix

OMB CIRCULAR
ENTITY TYPE ADMINISTRATIVE COST PRINCIPLES AUDIT
REQUIREMENTS REQUIREMENTS
State. Local and Indian 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200
Tribal Governments & Subpart D Subpart E Subpart F
Governmental Hospitals
Non-Profit Organizations 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200
Subpart D Subpart E Subpart F
Hospitals 2 CFR 200 45 CFR 74 2 CFR 200
Subpart D Appendix E Subpart F
Colleges or Universities & 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200
Affiliated Hospitals Subpart D Subpart E Subpart I

2. CITIZENSHIP/ALIEN VERIFICATION/DETERMINATION - The Personal Responsibility
and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) of 1996 (PL 104-193) states that federal
public benefits should be made available only to U.S. citizens and qualified aliens. Entities that
offer a service defined as a “federal public benefit” must make a citizenship/qualified alien
determination/ verification of applicants at the time of application as part of the eligibility criteria.
Non-US citizens and unqualificd aliens are not eligible to receive the services. PL 104-193 also

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 47 of 56
Revision April 2018



ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CB023407

includes specific reporting requirements.  Exemptions from the determination/verification
requirement is afforded the following programs offered by the Department of Health: Family
Planning, Breast & Cervical Health Program (BCHP), Special Supplemental Nutrition Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC), WIC Farmers Market Program, Immunization
Programs, and Ryan White CARE Act programs and other communicable disease treatment and
diagnostic programs.

CIVIL RIGHTS AND NONDISCRIMINATION - During the performance of this agreement,
the Contractor shall comply with all current and future federal statutes relating to
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(PL 88-352), Title 1X of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 and 1685-
1686), section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794), the Age Discrimination
Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107), the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (PL
92-255), the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (PL 91-616), §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912
(42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S8.C. §§3601
¢t seq.), and the Americans with Disability Act (42 U.S.C., Section 12101 et seq.}.

SINGLE AUDIT ACT - A subrecipient (including private, for-profit hospitals and non-profit
institutions) shall adhere to the federal. Uniform Administrative Guidance (Subpart F) as well as
all applicable Federal and State statutes and regulations. A subrecipient who expends $750,000
or more in federal awards during a given fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit
for that year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart F.

II. STANDARD FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES - Following are the
Assurances, Certifications, and Special Conditions that apply to ali federally funded (in whole or in
part) agreements administered by the Washington State Department of Health.

1.

CERTIFICATIONS
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

The vndersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies to the best
of his or her knowledge and belief, that the contractor, defined as the primary participant in
accordance with 45 CFR Part 76, and its principals:

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal Department or agency;

B. have not within a 3-year period preceding this contract been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local})
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

C. are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, or focal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b)
of this certification; and

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 48 of 56
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

D. have not within a 3-year period preceding this contract had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

Should the contractor not be able to provide this certification, an explanation as to why should be
placed after the assurances page in the contract.

The contractor agrees by signing this contract that it will include, without modification, the clause
titled Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, In eligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion--
Lower Tier Covered Transactions in all lower tier covered transactions (i.e., transactions with
sub- grantees and/or contractors) and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions in
accordance with 45 CFR Part 76.

2. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies that the
contractor will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free workplace in accordance with 45 CFR
Part 76 by:

A. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

B. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2) The contractor’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations ocourring
in the workplace;

C. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the contract
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph 1) above;

D. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1), above, that, as a condition
of employment under the contract, the employee will:

1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

E. Notifying the agency in writing within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
paragraph D. 2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every
contract officer or other designee on whose contract activity the convicted employee was

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 49 of 56
Revision April 2018



ATTACIIMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such
notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

F. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
paragraph D. 2) with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

G. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (A), (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F).

For purposes of paragraph (E) regarding agency notification of criminal drug convictions,
DOH has designated the following central point for receipt of such notices:

Compliance and Internal Control Officer
Office of Grants Management

WA State Department of Health

PO Box 47905

Olympia, WA 98504-7905

3. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Title 31, United States Code, Section 1352, entitled "Limitation on use of appropriated funds to
nfluence certain Federal contracting and financial transactions,” generally prohibits recipients of
Federal grants and cooperative agreements from using Federal (appropriated) funds for lobbying
the Executive or Legislative Branches of the Federal Government in connection with a SPECIFIC
grant or cooperative agreement. Section 1352 also requires that each person who requests or
receives a Federal grant or cooperative agreement must disclose lobbying undertaken with non-
Federal (non-appropriated) funds. These requirements apply to grants and cooperative agreements
exceeding $100,000 in total costs (45 CFR Part 93).

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies, to the best
of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of
a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making
of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the exfension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

B. If any funds other than Federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 530 of 56
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO234(7

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperalive agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying
Activities," in accordance with its instructions. (If needed, Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure
of Lobbying Activities," its instructions, and continuation sheet are included at the end of this
application form.)

C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, subcontracts, and contracts
under grants, loans and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered info. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure.

4. CERTIFICATION REGARDING PROGRAM FRAUD CIVIL REMEDIES ACT
(PFCRA)

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies that the
statements herein are true, complete, and accurate to the best of his or her knowledge, and that he
or she is aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject him or her
to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. The undersigned agrees that the contracting
organization will comply with the Public Health Service terms and conditions of award if a
contract is awarded.

5. CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that smoking
not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an
entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood
development services, education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services
are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal
grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The law also applies to children’s services that are
provided in indoor facilities that are constructed, operated, or maintained with such Federal funds.
The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residence, portions of facilities
used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment, service providers whose sole source of applicable
Federal funds is Medicare or Medicaid, or facilities where WIC coupons are redeemed.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary
penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance
order on the responsible entity.

By signing the certification, the undersigned certifies that the contracting organization will
comply with the requirements of the Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any
indoor facility used for the provision of services for children as defined by the Act.

The contracting organization agrees that it will require that the language of this certification be
included in any subcontracts which contain provisions for children’s services and that all
subrecipients shall certify accordingly.

DOH Coniract CB0O23407 Page 51 of 56
Revision April 2018



ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

The Public Health Services strongly encourages all recipients to provide a smoke-free workplace
and promote the non-use of tobacco products. This is consistent with the PHS mission to protect
and advance the physical and mental health of the American people.

6. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective contractor is providing the certification
set out below.

A.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective contractor shall submit
an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination
whether to enter info this transaction. However, failure of the prospective contractor to
furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this
transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later
determined that the prospective contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency
may terminate this transaction for cause of default.

The prospective contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the department or
agency to whom this contract is submitted if at any time the prospective contractor learns that
its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances,

The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, incligible, lower tier covered
transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and
voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549, You may contact the
person to whom this contract is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those
regulations.

The prospective contractor agrees by submitting this contract that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DOH.

The prospective contractor further agrees by submitting this contract that it will include the
clause titled Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion -- Lower Tier Covered Transaction, provided by HHS, without modification, in all
lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered {ransaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroncous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-
procurement List (of excluded parties).

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 52 of 56
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

H. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

I. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who
is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, DOH may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

7. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

A. The prospective contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

1

2)

3)

4)

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

Have not within a three-year period preceding this contract been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumerated in paragraph 1. B. of this certification; and

Have not within a three-year period preceding this contract had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the prospective contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective contractor shall attach an explanation to this contract.

CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE IS REQUIRED

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL | TITLE

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE NAME:

ORGANIZATION NAME: (if applicable) DATE

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 53 of 56

Revision Aprit 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

FEDERAL ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the
data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the
burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing
this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project {0348-0040),
Washington, DC 20503

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF
MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE
SPONSORING AGENCY.

Note: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have
questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may
require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the contractor, 1 certify that the contractor:

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial
capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper
planning, management, and completion of the project described in this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, and if appropriate, the
State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books,
papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish a proper accounting system in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that
constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal
gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the
awarding agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. [1[14728-4763) relating to
prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration 6]
C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited
to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended
(20 U.S.C. TIJ1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c)
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. [3794), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42
US.C. 1107 6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the
basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment
and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis
of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) LI0 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 54 of 56
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

U.S.C. 00 290 dd-3 and 290 ec 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse
patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Ul 3601 et seq.), as amended,
relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance
is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to
the application.

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and Il of the uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which
provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result
of Federal or federally assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property
acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.

8. 8. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. [1111501-1508 and
7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activitics
are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. [10276a to 276a-
7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. [1276¢ and 18 U.8.C. [111874) and the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 0111 327-333), regarding labor standards for federally assisted
construction subagreements.

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood
Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area
to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction
and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a)
institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of
1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of viclating facilities pursuant
to EO 11738; (¢) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in
floodplains in accordance with EQ 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved
State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C.
(1001451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation Plans under
Section 176(c) of the Clear Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. 0117401 et seq.); (g) protection
of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended,
(P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973,
as amended, (P.L. 93-205).

12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. ILI1721 et seq.) related to
protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 11470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of
historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 u.s.C.
[100469a-1 et seq.).

14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research,
development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 55 of 56
Revision April 2018



ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO0O23407

15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C.
(02131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for
research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 1104801 et seq.) which
prohibits the use of lead- based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Super circular 2CFR200, Subpart T.

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations
and policies governing this program.

CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE IS REQUIRED

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL | TITLE

PRINT OR TYPE NAME:

ORGANIZATION NAME: (if applicable) DATE

DOH Centract CBO23407 Page 56 of 56
Revision April 2018




WQC-2018-ThurCD — 060174
RECIPIENT: Thurston Conservation District FUNDING: Centennial

PROJECT TITLE: Community Centered Restoration of the Middle Deschutes Watershed

Total Cost; $325,866.00
Total Eligible Cost: $325,866.00
Ecology Share: $244.,401.00
Recipient Share: $ 81,465.00
The Effective Date of the Agreement is: 9/22/2018
The Expiration Date of this Agreement is no later than: 9/21/2021

Project Short Description

The RECIPIENT has put together a Tribal, public, private, and non-profit partnership to restore degraded conditions in the
Middle Deschutes River watershed. The collaboration will lead to immediate water quality improvements by restoring
two properties in the middle Deschutes River Watershed and engaging the community in the long-term stewardship and
protection of the watershed.

Project Long Description

The RECIPIENT has brought together the Squaxin Island Tribe, Thurston County, the Rainier School District, South
Sound GREEN, Capitol Land Trust, the Center for Natural Land Management, Taylor Shellfish and private landowners to
restore natural processes to the middle Deschutes River Watershed and inspire a stewardship ethic through hands-on
implementation of the Next Generation Science Standards.

The 57-mile long Deschutes River flows through Thurston County and is a regionally important water body that suffers
from ongoing pollution concerns and intense growth pressure that is likely to exacerbate these issues. Anticipated
development in the Deschutes Watershed will result in increases in impervious area and total number of residential units
on septic systems while reducing the amount of tree cover — impacts that could exacerbate pollution loads, increase stream
temperatures, and lead to loss of fish and wildlife habitat (Deschutes Current Conditions, 2015). The Deschutes
Watershed is home to Federally listed salmonids, in addition to prairic-associated species such as the Mazama Pocket
Gopher and the streaked horned lark. In 2003, a TMDL project began to address water quality impairments: temperature,
dissolved oxygen, bacteria, pH, and phosphorus. The problems stem from a blend of point and nonpoint sources. This
project will address nonpoint sources in the watershed such as agricultural and livestock activities, and land use activities.

The Puget Sound Watershed Characterization (ECOLOGY) identifies the Upper and Middle Deschutes mainstem sub-
basins as priority areas for protection as they are relatively intact and highly important for water flow processes. The
middle watershed is moderately to highly degraded and recommended for restoration, as the area is of high importance for
water flow and for spawning and rearing salmonids. The area has also been identified as the most sensitive to impacts
from projected growth, as under current land use regulations, it has a high number of new dwelling units (2,330) and a
moderate percentage of forestlands that are vulnerable to conversion.

The Deschutes River TMDL Improvement Report / Implementation Plan (2015) recommends several actions in the
Middle Deschutes Watershed, including maintaining the existing riparian buffers, re-establishing riparian buffers where
they have been degraded, stabilizing banks that contribute fine sediment, and reducing nutrient sources. The RECIPIENT



will implement a parallel process to install restoration actions in both agricultural and developed areas, while reaching out
to landowners in the middle Deschutes Watershed, and parinering with the Rainier School District to design, implement
and monitor water quality and restoration projects.

The restoration projects are on two parcels totaling 6 acres. The RECIPIENT will work directly with the students to
design, implement and then monitor the project for years into the future. These activities will create a stewardship ethic,
improve water quality immediately and into the future, plant the seed of possibility for work in the environmental field,
and engage the community to solve water quality issues themselves. The Squaxin Island Tribe will mentor the students as
well, creating a cross-community bridge to link two different areas and cultures and create opportunities where previously
none existed.

The riparian restoration will couple with a LWD placement already planned at the CNLM site, which has been ranked by
the WRIA 13 Salmon Habitat Recovery Lead Entity and proposed for funding by the Salmon Recovery Funding Board
(SRFB) in December, 2018. The SRFB project will install eight large wood habitat complexity structures and one
engineered logjam as the confluence of the spring channel and the mainstem Deschutes.

To create a community that is engaged in the restoration of the Middle Deschutes, the RECIPIENT will reach out and
engage with landownets building a place where trust and respect are paramount. The RECIPEINT will send out mailings
and conduct nine community meetings. These outreach activities will lead to opportunities to create Conservation Plans
that design a minimum of 25 BMP's to be implemented with future funding opportunities.

South Sound GREEN connects communities and schools for watershed protection and unites multiple local partners to
combine their time, talents and expertise into a high quality watershed educational experience for area youth. South
Sound GREEN exponentially increases the resources and technical expertise available in the watershed and aliows an
expansion into new and diverse areas to better reach at-risk youth. A study conducted by the Washington Office for the
Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) and the Environmental Education Association of Washington (EEAW) in
2008 revealed that the primary obstacles for teachers in teaching environmental education in their classes was lack of time
and lack of access, followed by lack of funding and professional development. South Sound GREEN will partner with
Rainier and Tumwater School Districts to remove these barriers to their outdoor tearning experience, aid their
understanding of ecological processes along the Deschutes River, and nurture a positive relationship with the natural
world.

Overall Goal:

The goal of this project is to reduce impacts to water quality from current and future residential development and
agricultural practices by creating a stewardship ethic that begins with Tribal and area youth to install riparian plantings
that will restore properly functioning ecological processes and lessen the impact of development on the watershed while
teaching Next Generation Science Standards. Another goal of the project is to perform intensive landowner outreach,
using the interactions with community youth as the foundation, to design and implement? two shovel-ready actions that
will restore stream function and water quality. Tribal, community and youth will then monitor the installations biannually
and report on the results at a local water quality summit and to the WRIA 13 Deschutes Salmon Habitat Recovery Lead
Entity.

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

Organization Name:  Thurston Conservation District
Federal Tax ID: 91-1011612

DUNS Number: 168783850

Mailing Address: 2918 Ferguson St. SW




Tumwater, WA 98512

Physical Address: Same

Organization Email:  ssgreen@thurstoncd.com

Organization Fax:

Contacts

Project Manager Amy Hatch-Winecka
Deputy Director

2918 Ferguson St. SW
Tumwater, WA 98512
(360) 754-3588

(360) 236-0941
amyhw(@thurstoned. com

Billing Contact Susan Shelton
Accountant

2918 Ferguson St. SW, Suite A
Tumwater, WA 98512

(360) 754-3588
sshelton@thurstoncd.com

Authorized Eric Johnson
Signatory Chair, TCD Board of Supervisors

2918 Ferguson St. SW, Suite A
Tumwater, WA 98512




ECOLOGY INFORMATION

Mailing Address:

Department of Ecology
Water Quality

PO BOX 47600

Olympia, WA 98504-7600

Physical Address: Water Quality
300 Desmond Drive
Lacey, WA 98503
Contacts
Project Leanne Weiss
Manager Project Manager
PO Box 47775
Olympia, WA 98504-7775
Email: leanne.weiss@ecy.wa.gov
Phone: (360) 407-0243
Financial Laurie Webster
Manager Financial Manager

PO Box 47600
Olympia, WA 98504-7600
Email: laurie.webster@ecy.wa.gov

Phone: (360) 407-6542




BUDGET

Funding Distribution

Funding Title: Centennial
Funding Type: Grant
Funding Effective Date: 7/01/2017

Funding Source: Centennial-SFY 18

Recipient Match %: 25%
InKind Interlocal Allowed: Yes
InKind Other Allowed: Yes

Funding Expiration Date: 7/30/2020

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant? NO

Elements (Tasks) Total Project Total Eligible Funding
Cost Cost Source
1. Project Administration/Management $17,643.00 $17,643 Centennial
2. Restoration and Conservation Planning $102,199.00 $102,199.00 Centennial
3. Restoration Designs $6,607.26 $6,607.26 Centennial
4, Community Outreach and Engagement $39,710.00 $39710.00 Centennial
5. Water Quality Monitoring - South $53,241.74 $53,241.74 Centennial
Sound GREEN
6. Sguaxin Island Tribe Community $25,000.00 $25,000.00 Centennial
Engagement
Total $325,868.20 $325,868.20 Centennial

MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

ECOLOGY Share: maximum 75% of TEC

$244,401.00

RECIPIENT Share: minimum 25% of TEC

Cash, interfocal, and in-kind other match are eligible.

$81,467.00







Council 28-7~

Washington Federation of State Employees

July 19, 2018

Sarah Moorehead, Interim Executive Director
Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson St SW, Suite A

Tumwater, WA 98512

Dear Ms. Moorehead,

STATE HEADQUARTERS OFFICE
1212 JEFFERSON ST. S.E., SUITE 300 = OLYMPIA, WA 88501-2332
800-562-6002 « www.wise.org

by Electronic Mail and USPS

Pursuant to RCW 41.56.100 | am writing to request negotiations of an initial Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the Washington Federation of State Employees, AFSCME Council 28 and the

Thurston Conservation District.

The Washington Federation of State Employees (WFSE) also requests that the two percent COLA that
was approved during the December 20, 2017 Board of supervisors meeting be implemented

retroactively to April 1, 2018,

Mark Hamilton will be the chief negotiator for the Washington Federation of State Employees. Please
contact Mark at (360) 709-1940 or by e-mail at MarkH@wfse.org to discuss scheduling.

We look forward to productive negotlations resulting in a first agreement that benefits both the WFSE

membership and the Thurston Conservation District.

Singerely, [

o
.-T-<-u_d.m~=}w%_=#m’

Amy Spiegel
WHSE Director of Negotiations

cC: Eric lohnson, Board Chair

OLYTEPA FIELD OFFICE
806 Cotumitfa SL SW. Suite 504
Qbypls, Wi 28501

Greg Devereux, WFSE Executive Director
Sue Henricksen, WFSE Council President
iMiark Hamilton, WFSE Labor Advocate
WFSE Officers

WFSE Bargaining Team

Kurt Spiegel, Olympia Field Supervisor

SHIGKEY POINT FIELD OFFICE SPOKAMNE FIELD BFFIZE
5710 Swiakey Poin) Blvd | Suite 208 222 W Lilssion Ave, Sulfe 201 BEI3 Tacoma Mall Bivd
Arington, WA 48223-8435 Epokane, WA 99201-2301

SEATTLE FIELD OFFICE
363 7th Ava, 5., Suite 220
Soutiie WA, S8108-3407

GALL GENTER: B33-MOC-WFSE (B33-522-9371)

JACCGKA FIELD OFFICE VAUCOUYER FIELE OFFICE YAKESIA FIELD OFFIGE
11818 5E 2%l Plain Biv., Swite 202 3404 Karn Noad, Suite B
Tacama, WA 931096826 Yaacouver, WA B1684-5090 Yakima. W 98352-7801
B i 7



g% O

) )\ \\N

Conservation

19-17

, Ko

burstoﬂc

To: Mark Hamilton
Washington Federation of State Employees
1212 Jefferson St SE Olympia, WA 98501
From: Thurston CD Board of Supervisors
October 30, 2018

Re: Request for Negotiations

Dear Mr. Hamilton,

Eric Johnson
Board Chair

Thurston Conservation District
2918 Ferguson St. SW, Ste A Tumwater, WA 98512
(360) 754-3588
ericiohnsontcd@gmail.com

t: 360.754.3588 e f:360.236.0941 » www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

fIv]E






2\
Jhuraton

Conservation Thurston Conservation District
District

RESOLUTION

Resolution #2018-04
Subject: TCD Governance Study

September 25, 2018

Whereas, Earlier this year, Thurston Conservation District (District) voted to adopt a system of
“Rates and Charges” (R&C) to provide funding to support District activities.

And whereas, the Thurston County Board of Commissioners must now decide whether to
approve the District’s request

And whereas, A number of concerns have been raised about the District's management of
finances. These have included:

e Appropriateness of staff pay

Control over staff travel expenses and use of personal vehicles

Confusing information on the District’s budget

Conflict of interest with grants

e Use of No-bid contracts.

And whereas, the District Board of Supervisors take these concerns seriously and are looking
for proper ways to address these issues.

And whereas, the District Board of Supervisors want to assure that the taxpayer’s investments
are spent responsibly, the community has confidence in the District, and the District has
credibility in our community

And whereas, the District would benefit from a thorough review of its governance and finances
to find ways to improve the District’s management.

And whereas, a comprehensive and useful study would take funding that the District does not
have right now.

Hereby be it resolved that if the Thurston County Commissioners approve the District’'s Rates
and Charges, the District Board of Supervisors commit the District to use the R&C assessment
to fund a comprehensive review and assessment of the District’s finances and governance,
conducted by an independent third-party consultant. This would be a top priority for use of these
funds, to begin as soon as possible in 2019.
And be it resolved that the scope would include

o The appropriate job classes the District needs, and the appropriate salary schedule for

those classes

o The governance structure to ensure proper management and use of staff resources

o Policies needed for controlling costs and ensuring effective use of District funds, staff
resources, and physical assets, including travel, grants, and contracts.

o Policies needed to ensure that conflict of interest and other ethical concerns are
addressed




o Any other need identified by the District, County, or State Conservation Commission

And be it resolved that the study would review the practices of other Conservation Districts
and nonprofit organizations of a similar size and with similar duties, and would make use of the
three-year State Auditor review, which occurs later this year.

And be it resolved A tri-party Steering Committee should be created to scope and guide the
study. The Steering Committee would be made up of representatives from the District, County,
and State Conservation Commission, and could include elected officials, staff, and legal
counsel, as appropriate.

And be it resolved This study, including its scope, schedule, reporting requirements, and

implementation could be included as part of the Memorandum or Agreement accompanying the
R&C authorization.

Passed by a vote of the Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors:

Signed, District Board of Supervisors Chair Date




Conservation Thurston Conservation District
District

RESOLUTION

Resolution #2018-05
Subject: Hiring of a Human Resources Consultant

Whereas, RCW RCW 89.08.210 authorizes that “supervisors may employ a secretary,
treasurer, technical experts, and such other officers, agents, and employees, permanent and
temporary, as they may require, and determine their qualifications, duties, and compensation.”
And,
Whereas, RCW 89.08.210 also states that " supervisors may delegate to their chair, to one or
more supervisors, or to one or more agents or employees such powers and duties as it deems
proper.” And,
Whereas, Thurston Conservation District (the District) has need of a Human Resources (HR)
consultant to provide technical expertise,
Hereby be it resolved that the District Board of Supervisors establish the position of District HR
Consultant, to be filled by a short-term contract for four months.
And be it resolved that duties of the HR Consultant be prioritized to address:

1. Negotiations with the WFSE union

2. Resolution of the complaints to the HR Commission

3. Establishing policies and procedures that help ensure compliance of the District with

state and federal employment and labor laws
4. Addressing HR issues raised by the District's insurance agent and by the State
Conservation Commission.

And be it resolved that the District Supervisors allocate $8,000 from the District's budget for
this purpose, and request that the Interim Executive Director propose a budget with this
allocation included.
And be it resolved that the Executive Director will publish a request for Qualifications for HR
consulting firms to provide qualifications and a scope of work with proposed compensation to
meet the objectives of the position.
And be it resolved that the Board of Supervisors will review the qualifications and
compensation proposed by consulting firms and choose a firm to hire for this position.
And be it resolved that outside of official District Board meetings the position will work solely
on tasks approved under this resolution or assigned by the Board as a whole, and will be jointly
managed by the Interim Executive Director, and by the Chair of the Board of Supervisors or a
Supervisor that he delegates.

Passed by a vote of the Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors:

Signed, District Board of Supervisors Chair Date






To: TCD Board of Supervisors
From: Sarah Moorehead (Interim Executive Director) Conservation

District
Date: October 30, 2018

287
Subject: Interim Executive Director’s Report ST 198

Priority Initiative Updates

Rates and Charges

The Thurston Board of County Commissioners held a public hearing on TCD’s
proposed System of Rates and Charges on Tuesday, September 25" 2018 at the
Thurston County Courthouse. Public comment received reflected 180 in favor, 5
opposed.

The final step in the process to secure Rates and Charges is approval by the Thurston
Board of County Commissioners. If approved, collection would begin in 2019. This item
will be presented during the October 30“‘, 2018 Thurston Board of County
Commissioners agenda setting meeting for inclusion in a subsequent regutar business
meeting for consideration.

Cost Share implementation

TCD staff have completed implantation of a cost share project for waste transfer for a
producer in the Chehalis Watershed using WSCC Natural Resource Investment (NRI)
funding. In addition, staff are wrapping up a culvert removal cost share project on a
cattle ranch in the Skookumchuck Watershed through WSCC NRI. TCD staff have
entered 16 projects into the Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS) that are
awaiting cost share funding through WSCC Shelffish funds, focusing on watersheds
throughout Thurston County.



District Operations

Staffing Capacity

This is a follow up report from the March, June and September 2018 TCD Board
Meetings to increase staffing capacity. Progress has been made on filling vacant
positions; beginning with a permanent accountant. Moving forward, securing a full-time
natural resource specialist and a shared full-time education assistant/SSGREEN
Educator are expected to filled next. Recruitment for these positions has been
postponed to November, to allow for approval of necessary grant funding and the
outcome of Rates and Charges. Incoming DOH and DOE grants will be vital to support
these new positions entering into 2019 and create the funding base to support ongoing
priorities, such as the Voluntary Stewardship Program by allowing enough funding to
support increasing long-term technical capacity.

The natural resource specialist position will primarily focus on conservation planning,
cost share implementation and implementation of the Voluntary Stewardship Program,
including development of ISPs. The education assistant position will support our
district's educational programming, events, social media and workshops (fulfilling the
role of our previous TCD AmeriCorps position), as well as, directly fill the role of the
previous SSGREEN AmeriCorps position.

Needs for additional technical and administrative staffing resources should be included
in the 2019 Annual Budget, pending sufficient funding.

2019 Annual Budget Development Process

Due to the delay in anticipate approval date of Rates and Charges and other vital grant
funding, staff's objective for the October 20", 2018 Board meeting is to begin discussion
with the Thurston CD Board to assess priority items for inclusion in the 2019 Annual
Budget. An outcome of the initiative to secure Rates and Charges is expected to take
place in early November, providing foundational direction to Thurston CD's budget
development process,

Therefore, a draft 2019 Annual Budget inclusive of TCD Board Supervisor priorities,
including staffing needs and unallocated unrestricted funds will be provided to the Board
for discussion and feedback at the November TCD Board Meeting. Staff will then
compile feedback on the draft budget and provide a final budget at the next regularly
scheduled Board meeting. Please feel free to submit feedback at any time and staff will
compile them for discussion and prioritization by the full Board.,




The TCD Board Auditor, and other members of the TCD Board, are encouraged to
participate in the process by reviewing documents and proposals distributed from staff,
sharing ideas and input throughout the development process, and asking questions to
ensure a solid understanding of TCD's financial needs and abilities for the coming year.

2018 Accountability Audit (2015-2017)

The WA State Auditor’s Office will begin our routine three year accountability audit in
late October. An engagement letter is included in the October 30" 2018 Board Meeting
packet for review and Board signature.




Appendix C Project Proposal

Project Number #18-2153

Project Name South Sound Prairies Rare Species

Sponsor Center for Natural Lands Management

Project Name/Number Status Status and Relationship

15-1511 Restoration of Prairies Project Completed Conducted prairie restoration on
and Wetlands multiple sites, including some

sites in current proposal where
we are building on those efforts.

Project Brief

This restoration project will enhance habitat and help expand populations of rare, but not currently
federally-listed species, helping to keep these species from becoming listed. The imperiled species
include butterflies and birds.

Project Location

Work will occur in the Thurston County portion of the South Puget Sound Prairie Landscape, all within
the Chehalis River watershed. Restoration sites range from near Tenino westward towards Oakville;
sites are primarily legally-protected prairie conservation areas. Five sites in total will be restored.

Problem Statement

The prairies and oak woodlands of western Washington are one of the rarest ecosystems in the United
States, with greater than 90% of the habitat destroyed. One consequence is further endangerment of
rare species, potentially leading them to be listed as threatened or endangered by the US Fish and
Wildlife Service. The potential listing of additional species in Thurston County has huge political and
economic implications. The listing of the Mazama pocket gopher and the efforts to conserve the species
has created a significant political challenge, and large economic impacts.

Taking steps to preclude listing of additional species is a prudent action and is being applied with other
conservation actions. This philosophy underpins Thurston County and Tumwater/Bush Prairie Habitat
Conservation Plans, which include species that are not federally listed.

This project will enhance habitat that part of on-going conservation and restoration efforts in core
conservation areas and important tribal resource sites. Implementing actions that benefit the target
species, and their habitat, will add resiliency to these locations and help to maximize the conservation
value of areas already set aside for conservation. These sites are also within core ranges of target
species, or desired range expansions that will benefit the species.




Ecological Resources

Valley silverspot- | All life stages Declining Federal— No
Speyeria zerene State - Candidate
bremnerii

Puget blue- Al fife stages Stable Federal — No
fcaricia icarioides State - Candidate
blackmorei

Hoary elfin- All life stages Declining Federal — No
Callophrys polios State — No

Puget Sound All life stages Declining Federal — No
fritillary- Speyeria State - No

cybele pugetensis

Oregon vesper Breeding Beclining Federal — No - Proposed
sparrow- State - Candidate
Pooecetes

gramineus affinis

Western bluebird- | Breeding Stable/Increasing Federal— No
Sialia mexicana State - No

Limiting Factors, Limiting Life Stages

While specific limiting factor studies have not been conducted on each of the target species, generally
similar species in the same habitats have proven to be limited by resources in those habitats. For
butterflies, this is larval host plants, while for birds it is breeding habitat. Fortunately, these limitations
are amenable to restoration efforts. Specific [arval host plants can be seeded into habitat to further
develop those habitats. For bluebirds, nest cavities are limiting but a suitable proxy is provision of nest
hoxes. Less is known for the vesper sparrow, though recent observations suggest that the species is
sensitive to having a shrub component within its grassland habitat.

Specific host plants for the target butterfly species are: Valley silverspot and Puget Scund fritillary—
Viola adunca and Viola praetensis; Puget blue — Lupinus albicaulis; Hoary elfin — Arctostaphylos urva-
ursi. Restoration and enhancement of these host plants will create greater larval host areas, areas that
are depleted in the current conditions.

Creating and Sustaining Jobs

The project will create 11.25 FTEs.
The project will sustain 5.3 FTEs.
Total FTEs supported is 16.55.

Specifically the project will create a new prairie restoration team in collaboration with the Confederated
Tribes of the Chehalis Reservation. This team will, at times, will be supplemented by VetCorps and
Americorps members, while working independently at other times.



Technical assistance for all restorationists will be supplied by sustaining positions, including a full-time
Restoration Specialist, that was originally funded by a previous WCRRI project. Additional science and
training support wilt also supplied by staff experienced in prairie restoration.

Local Community Benefits

Direct community benefits will be derived from viewing and enjoying the rare species in the prairie
environment. This includes Prairie Appreciation Day, when more than 1,000 individuals visit Glacial
Heritage Preserve and Mima Mounds NAP with interpretation from area experts. These and other
interpretation events help create an increased awareness of these rare species and the efforts to keep
them from further decline. Additionally, restoring prairie habitat and species to Chehalis tribal lands will
enhance harvesting opportunities of camas and other plants important to the tribes.

The potential largest benefit will come if enhancement actions preclude the need to federally list the
species as threatened or endangered. The impact of the Mazama pocket gopher an Thurston County
and its residents has been tremendous. If this project, and complementary efforts, is successful in
helping to preclude listing, then the community will receive both economic and social benefits.

Good Fit with WCRRI

The South Sound Prairie project extends the geographic and ecological range of the WCRRI program,
bringing an expanded set of legislative supporters and outreach opportunities. Focused on an area
currently negatively economically impacted by presence and protection of endangered species, the
project offers a proactive approach that helps alleviate current and future problems.

The project also focuses on providing training and job opportunities for Native Americans, Veterans and
young adults, that will benefit most from the employment and learning opportunities offered. For
instance, the Center for Natural Lands Management’s {CNLM) partnership with the WA Veterans
Administration on the VetCorps Program has already established a track record of successfully aiding
Veterans that are struggling. The mission oriented ethic of CNLM matches well with many veterans.
Combined with the eco-therapy of working outside on active restoration and the enhanced access to VA
programs, the VetCorps program has improved lives, while supporting restoration.

Similarly, CNLM has a proven program for AmeriCorps members, one that provides opportunities
beyond most positions available for young adults. Participants of the program gain direct experience
and responsibility for conservation actions and outcomes. Guided by experienced staff, the AmeriCorps
members produce independent projects of substantial quality. Many of the science or restoration
members participate in projects that result in refereed science papers. This has led to very good
placement of members once they finish the program.

The prairie restoration project will also support the creation of a prairie restoration team, envisioned for
young adults, through the Confederated Tribes of the Chehalis Reservation. A consistent concern
among tribal leaders is that there aren’t enough young tribal members trained in natural resources,
leading to a dearth of qualified individuals to fill important tribal land management and biologist
positions. This will provide meaningful employment and training for tribal members, working on
improving a habitat that was, and still is, a central part of their cultural heritage.




Project Goals and Objectives

Project Goal - The South Sound Prairie Restoration Project will result in enhanced habitat and should,
over time, encourage robust populations for multiple rare species. These improvements will integrate
with other prairie restoration efforts in the ecoregion and will preclude the need to list these species as
federally endangered. The resulting lack of restrictions and regulations will allow the area to create
resilient human communities while maintaining ecological resources. Additionally, through integrating a
variety of groups into the restaration, substantial individual benefits will accrue and new partnerships
will expand overall prairie conservation in the region.

Project Objectives

Habitat — The amount of suitable and occupied habitat for rare species will increase at each restored
site, specific numbers will be generated based on initial surveys. For butterflies this will be primarily due
to increased forb diversity and abundance, especially larval food and nectar species. Bluebird nest
boxes will be established at preserves without them and expanded on those that currently support
bluebirds, while vesper sparrow habitat, with increased shrub and debris components, will be
established.

Metric — Field surveys of habitat conditions specific to target species.

Community — New, specific actions for the target species will generate increased cooperative
conservation projects in the Puget Sound Prairies for these species. The recognition of improvements in
the habitat for these species will help alter public perception of prairie conservation and will help
preclude federal listing of the species.

Metric — Tracking of the number of new projects that include target species in their objectives. This will
be tracked the Joint Base Lewis-McChord Sentine! Landscape group. Complementary projects include
restoration and habitat acquisition projects within the project area.

fmplementation — Individuals that participate in the project will learn restoration skills and knowledge of
the ecology of the prairie system. The training, and other support programs, will help individuals to
progress in their guality of life and their careers.

Metric — Exit interview and survey at end of term for participants.
Project Details

Narrative description - The South Puget Sound Prairie Restoration Project wil restore habitat for a set of
rare, though not federally listed, butterfly and bird species. The Project’s ecoiogical goal is to generate
species specific habitat enhancements that will positively affect the status of these species. The
Project’s focus on these species will be a catalyst for additional projects that will complement the
outcomes and should eventually lead to precluding these species from listing. Restoration actions will
ocecur on protected prairie lands and will be based on proven prairie restoration technigues.

Scope of Work/Project Deliverables — Restoration actions will take place at six sites, all within the
Chehalis River Watershed and in the South Puget Sound Prairie Landscape. Most of the sites are
currently ‘protected’ conservation sites, under ownership by an agency or non-profit fand trust, and
have received initial prairie restoration previously. The properties owned by members of the Chehalis
Tribes have received initial mowing treatments but would greatly benefit from additional restoration



treatments such as fire and native seeding. By building on these previous efforts the current project can
focus much of its action on enhancement actions, rather than substantial effort placed towards
removing the initial of pest plants like Scotch broom. By helping to further restore protected lands, the
project increases the conservation value of these lands that the public has already paid for, with an eye
towards maximizing the conservation value on each site.

Generally restoration actions will include targeted control of pest plants, seeding and plugging of native
prairie plants and installation of nest boxes and other wildlife structures.

Pest plant control is needed to continue on-going efforts on the sites, especially controlling
remaining individuals within targeted locations. For instance, at Mima Mounds NAP, Scotch
broom and Cascara have reinvaded previously treated areas. Follow-up treatment will be of
jower intensity and will keep the habitat functional. Actions will follow the best practices
established for South Sound Prairies and includes mechanical and chemical control of
individuals. Pest plant control will include control of selected Douglas-fir where they are
overtopping oaks or invading grasslands.

Direct seeding has been determined to be the best technique available to establish most
grassland forbs and grasses. Typically the site is prepared with prescribed fire and follow-up
treatments, which are part of on-going efforts at the sites. Adding host plant and nectar specific
species to the seeding will enhance conditions for the target species. Direct seeding into areas
prepared without fire will also be conducted. Plugging of individual plants will be undertaken
where individual shrubs are needed to improve vesper sparrow habitat.

Installation of bluebird nest boxes is a well proven technigque to substitute for the native cavities
that are lacking in the landscape. These installations will take into consideration, a) the needs of
the bluebirds, and b) visibility to the public. Bluebirds, and ‘trails’ of bluebird boxes have proven
to be effective ambassadors for natural areas. Vesper sparrows are not quite as charismatic as
blue birds, but construction of structures such as woodpiles or downed trees, can add
considerably to their habitats.

Site Specific Actions —

Cavness Ranch Acreage = 600

Primary Actions Pest plant control; Habitat enhancement, seeding, plugging,
vesper sparrow habitat, bluebird boxes

Specific Actions - Prepare additional acreage for enhancement seeding, prepare

Year 1 small patches near oak woodland for seeding, control pest

plants as needed. Conduct seeding based site conditions and
seed availability.

Year 2 Follow-up pest plant control. Conduct seeding based on site

conditions and seed availability. Enhance bluebird and vesper
sparrow habitats

Chehalis Tribal Land Acreage = 25

Primary Actions Pest plant control; Habitat enhancement, seeding, plugging,
bluebird boxes

Specific Actions — Initiate Scotch broom control on site, with focus on creating

Year 1 patches of grassland ‘free’ of broom. Prepare patches for

seeding and plugging. . Conduct seeding based site
conditions and seed availability. Enhance bluebird habitat.




' Year 2

Continue Scotch broom control on site, with focus on
expanding patches of grassland ‘free’ of broom. Prepare
patches for seeding and plugging. . Conduct seeding based
site conditions and seed availability. Enhance bluebird
habitat.

Glacial Heritage Preserve

Acreage = 1,100

Primary Actions

Pest plant control; Habitat enhancement, seeding, plugging,
vesper sparrow habitat, bluehird boxes

Specific Actions —

Assist with follow-up plant pest control, especially Scotch

Year 1 broom and tall oatgrass. Prepare priority location for seeding
and conduct seeding as conditions and seed availability
dictate. Enhance bluebird and vesper sparrow habitats.

Year 2 Assist with follow-up plant pest control, especially Scotch

broom and tall oatgrass. Prepare priority location for seeding
and conduct seeding as conditions and seed availability
dictate. Enhance bluebird and vesper sparrow habitats.

Mima Mounds NAP

Acreage = 637

Primary Actions

Pest plant control; Habitat enhancement, seeding, plugging,
bluebird boxes

Specific Actions —
Year 1

Control Scotch broom and cascara in priority locations. Assist
with spot spray, or other control methods, of Scoteh broom
resprouts and germinates throughout the Natural Area.
Plugging of kinnicknick. Potential seeding into priority areas,
based on site preparation. Expansion or maintenance of
bluebird boxes on adjacent to Natural Area.

Year?2

Follow-up of priority Scotch broom and cascara sites. Control
sprouting of cascara. Seeding and plugging continue based on
site preparation.

West Rocky Prairie Wildlife Area

Acreage = 410

Primary Actions

Pest plant control; Habitat enhancement, seeding, plugging,
vesper sparrow habitat, bluebird bhoxes

Specific Actions - Assist with follow-up plant pest control, especially Scotch

Year 1 broom and tall oatgrass. Prepare priority location for seeding
and conduct seeding as conditions and seed availability
dictate. Enhance bluebird and vesper sparrow habitats.

Year 2 Assist with follow-up plant pest control, especially Scotch

broom and tall oatgrass. Prepare priority location for seeding
and conduct seeding as conditions and seed availability
dictate. Enhance bluebird and vesper sparrow habitats.




Cost Determination — Cost estimates are based on completion of similar efforts over the 25 year history
of the Puget Prairie restoration efforts. Seed costs are derived from CNLM'’s native seed nursery at
Violet Prairie Preserve. Labor estimates are based on time and effort of completing similar actions
previously.

Design Alternatives — Primary alternatives for the project included alternative sites and additional
species. Some potential sites were eliminated due to the recommendations of the site managers, or
their preference for specific sites. Species such as Oregon branded skipper and Sonoran skipper were
eliminated due to lack of clarity of effectiveness of specific restoration actions.

Lessons Learned — This project builds on 25 years of trials and projects within the South Puget Sound
Prairie Landscape. Best management practices continue to evolve and improve due to the use of
adaptive management on most projects. The latest discussions on management techniques are
communicated through the Cascadia Prairie Qak Partnership, which is facilitated by Center for Natural
Lands Management. Recently, considerable interchange has also occurred within the Joint Base Lewis
McChord Sentinel Landscape Group and the JBLM Army Compatible Use Program. Through these
programs multiple agencies and non-profits interact to produce projects with the latest information.
This project derives from discussions with those partners, including the need to conserve the target,
nen-listed, species.

Long-term Stewardship — One advantage of focusing on protected prairie areas is that long-term
stewardship is already considered, planned and budgeted on multiple sites. On state agency sites this
management is part of their operations budgets. At CNLM owned sites there is a stewardship
endowment in place to assist with stewardship. Long-term stewardship on the Chehalis Tribal and
Cavness Ranch sites are unknown.

importance of Project Timing

The timing of the project is affected by two factors — the status of the restoration efforts on the sites
and the political environment. The project could not proceed effectively until preliminary restoration of
the sites was completed. The primary task has been control of pest plants such as Scotch broom and tall
patgrass. Once a site has entered a phase of vegetation enhancement the specific enhancements for
rare species are much more effective. The protected sites of the project have progressed through these
restoration steps and are ready to be further enhanced.

In terms of timing of political concerns with listed species time is critical. The continuing decline of the
target species is concerning. For instance, the vesper sparrow is now likely the rarest bird in western
WA, rarer than the threatened streaked horned lark. Similarly, the hoary elfin in the South Puget
Prairies has been identified as a distinct taxa and occurs today at only 4 known locations. Hoary elfins
were abundant across the prairie historically. The listing of these species could pose considerable
political challenges, demonstrating that restoration can improve the status of these species will be a
critical factor in any potential listing determination.

Larger Project Strategy

This project is part of a larger strategy to conserve and restore prairies in the South Puget Sound region,
These efforts are spurred on due to the conservation status of the habitat, one of the rarest in the US,
and individual species, 3 federally listed species. The importance of these efforts is illustrated by Joint
Base Lewis-McChord’s reliance on prairie grasslands for military training. The impact of listed species on
the ability of the Army to train on the installation is a major driver and funding source for efforts both on

7



and off the installation. The refined species-targeted restoration efforts of this project are
complimentary to the efforts underway from the federally-listed species. By expanding beyond these
listed species restorations will create resilient habitats that can help a broad range of species.

Sponsor’s Experience

The South Sound Program of CNLM has been an on-going project for 24 years. It was started as part of
The Nature Conservancy and transferred to CNLM 2011. The Program has completed hundreds of
grants pertaining to prairie conservation and has worked effectively with a broad range of partners and
funding sources. CNLM has successfully completed a previous project for WCRRI on prairie restoration.
CNLM has a dedicated grants manager to assist with contracting and billing. Other staff include
experienced restorationists, scientists and program managers. CNLM has developed and maintains a
prescribed fire program and a native seed nursery, both critical for these habitats and their
enhancement.

Landowner Names

Cavness Ranch — Arline Cavness (Conservation Easement held by The Nature Conservancy, prairie and
oak woodlands managed by CNLM.)

Chehalis Tribal Land — Confederated Tribes of the Chehalis Reservation

Glacial Heritage Preserve — Thurston County

Mima Mounds Natural Area Preserve — WA Dept. of Natural Resources

Violet Prairie-Scatter Creek — Center for Natural Lands Management

West Rocky Prairie Wildlife Area — WA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife

Project Partners

The Confederated Tribes of the Chehalis Reservation will be hosting a crew of restoration technicians.
The crew will work both independently and in cooperation with a crew from Center for Natural Lands
Management. The program is part of an effort to develop awareness, job skills and increased interest in
the culturally significant landscape of prairies.

VetCorps and Americorps members working with CNLM will continue to be contracted by their
respective sponsoring group, WA Dept. of Veterans Affairs and Washington Service Corps.

Stakeholder Outreach

This project has not experienced any opposition or concerns. Conservation partners are enthusiastic
and believe it is synergistic with other current and future actions. Since actions are occurring on lands
already dedicated to conservation, and the effort is to help preclude future listings, the project has
widespread support. There are no public safety concerns.

Supplemental Questions

Design Process
The project does not involve construction of infrastructure or landscape manipulations.

Licensed Engineer
No licensed engineer is needed for the project design.

Streambank Stabilization



Mo streambank stabilization is involved.

Invasive Species Introductions
All seed used in this project will be tested at an accredited seed testing facility for purity and presence of
invasive species.

i
.
i
|
i




rOndwly

) )\ \\N

Conservation
= PDistrict =

tb’u ( o'&
h A <

“thypgtonc®’

Dear Patrick Dunn:

| am writing on behalf of the Thurston Conservation District in support of your proposal to the
Washington Coast Restoration and Resiliency Initiative, entitled “South Sound Prairies Rare
Species.” This project will help to advance our vision of healthy, functioning ecosystems in
Thurston County through on-the-ground restoration of prairie and oak habitat for rare species.
Additionally, partnerships and training programs with both the Veteran Conservation Corps and
the Chehalis Tribe expand the reach of conservation to underserved communities in our region.

| am happy to support this project. Please contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,

Eric Johnson
Board Chair
Thurston Conservation District

t: 360.754.3588 o f: 360.236.0941 ¢ www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

fIv]E)



